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FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 

The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC 
a California Limited Liability Company 
757 N. Twin Oaks Valley Rd., Suite 2  

San Marcos, CA 92069 
Telephone: (760) 402-8225 

Email: claire@therushcoffee.com 
www.therushcoffee.com 

 
 
The Rush Coffee franchised business is a full-service mobile coffee truck business offering made-to-order, hand-
craŌed, coffee and espresso drinks, specialty smoothies, Italian sodas, teas, shaved ice, other beverages, along 
with baked goods and desserts. 
 
The total investment necessary to begin operaƟons of a single The Rush Coffee franchise ranges from $72,300 to 
$240,900.  This amount includes $23,200 that must be paid to the franchisor or an affiliate.  The total investment 
necessary to begin operaƟons of a The Rush Coffee franchise pursuant to an Area Development Agreement, which 
requires development of a minimum of two (2) The Rush Coffee franchises, ranges from $89,300 to $257,900.  This 
includes $40,200 that must be paid to the franchisor or its affiliate.   
 
This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your Franchise Agreement and other informaƟon in 
plain English.  Read the Disclosure Document and all accompanying agreements carefully.  You must receive this 
Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payments 
to the franchisor or an affiliate in connecƟon with the proposed franchise sale.  Note, however, that no 
government agency has verified the informaƟon contained in this document. 
 
You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient for you.  To discuss 
the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Claire Oksayan at 757 N. Twin Oaks Valley Rd., Suite 2, 
San Marcos, CA 92069, and (760) 402-8225. 
 
The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relaƟonship.  Don’t rely on the Disclosure Document alone 
to understand your contract.  Read all of your contract carefully.  Show your contract and this Disclosure Document 
to an advisor, like a lawyer or accountant. 
 
Buying a franchise is a complex investment.  The informaƟon in this Disclosure Document can help you make up 
your mind.  More informaƟon on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise,” which can help 
you understand how to use this Disclosure Document is available from the Federal Trade Commission.  You can 
contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by wriƟng to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 
20580.  You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.Ōc.gov for addiƟonal informaƟon.  Call your state agency 
or visit your public library for other sources of informaƟon on franchising. 
 
There may also be laws on franchising in your state.  Ask your state agencies about them. 
 
ISSUANCE DATE:  March 12, 2024 
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document 
  

Here are some quesƟons you may be asking about buying a franchise and Ɵps on how to 
find more informaƟon: 
 

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION 

How much can I earn?  Item 19 may give you informaƟon about outlet sales, 
costs, profits or losses.  You should also try to obtain 
this informaƟon from others, like current and former 
franchisees.  You can find their names and contact 
informaƟon in Item 20 or Exhibits G and H.  

How much will I need to 
invest?  

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the 
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direcƟon.  Item 7 lists 
the iniƟal investment to open. Item 8 describes the 
suppliers you must use.  

Does the franchisor have the 
financial ability to provide 
support to my business?  

Item 21 or Exhibit I includes financial statements. 
Review these statements carefully.  

Is the franchise system stable, 
growing, or shrinking?  

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number 
of company-owned and franchised outlets.  

Will my business be the only 
THE RUSH COFFEE business in 
my area?  

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the 
franchise agreement describe whether the franchisor 
and other franchisees can compete with you.  

Does the franchisor have a 
troubled legal history?  

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its 
management have been involved in material 
liƟgaƟon or bankruptcy proceedings.  

What’s it like to be a THE 
RUSH COFFEE franchisee?  

Item 20 or Exhibits G and H list current and former 
franchisees.  You can contact them to ask about their 
experiences.  

What else should I know?  These quesƟons are only a few things you should 
look for.  Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this 
disclosure document to beƩer understand this 
franchise opportunity.  See the table of contents.  
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally 
 
ConƟnuing responsibility to pay fees.  You may have to pay royalƟes and other fees even if you 
are losing money. 
  
Business model can change.  The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its 
manuals and business model without your consent.  These changes may require you to make 
addiƟonal investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.  
 
Supplier restricƟons.  You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited group 
of suppliers the franchisor designates.  These items may be more expensive than similar items 
you could buy on your own.  
 
OperaƟng restricƟons.  The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operaƟng a similar 
business during the term of the franchise.  There are usually other restricƟons. Some examples 
may include controlling your locaƟon, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market, 
and your hours of operaƟon.  
 
CompeƟƟon from franchisor.  Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the 
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.  
 
Renewal.  Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew.  Even if it does, you may have 
to sign a new agreement with different terms and condiƟons in order to conƟnue to operate your 
franchise business.  
 
When your franchise ends.  The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operaƟng a similar 
business aŌer your franchise ends even if you sƟll have obligaƟons to your landlord or other 
creditors.  
 

Some States Require RegistraƟon 
 

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register 
before offering or selling franchises in the state. RegistraƟon does not mean that the state 
recommends the franchise or has verified the informaƟon in this document.  To find out if your 
state has a registraƟon requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency informaƟon in 
Exhibit F.  
 

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to 
your franchise agreement.  If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda.  See the Table of 
Contents for the locaƟon of the State Specific Addenda. 
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise 
 

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:  
 

1.  Out-of-State Dispute ResoluƟon.  The franchise agreement and area 
development agreement require you to resolve disputes with the franchisor 
by mediaƟon, arbitraƟon and/or liƟgaƟon only in California.  Out-of-state 
mediaƟon, arbitraƟon, or liƟgaƟon may force you to accept a less favorable 
seƩlement for disputes.  It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or 
liƟgate with the franchisor in California than in your own state.  

 
2. Short OperaƟng History.  The Franchisor is at an early stage of development 

and has a limited operaƟng history. This franchise is likely to be a riskier 
investment than a franchise in a system with a longer operaƟng history. 

 
3. Financial CondiƟon.  Franchisor is undercapitalized (see Item 21) and may 

not be able to meet preopening obligaƟons to all franchisees. 
 
4. Mandatory Minimum Payments. You must make minimum royalty or 

adverƟsing fund payments, regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to 
make the payments may result in terminaƟon of your franchise and loss of 
your investment. 

 
5. Supplier Control.  You must purchase all of the inventory or supplies that 

are necessary to operate your business from the Franchisor, its affiliates, or 
suppliers that the Franchisor designates, at prices the Franchisor or they set. 
These prices may be higher than prices you could obtain elsewhere for the 
same or similar goods. This may reduce the anƟcipated profit of your 
Franchised Business 

 
Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted.  Check the “State Specific 

Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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ITEM 1:  THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES 

The Franchisor 
 
To simplify the language in this disclosure document, “The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC,” “The Rush Coffee,” 
“we,” “the Franchisor,” or “us” means The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC, the Franchisor. “You” means the 
individual or business enƟty that buys the franchise, and includes each partner, shareholder, member, or other 
owner of that enƟty.  
 
The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC is a California Limited Liability Company formed on June 15, 2021. Our 
principal office is located at 757 N. Twin Oaks Valley Rd., Suite 2, San Marcos, CA 92069. We do business under 
the trade name “The Rush Coffee” and no other names.  
 
We began offering The Rush Coffee franchises as described in this disclosure document on July 29, 2021.  We do 
not offer franchises in any other line of business.  

Predecessors, Parents, and Affiliates  
 
We have no parents or predecessors.  We have one affiliate, The Rush Coffee, LLC. 
 
Our affiliate, The Rush Coffee, LLC, (“Licensor”) is a California limited liability company formed on January 3, 
2017.  Licensor is the owner of “The Rush Coffee” trade name, trademarks, service marks, logos, and other  
related trade dress (the “Marks”) and licenses the Marks to us pursuant to a license agreement.  It currently 
owns and operates two (2) The Rush Coffee businesses of the type we franchise.  Licensor began operaƟng its 
first The Rush Coffee business in March 2017.  It has the same principal address as us.  Licensor has never offered 
franchises in any line of business.  Licensor may, from Ɵme to Ɵme, sell new or used vehicles that are turn-key 
ready to our franchisees for use in their Franchised Business. 

Prior Business Experience 
 
Our affiliate, The Rush Coffee, LLC, has operated businesses like The Rush Coffee franchises being offered in this 
disclosure document since March of 2017.  

Agent for Service of Process 
 
The names and address of our agents for service of process are listed on EXHIBIT F to this Disclosure Document.   

Our Business and Franchise Offered 
 
We offer for sale a franchise to operate a disƟncƟve full-service mobile coffee truck business that offers made-
to-order, hand-craŌed, coffee and espresso drinks, specialty smoothies, Italian sodas, teas, shaved ice, other 
beverages, and also sells baked goods, and desserts (the “Franchised Business”). We offer the franchises under 
the form of a Franchise Agreement aƩached to this disclosure document (the “Franchise Agreement”). 
 
As one of our franchisees, you will use specialized business formats and systems, called the “System,” which we 
may modify, supplement, and update from Ɵme to Ɵme. You will use certain services or trademarks and other 
commercial symbols referring to The Rush Coffee brand, products, and services, which we call the “Marks.” The 
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Rush Coffee Franchised Businesses must provide all and only The Rush Coffee products and services unless we 
consent in wriƟng.  
 
If you desire and qualify to develop mulƟple The Rush Coffee Franchised Businesses, we offer the opportunity to 
enter into an Area Development Agreement with us (the “Area Development Agreement”). Under an Area 
Development Agreement, you are granted the ability to develop mulƟple The Rush Coffee Franchised Businesses 
within a designated area (the “Development Area”) in accordance with a development schedule specified in the 
Area Development Agreement (the “Development Schedule”). Our current form of Area Development 
Agreement is aƩached as Exhibit “B” to this Disclosure Document. 
 
For each Franchised Business that you open, you must sign a then-current form of The Rush Coffee Franchise 
Agreement. 
 
For each future unit Franchise Agreement, you may be required to sign a form of the Franchise Agreement that 
is different from the Franchise Agreement included in this disclosure document. If you do not open your 
Franchised Businesses per the Development Schedule, we may terminate the Area Development Agreement, 
and you will lose the ability to develop other The Rush Coffee Franchised Businesses under the Area Development 
Agreement. In such cases, and in our sole discreƟon, we may keep the full development fee that you paid. In no 
event, however, will such a failure on your part consƟtute a breach or terminaƟon of the Franchise Agreement(s) 
for The Rush Coffee Franchised Business(es) already opened.  
 
We may conƟnue to develop new products and services, but we are not obligated to do so. If we do develop new 
products or services, we may offer you the opportunity to provide such products or services, but we are not 
required to offer you such opportunity, and if we do, we may require you to take addiƟonal training, pay 
addiƟonal fees, sign addiƟonal agreements, or meet other requirements. 
 
You have no obligaƟon or right to open any addiƟonal The Rush Coffee Franchised Business unless you sign an 
Area Development Agreement. 

Industry-Specific RegulaƟons 
 
In addiƟon to laws governing business generally, such as the Americans with DisabiliƟes Act, federal wage and 
hour laws, and the OccupaƟonal Safety and Health Act, your The Rush Coffee Franchised Business will be subject 
to and have to comply with local ordinances and other permits and licensure requirements for a mobile food 
truck, which may vary greatly by state, county, and local ordinances. For example, some jurisdicƟons may require 
you to obtain a restaurant permit and licensure, while others will require that you obtain a business license to 
operate within their borders. In California and other states, franchisees are required to obtain a decal from the 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development for all mobile food trucks that you stand inside to 
serve. 
 
There may also be state and local statutes, regulaƟons, laws, licensure requirements, and ordinances specific to 
your state or local area. It is your responsibility to invesƟgate and comply with all applicable laws affecƟng your 
Franchised Business. 

General DescripƟon of the Market and CompeƟƟon 
 
The market for goods and/or services that will be offered by the Franchised Business industry is developing with 
compeƟƟon from local and naƟonal brands. The coffee and espresso drinks, smoothies, sodas, teas, shaved ice, 
other beverages, baked goods, and desserts industries are not seasonal. 
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The target audience for a The Rush Coffee business is community events, corporate events, private catering 
events, street fairs, farmers markets, and elementary schools (e.g., to serve teaches and parents during drop-off 
in the mornings). We are also a great soluƟon for employee, client, and teacher appreciaƟon events, catering for 
parƟes (e.g., office parƟes, weddings, baby showers, etc.). 
 

ITEM 2:  BUSINESS EXPERIENCE 

Co-Founder and Managing Member: Parsegh Oksayan 
 
Mr. Oksayan is our co-founder and has served as one of our Managing Members since our incepƟon in June 2021.  
He is also the co-founder our affiliate, The Rush Coffee, LLC, and has served as one of its Managing Members 
since its incepƟon in January 2017.  All posiƟons listed above for Mr. Oksayan are located in San Marcos, 
California.  Mr. Oksayan is the spouse of our other co-founder and Managing Member, Claire Oksayan. 

Co-Founder/Owner and Managing Member: Clarice “Claire” Oksayan 
 
Mrs. Oksayan is our co-founder and has served as one of our Managing Members since our incepƟon in June 
2021.  She is also the co-founder our affiliate, The Rush Coffee, LLC, and has served as one of its Managing 
Members since its incepƟon in January 2017.  All posiƟons listed above for Mrs. Oksayan are located in San 
Marcos, California.  Mrs. Oksayan is the spouse of our other co-founder and Managing Member, Parsegh 
Oksayan. 
 

ITEM 3:  LITIGATION 
 
No liƟgaƟon is required to be disclosed in this item. 
 

ITEM 4:  BANKRUPTCY 
 
No bankruptcy informaƟon is required to be disclosed in this item. 
 

ITEM 5:  INITIAL FEES 

Franchise Agreement/IniƟal Franchise Fee 
 
You must pay us a lump sum, iniƟal franchise fee (“IniƟal Franchise Fee”) in the amount of $22,000 to establish 
a single The Rush Coffee Franchised Business under a Franchise Agreement.  If you are an exisƟng The Rush 
Coffee franchisee purchasing an addiƟonal Franchised Business under a Franchise Agreement, the IniƟal 
Franchisee Fee will be reduced to $17,000 for the addiƟonal Franchised Business.  The IniƟal Franchise Fee is 
considered fully earned upon receipt and is therefore nonrefundable. 
 
U.S. Military Veterans Discount 
 
To provide support to veterans of the U.S. military forces, we offer to all qualifying veterans the opportunity to 
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purchase an iniƟal franchise at a 5% discount on the IniƟal Franchise Fee.  To qualify for this discount, you must 
be a veteran who has received an honorable discharge from any branch of the U.S. Military or Coast Guard.  You 
must provide us with documentaƟon verifying your service, such as an idenƟficaƟon card indicaƟng your status 
as a veteran or your military service discharge records (e.g., DD Form.)  This discount is available for new 
franchisees only.  The program is available only to qualified veterans operaƟng their franchise as individual 
proprietors, or who hold a majority ownership interest in a partnership, corporaƟon, or limited liability company 
that owns the franchise.  The price reducƟon applies only to the first franchise acquired by a veteran.  If you are 
a partnership, corporaƟon or limited liability company, your status as a parƟcipaƟng veteran must be submiƩed 
to us before you sign the Franchise Agreement, and you must maintain a majority interest in the partnership, 
corporaƟon or limited liability company for a minimum of three consecuƟve years aŌer execuƟng the Franchise 
Agreement, or you will be required to pay us the iniƟal savings. 

Area Development Agreement/Development Fee 
 
If you wish to reserve a protected geographic area in which to develop two (2) or more The Rush Coffee 
Franchised Businesses, you will sign an Area Development Agreement with us. You will pay us a fee 
(“Development Fee”) in an amount equal to $22,000 for the first Franchised Business and $17,000 for each 
addiƟonal Franchised Business to be developed under the terms of the Area Development Agreement.  The 
Development Fee is payable 1/2 upon signing the Area Developer Agreement and 1/2 upon signing the first 
Franchise Agreement.  The Area Development Fee is considered fully earned and is therefore non-refundable 
upon payment. 
 
The IniƟal Franchise Fee will be reduced to $17,000 for the second and each subsequent Franchised Business 
you develop under an Area Development Agreement.  Each Ɵme you sign a Franchise Agreement for a Franchised 
Business, we will credit the amount paid for the Franchised Business, as part of the Development Fee, against 
the IniƟal Franchise Fee due for such Franchised Business. 
 
Except as provided above, the IniƟal Franchise Fee is uniform to all franchisees under this offering. 
 
We reserve the opƟon to discount iniƟal fees, disconƟnue discount(s) offers at any Ɵme, or offer new discounts 
in the future. 

Other IniƟal Fees/Startup Package 
 
Before starƟng your Franchised Business, you must pay us $1,200 for a “Startup Package”, which includes a 1-
week supply of coffee, flavored syrups, frappe mix, smoothie mix, teas, straws, cups, lids, printed coffee sleeves, 
milk, and accessories.  You will pay us this fee by check or electronic funds transfer (“EFT”).  The cost of the 
Startup Packages is nonrefundable. 
 

[Remainder of Page IntenƟonally LeŌ Blank] 
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ITEM 6:  OTHER FEES 
 

TYPE OF FEE AMOUNT DUE DATE REMARKS 

Royalty Fee 5% of Gross Revenues1 each 
month aŌer opening for 

months 1-6; $500 per month 
for months 7 through 12; and 
beginning in month 13, $750 
per month plus 1% of Gross 

Revenues 

15th of each 
month 

Royalty Fees are payable by 
electronic funds transfer 

MarkeƟng Fund 
ContribuƟon 

Currently, no fee. 
When a MarkeƟng Fund is 

established, 1%-3% of Gross 
Revenues1 

15th of each 
month 

If we establish a MarkeƟng 
Fund, you will be required to 
begin making a MarkeƟng 
Fund ContribuƟon upon 30 
days’ wriƩen noƟce from us.  
We can increase or decrease 
this amount upon 30 days’ 
noƟce to you, but no increase 
will be more than 3% of your 
Gross Revenues. 

Local AdverƟsing  Currently not required but 
recommended.   

Amount spent at your 
discreƟon. 

As incurred We do not currently require 
that you spend any amount 
on local adverƟsing to 
promote your Franchised 
Business, but we may do so in 
the future. 

Ongoing 
purchases of The 
Rush Coffee 
Branded Products 
and other 
Products2 

Varies, based on the type and 
amount of products you  

purchase. 
 

Minimum IniƟal Order: $216  
ThereaŌer, no minimum order.   

Before delivery 
or pickup of 

order. 

We will supply you with a list 
of our proprietary products 
and the price of each item 
that is available for purchase 
from us.  This list and the item 
prices may be modified by us 
from Ɵme to Ɵme. 

Late Fees $50 per day Upon demand A late fee must be paid on any 
payment to us that is more 
than 5 calendar days late 

Interest 10% per annum, or the 
maximum permiƩed by law, 

whichever is less 

Upon demand In addiƟon to the Late Fee, 
interest is assessed on any 
payment to us that is more 
than 30 calendar days late. 
The interest accrues from the 
date the payment was due 

Insurance3 Amount of premium paid by 
The Rush Coffee Franchise 

Group LLC plus 20% 

Upon demand If you do not purchase 
insurance coverage as 
required (see Item 8), you 
must reimburse us this 
amount to secure insurance 
coverage 
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TYPE OF FEE AMOUNT DUE DATE REMARKS 

AddiƟonal 
Training and 
ConvenƟons4 

No charge for iniƟal training; 
$300 per day, plus travel 

expenses, for addiƟonal onsite 
training and support; 

Upon your 
registraƟon for 
the training or 

convenƟon 

For training and support 
beyond the iniƟal training, 
you must pay the current 
training fee 

Transfer Fee $4,000 Prior to the 
transfer of 
Franchised 

Business or Area 
Development 

Agreement 

A transfer includes any sale, 
assignment, conveyance, 
giving away, pledging, 
mortgaging, or otherwise 
encumbering any interest in 
the Franchised Business 

Renewal Franchise 
Fee 

50% of the then-current iniƟal 
franchise fee 

At least 9 
months before 

the expiraƟon of 
the applicable 

Franchise 
Agreement 

In addiƟon to paying this fee, 
other condiƟons must be met, 
as listed in the Franchise 
Agreement 

Interim Franchise 
Royalty Fees 

Franchisor’s then-current 
Royalty Fee, plus an addiƟonal 

2% of gross revenues 

15th of each 
month when 

applicable 

An Interim Franchise Fee 
applies if your Franchise 
Agreement expires, no 
renewal Franchise Agreement 
is signed, and you conƟnue 
operaƟon of the Franchised 
Business 

RelocaƟon Fee Variable When 
applicable 

If you relocate your 
Franchised Business, you must 
reimburse us for the cost and 
expense we incur, if any, in 
connecƟon with your 
relocaƟon 

Step-In Right 
Expenses5 

Variable As incurred If you are absent, ill, or unable 
to operate the Franchised 
Business, or fail to pay taxes 
or required amounts, or the 
Franchised Business is having 
a significant negaƟve impact 
on the Franchisor, we may 
step-in and take over 
operaƟons of the Franchised 
Business, and you must 
reimburse us for all such 
associated costs and expenses 
(e.g., labor costs, aƩorneys’ 
fees, etc.) 
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TYPE OF FEE AMOUNT DUE DATE REMARKS 

Audit All costs of inspecƟon and audit Upon demand You must reimburse us audit 
expenses if the audit is 
iniƟated due to your non-
compliance with the terms 
herein or the Rush Coffee’s 
OperaƟng Manual or if an 
inspecƟon reveals an 
understatement of Gross 
Revenues by 3% or more 

System Standard 
ViolaƟon 

All costs of inspecƟon and audit Upon demand If you fail to adhere to the 
System Standards, you must 
reimburse us for any and all 
costs and expenses associated 
with counsel, inspecƟon, 
support, assistance, 
enforcement rendered to and 
against Franchisee regarding 
said System Standards 
violaƟon and/or non-
compliance 

Cost of 
Enforcement 

Cost including aƩorneys’ fees Upon demand You must reimburse us for all 
costs to enforce obligaƟons 
under the Franchise 
Agreement if we prevail 

IndemnificaƟon Cost including aƩorneys’ fees Upon demand You must defend suits at your 
cost and hold us harmless 
against suits involving 
damages resulƟng from your 
operaƟon of the Franchised 
Business 

Sales/Use Taxes6 Variable Payable with 
your royalty fee  

payments 

You must pay any state or 
local sales or use tax that may 
be assessed on fees paid to us 

AlternaƟve 
Supplier Approval7 

Our incurred costs, plus 15% to 
cover administraƟve overhead. 

At Ɵme of 
request. 

These costs include 
reimbursement to us for any 
travel costs and legal fees. 

NOTES TO CHART: 
 
1. “Gross Revenues” means any money and other consideraƟon you receive in connecƟon with the 
ownership or operaƟon of your Franchised Business and from the sale of any authorized products and services or 
from the sale of any goods or services under the Marks. Gross Revenues do not include sales or excise taxes that 
are separately stated and that you are required to collect from customers and pay to a governmental taxing 
authority. 
 
2. You must purchase all your coffee, frappe mix, tea, printed cups and coffee sleeves, and other branded 
products, and certain related supplies that you will use in the operaƟon of the Franchised Business from us.  Your 
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iniƟal order must be for a minimum of $216 to cover an iniƟal set of products specified by us, which is in addiƟon 
to the “Startup Package” that you must purchase from us before opening (as described in Item 5.)  You will conƟnue 
to purchase branded products and other products from us to replenish your inventory as you sell the items.  AŌer 
your iniƟal order, you are not currently required to purchase any minimum amount when ordering products from 
us.  You will pay us this fee by check or EFT. 
 
3. You must obtain the insurance coverage described in Item 8.  
 
4. We provide an iniƟal tuiƟon-free training program that includes orientaƟon to The Rush Coffee’s System 
Standards, customer service, operaƟonal management, financial management, computer soŌware use, 
adverƟsing and markeƟng, and reporƟng procedures. The iniƟal tuiƟon-free training Ɵme varies depending on 
your experience, but for a new Franchisee, it typically lasts about 2 weeks. In addiƟon, we offer addiƟonal onsite 
assistance and training at our then applicable hourly rate (which is currently $300 per day, plus travel expenses). 
We may provide addiƟonal training programs at reasonable Ɵmes and at locaƟons selected by us during the term 
of the Franchise Agreement. We may also require aƩendance at other addiƟonal training programs.  
 
5. We may step in to operate your Franchised Business if, in our commercially reasonable discreƟon, we 
deem it necessary to prevent any interrupƟon or harm to the Franchised Business or to The Rush Coffee or its 
other franchisees. Such reasons may include, without limitaƟon, our determinaƟon that you: (a) are incapable of 
operaƟng the Franchised Business (e.g., you suffer from a mental or emoƟonal disorder that prevents you from 
fulfilling your obligaƟons, or you are otherwise absent as a result of your incapacitaƟon or death); (b) have failed 
to pay when due any taxes or assessments owed by the Franchised Business; (c) have failed to pay when due any 
liens or encumbrances of every kind placed upon or against your business property; or (d) we decide that 
operaƟonal problems require us to operate the Franchised Business for a Ɵme. All revenue derived from our 
operaƟon of Franchised Business will be credited to a separate account for your benefit, but we may pay from that 
account all expenses, debts, and liabiliƟes that we incur during our operaƟon of Franchised Business. 
 
6. The royalƟes or other fees you pay to us may be enƟrely or parƟally subject to state or local sales or use 
tax, depending upon the laws in your state. If we are required to pay these taxes in your state, you must add the 
tax to what you pay us. All fees are nonrefundable and uniformly imposed on all new franchisees. Some franchisees 
under prior agreement or future versions of our Franchise Agreement or by negoƟated agreements may be 
obligated to pay more, less, or different fees than what is listed here. 
 
7. You may request the approval of an item, product, service, or supplier.  We may require you to pre-pay 
any reasonable charges connected with our review and evaluaƟon of any proposal. 
 
 

[Remainder of Page IntenƟonally LeŌ Blank] 
 
 

ITEM 7:  ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 
 

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT FOR A THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISED BUSINESS 
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TYPE OF EXPENDITURE AMOUNT METHOD OF 
PAYMENT WHEN DUE TO WHOM PAYMENT 

IS TO BE MADE 

Initial Franchise Fee1 $22,000 Lump Sum via 
check or wire 

At signing of 
Franchise 

Agreement 
Us 

Vehicle2  $40,000 - $190,000  As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons Supplier 

Startup Package3 $1,200 Lump Sum Before beginning 
operaƟons Us 

IniƟal Inventory4  
(3 months) $3,000 - $4,000 As arranged 

Before and aŌer 
beginning 
operaƟons 

Us, Approved 
Suppliers, and Vendors 

Insurance5  $500 - $2,000 As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons Insurance companies 

Signage6 $150 - $250 As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons Approved Suppliers 

Office Equipment & 
Supplies7  $75 - $500 As arranged Before beginning 

operaƟons 
Approved Suppliers 

and Vendors 
Computer System 
(Hardware, SoŌware, POS 
System, etc.)8 

$150 - $500 As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons 

Approved Suppliers 
and Vendors 

Training9  $100 - $3,000 As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons 

Airlines, Hotels, 
Restaurants, and Other 

Suppliers 

Licenses & Permits10 $25 - $1,000 As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons Licensing authoriƟes 

Legal & AccounƟng11  $0 - $1,200 As arranged As incurred, 
varied Ɵmes 

AƩorney, Accountant, 
and Other Consultants 

Grand Opening AdverƟsing12 $100 - $250 As arranged 

Before opening 
and during the 

first 3 months of 
operaƟon 

Vendors 

Additional Funds13 
(3 Months)  $5,000 - $15,000 As arranged  As incurred, 

varied times 
Employees and 

Vendors 
TOTAL ESTIMATED INITIAL 
INVESTMENT $72,300 - $240,900    

 
All amounts are non-refundable unless otherwise noted.  Amounts payable to suppliers/vendors may be 

refundable according to arrangements you make with the vendor. 
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YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT PURSUANT TO AN AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

TYPE OF EXPENDITURE AMOUNT METHOD OF 
PAYMENT WHEN DUE 

TO WHOM 
PAYMENT IS TO BE 

MADE 

Development Fee1 $39,000 Lump Sum via 
check or wire 

50% at signing of 
Area Development 

Agreement and 
50% at signing of  

1st Franchise 
Agreement 

Us 

Vehicle2  $40,000 - $190,000  As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons Supplier 

Startup Package3 $1,200 Lump Sum Before beginning 
operaƟons Us 

IniƟal Inventory4  
(3 months) $3,000 - $4,000 As arranged 

Before and aŌer 
beginning 
operaƟons 

Us, Approved 
Suppliers, and 

Vendors 

Insurance5  $500 - $2,000 As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons Insurance companies 

Signage6 $150 - $250 As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons Approved Suppliers 

Office Equipment & 
Supplies7  $75 - $500 As arranged Before beginning 

operaƟons 
Approved Suppliers 

and Vendors 
Computer System 
(Hardware, SoŌware, POS 
System, etc.)8 

$150 - $500 As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons 

Approved Suppliers 
and Vendors 

Training9  $100 - $3,000 As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons 

Airlines, Hotels, 
Restaurants, and 
Other Suppliers 

Licenses & Permits10 $25 - $1,000 As arranged Before beginning 
operaƟons Licensing authoriƟes 

Legal & AccounƟng11  $0 - $1,200 As arranged As incurred, varied 
Ɵmes 

AƩorney, Accountant, 
and Other 

Consultants 

Grand Opening AdverƟsing12 $100 - $250 As arranged 

Before opening 
and during the 

first 3 months of 
operaƟon 

Vendors 

Additional Funds13 
(3 Months)  $5,000 - $15,000 As arranged  As incurred, varied 

times 
Employees and 

Vendors  
TOTAL ESTIMATED INITIAL 
INVESTMENT $89,300 - $257,900    

 
All amounts are non-refundable unless otherwise noted.  Amounts payable to suppliers/vendors may be 

refundable according to arrangements you make with the vendor.  
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NOTES TO CHARTS FOR YOUR INITIAL INVESTMENT: 
 
1. IniƟal Franchise Fee and Development Fee.  The IniƟal Franchise Fee for a single The Rush Coffee franchise 
is $22,000.  If you are an exisƟng The Rush Coffee Franchisee purchasing another The Rush Coffee franchise, the 
IniƟal Franchise Fee will be reduced to $17,000.  The Development Fee will be an amount equal to $22,000 for the 
first franchise and $17,000 for each addiƟonal franchise developed under the Area Development Agreement.   The 
development fee is payable 1/2 upon signing the Area Developer Agreement and 1/2 upon signing the first 
Franchise Agreement.  The IniƟal Franchise Fee and the Development Fee are not refundable.  The Development 
Fee disclosed in the chart above reflects the amount for the minimum required two (2) franchises to be developed 
under and Area Development Agreement.    
 
2. Vehicle.  You will operate your Franchised Business from a truck or trailer equipped with The Rush Coffee 
mobile package. The upper esƟmate assumes you will purchase a new van or truck and the lower esƟmate assumes 
you will purchase a mobile trailer or finance the purchase of a truck.  Some sellers may provide a refund if you 
cancel before branding or taking possession of the truck or trailer.  Our affiliate, The Rush Coffee, LLC, may have, 
from Ɵme to Ɵme, new or used vehicles that are turn-key ready for purchase by our franchisees.  
 
3. Startup Package.  Before starƟng your Franchised Business, you must pay us $1,200 for a “Startup Package” 
that includes a 1-week supply of coffee, flavored syrups, frappe mix, smoothie mix, teas, straws, cups, lids, printed 
coffee sleeves, milk, and accessories.  The amount charged for this Startup Package is uniformly charged for all 
franchisees and is nonrefundable. 
 
4. IniƟal Inventory.  This range covers the estimated initial inventory that you will purchase from us, our designated 
approved supplier(s) and other vendors in the first 3 months of operations.  This esƟmate includes approximately 
$1,000 of branded products and other products purchased from us, and approximately $2,000 - $3,000 of products 
purchased from third-party suppliers, including milk, syrups, chai, chocolate and caramel sauces, smoothie mix, 
sparkling water, Red Bull energy drinks, protein drinks, cups, lids, straws, napkins, carry trays, cleaning supplies, 
and storage/organizaƟonal soluƟons for inside the truck. 
 
5. Insurance.  You must obtain the insurance coverage described in Item 8. 
 
6. Signage.  This range includes the cost of all signage used in your Franchised Business. The signage 
requirements and costs will vary based upon a number of factors, including without limitaƟon, the size and locaƟon 
of the vehicle you purchase, landlord/HOA requirements, local wage rates for installaƟon, etc. The amounts you 
pay for signage are typically non-refundable. You should inquire about the return and refund policy of the suppliers 
at or before the Ɵme of purchase. We must approve all signage before you order it.  
 
7. Office Supplies & Equipment.  You must purchase general office supplies including staƟonery, business 
cards, and typical office equipment.  The high end of the esƟmate includes the purchase of a printer and laminator.  
There are a variety of factors that may affect your cost of office equipment and supplies (e.g., market condiƟons, 
compeƟƟon amongst suppliers, etc.). We do not know if the amounts you pay for office equipment and supplies 
will be refundable. Factors determining whether office equipment and supplies are refundable typically include 
the condiƟon of the items at Ɵme of return, level of use, and length of Ɵme of possession. You should inquire 
about the return and refund policy of the suppliers at or before the Ɵme of purchase. 
 
8. Computer System.  You must purchase the computer equipment, hardware, and soŌware necessary for 
operaƟng the Franchised Business. We currently require you to have and use Square for your point of sale and 
invoicing. The amounts you pay for computer equipment are typically non-refundable, or if refundable, may be 
subject to a “restocking” fee. You should inquire about the return and refund policy of the suppliers at or before 
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the Ɵme of purchasing. You must use the point of sale and invoicing system that we designate (which, as was 
indicated above, is currently Square). 
 
9. Training.  The cost of iniƟal training for you and your Franchised Business’ Designated Manager is included 
in the iniƟal franchise fee. The amount in the table above reflects your travel and stay expenses during the iniƟal 
training. You must pay us addiƟonal tuiƟon for addiƟonal trainees beyond you and your Designated Manager at 
our then-current rate (now $300 per day of training, per person), which is currently $300 per day of training, per 
person and $300 per day plus travel expenses for onsite training.  
 
10. Licenses & Permits. State and local government agencies typically charge fees for occupancy permits, 
operaƟng licenses, health department licenses, and construcƟon permits. Your actual costs may vary from the 
esƟmates based on the requirements of state and local government agencies. These fees are typically non-
refundable. You should inquire about the cancellaƟon and refund policy of the agencies at or before the Ɵme of 
payment. 
 
11. Legal & AccounƟng. You should employ an aƩorney, an accountant, and other professionals to assist you 
in establishing your Franchised Business. Such fees may vary from locaƟon to locaƟon depending on the prevailing 
rates of local aƩorneys, accountants, and consultants. These fees are typically non-refundable. You should inquire 
about the refund policy of the aƩorney, accountant, or consultant at or before the Ɵme of hiring. 
 
12. Grand Opening AdverƟsing. This is the amount that we recommend you spend on adverƟsing upon 
opening. The range will depend on your Territory and local market demographics. 
 
13. AddiƟonal Funds.  We recommend that at all Ɵmes while you’re operaƟng the Franchised Business, you 
have a minimum amount of money available to cover 3 months of your operaƟng expenses—e.g., vehicle-related 
expenses, supplies, event vendor fees, professional fees, labor costs, etc. AddiƟonal working capital may be 
required if sales are low or operaƟng costs are high.  These expenses are typically non-refundable. In compiling 
this chart, we relied on research and invesƟgaƟon regarding the operaƟng history, knowledge, and experience of 
similar businesses and the startup operaƟon of The Rush Coffee businesses.  The amounts shown are esƟmates 
only and may vary for many reasons, including without limitaƟon, the capabiliƟes of your management team and 
your business experience and acumen. 

ITEM 8:  RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

SpecificaƟons—Generally 
 
The Rush Coffee worked hard to establish a set of uniform specificaƟons, standards, operaƟng procedures, and 
rules for the development and operaƟon of your Franchised Business, the Franchisor itself, and all the other 
franchisees (collecƟvely referred to as our “System Standards”). We believe our System Standards help increase 
the demand for our products and services, which in turn help maintain and improve The Rush Coffee’s (and our 
franchisees’) goodwill and reputaƟon for high quality coffee-related products. The System Standards are described 
in OperaƟng Manual, or in subsequent publicaƟons that may be communicated to you.  

Current SpecificaƟons 
 
Below is a lisƟng of The Rush Coffee specificaƟons and System Standards for the idenƟfied categories. 
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Insurance 
 
You are obligated to maintain and keep the following minimum insurance coverage from an insurance company 
with a Best raƟng of “A” or beƩer: (a) comprehensive general liability in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence 
and $2,000,000 in the aggregate; (b) automobile insurance in the amount of $1,000,000; (c) property insurance in 
an amount sufficient to replace the equipment, inventory, the vehicle from which you are operaƟng the Franchised 
Business, and any necessary business-related personal property upon loss or damage; (d) theŌ insurance in the 
amount of $25,000; (e) business interrupƟon insurance in the amount of $100,000; (f) an umbrella policy in at 
least the amount of $1,000,000; (g) accidental medical coverage for you and your employees in at least the sum 
of $25,000; and (h) any other insurance required by applicable law (e.g., worker’s compensaƟon insurance).  
 
All policies must provide for at least 30 calendar days’ noƟce to Franchisor before cancellaƟon, and must name us 
as an addiƟonal insured. Evidence of the required insurance must be in place at least 10 calendar days before you 
begin the operaƟon of your Franchised Business, and a cerƟficate of renewal must be provided no later than 10 
calendar days before the expiraƟon date of each policy.  

The Site of the Franchised Business 
 
As was indicated above, you will operate your Franchised Business from a truck or trailer equipped with The Rush 
Coffee mobile package—i.e., the “Franchised Business Site” or “Site.”  While we do not select the vehicle that you 
purchase and use for your Franchised Business, we must approve the vehicle before you purchase it to ensure that 
it will meet the minimum requirements necessary for you to operate the Franchised Business. 

Supplies, Fixtures, Equipment, Inventory 
 
All the equipment, supplies, fixtures, inventory, and products for your Franchised Business must comply with The 
Rush Coffee System Standards. 

AdverƟsing 
 
You shall use, display, and publish The Rush Coffee Marks per the System Standards. In addiƟon to complying with 
the System Standards, all of your The Rush Coffee adverƟsing—regardless of the medium—must be professional, 
accurate, and in conformity with applicable laws and regulaƟons relaƟng to consumer adverƟsing.  
 
All adverƟsing containing The Rush Coffee Marks must be submiƩed to us for approval prior to implementaƟon. 
Once you submit your adverƟsing to us, we will have 15 calendar days to review the adverƟsing, and within that 
Ɵme frame, we will provide you with wriƩen approval or denial of the adverƟsing materials. Once we have 
approved an item of adverƟsing, you will not be obligated to obtain further permission to conƟnue using such 
adverƟsing in the future. 

Computer System 
 
We currently require you to have and use Square for your point of sale and invoicing. We may, from Ɵme to Ɵme, 
develop or authorize others to develop proprietary soŌware and applicaƟons for use in your Franchised Business, 
that you must purchase/license and use. In such cases, you may be required to execute documents to permit such 
license/use, as well as pay applicable fees for maintenance, updates, upgrades, and support required by us or any 
other approved licensor or approved supplier of such proprietary soŌware programs. 
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GiŌ Cards and Loyalty Programs 
 
You must parƟcipate in all coupon, giŌ card and loyalty programs we may designate from Ɵme to Ɵme. You must 
honor all coupons, giŌ cerƟficates, loyalty programs, and other promoƟons we may insƟtute from Ɵme to Ɵme. 
You may not create or insƟtute any coupon, giŌ card, or loyalty programs unless approved by us in wriƟng.  

Employee Uniforms 
 
Your Franchised Business’s employees and staff may be required to wear uniforms that conform to Franchisor’s 
specificaƟons, which are contained in the OperaƟng Manual. 

Designated and Approved Suppliers 
 
To the extent that we designate a supplier for any products or services sold as part of the Franchised Business, you 
may not use any other supplier to provide those products or services without our express wriƩen consent. We 
may designate new or different approved suppliers from Ɵme to Ɵme, including ourselves or one of our affiliates.  
 
Presently, we are the exclusive supplier of all coffee, frappe mix, tea, printed cups and coffee sleeves, and certain 
other branded products.  You must purchase all of these items from us.  AddiƟonally, we are the non-exclusive 
supplier of smoothie mixes, flavored syrups, and straws.   
 
While you are free to purchase your vehicle or trailer from a variety of manufacturers, we must approve the vehicle 
before you purchase it to ensure that it meets the minimum requirements necessary for you to operate the 
Franchised Business. 
 
With respect to the flavored syrups, smoothie mix, straws, paper goods (other than cups and sleeves), and 
desserts/pastries, while you must use the brands that we designate, you are free to purchase those items from 
our designated vendors or from any other source that you choose. 
 
If you would like to uƟlize a supplier for one or more products or services outside of our exclusivity, you must 
obtain our wriƩen consent. Our general criteria for designaƟng such suppliers include their: (a) ability to meet our 
quality standards; (b) availability; and (c) consistency of their products or services. Our specific criteria for 
designaƟng and approving suppliers are not published and are not made available to franchisees.     
 
To approve a supplier, we require: (a) a sample of the product(s); (b) informaƟon regarding the product’s quality 
standards, availability, and terms and condiƟons of purchase; and (c) any other informaƟon that we may request. 
We may also request a physical inspecƟon of the supplier’s place of business or manufacturing facility, which if 
denied, will be a factor in our ulƟmate decision. We will generally noƟfy you of our decision regarding the supplier 
within 30 calendar days of our receipt of the samples and informaƟon requested (and, if requested, a site visit). 
As a condiƟon of approval, you must reimburse us for all reasonable costs incurred in approving the supplier, 
including without limitaƟon, travel costs and legal fees, plus an addiƟonal 15% to cover our administraƟve 
overhead costs. We reserve the right to revoke the approval of any supplier upon 30 calendar days' wriƩen noƟce 
to you.  

Our Ownership Interest in a Supplier 
 
We are the Approved Supplier for certain retail items (e.g., coffee, logo mugs, etc.) that you must sell at your 
Franchised Business.  Our Co-Founders/Managing Members, Parsegh Oksayan and Claire Oksayan, have an 
ownership interest in us. 
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Revenues from a Supplier 
 
Currently, neither we nor our affiliate derive revenue from any approved supplier or other suppliers.  We have the 
right to receive promoƟonal allowances and rebates, commissions, and other consideraƟon from suppliers.   

Revenue from Franchisee Purchases 
 
During our fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, our revenues from required purchases by The Rush Coffee 
franchisees of proprietary products and other products from us were $16,073, or 35% of our total revenue of 
$45,715. 
 
We esƟmate that assuming the esƟmated minimum iniƟal costs to begin operaƟons and other financial obligaƟons 
are within the ranges described in Item 7 of this disclosure document, the proporƟon of your purchases and leases 
of goods and services from approved suppliers or of products that meet our specificaƟons to be approximately 
80% to 90% of all the purchases and leases necessary to establish your Franchised Business, and approximately 
15% of your ongoing costs once you commence operaƟons. 

NegoƟated Prices and CooperaƟves 
 
While we have not yet negoƟated any special purchase arrangements with suppliers, including for price or terms 
that benefit franchisees, we reserve the right to do so in the future. There are no formal or mandatory purchasing 
or distribuƟon cooperaƟves, but we reserve the right to insƟtute cooperaƟves in the future.   

Material Benefits 
 
We do not provide a material benefit to franchisees based on a franchisee’s purchases of parƟcular products or 
services or the use of parƟcular suppliers. 

Area Development Agreement  
 
The Area Development Agreement does not require you to buy or lease from us or any designated or approved 
suppliers, any goods, services, supplies, fixtures, computer hardware and software, or real estate, according to our 
specifications.  However, you must follow our requirements under the Franchise Agreement for each Franchised 
Business you develop.   

ITEM 9:  FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS 
 

This table lists your principal obligaƟons under the franchise and other agreements. It will help 
you find more detailed informaƟon about your obligaƟons under these agreements and in 
other items of this disclosure document. 
 
The SecƟon references are to those in the Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement unless 
otherwise noted. 
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ObligaƟon SecƟon in Franchise Agreement / 
ADA, RespecƟvely 

Item in This  
Disclosure Document 

 
a. Site selecƟon and acquisiƟon/lease 
 

SecƟon V 
 
Items 6 and 11 

 
b. Pre-opening purchase/leases 
 

SecƟon VI 
 
Item 8 

 
c. Site development and other pre-
opening requirements 
 

SecƟon VI / SecƟon III 

 
Items 6, 7, and 11 

 
d. IniƟal and ongoing training 
 

SecƟon V 
 
Item 11 

 
e. Opening 
 

SecƟons VI and VII  
 
Item 11 

 
f. Fees 
 

SecƟon III / II 
 
Items 5 and 6 

 
g. Compliance with standards and 
policies/operaƟng manual 
 

SecƟon VI   

 
Item 11 

 
h. Trademarks and proprietary 
informaƟon 
 

SecƟons XII and XII / I 

 
Items 13 and 14 

 
i. RestricƟons on products/services 
offered 
 

SecƟon VI 

 
Item 16 

 
j. Warranty and customer service 
requirements 
 

SecƟon XX 

 
Item 11 

 
k. Territorial development and sales 
quotas 
 

SecƟon VII / III 

 
Item 12 

 
l. Ongoing product/service purchases 
 

SecƟons VI and VII 
 
Item 8 

 
m. Maintenance, appearance, and 
remodeling requirements 
 

SecƟon VI 

 
Item 11 
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ObligaƟon SecƟon in Franchise Agreement / 
ADA, RespecƟvely 

Item in This  
Disclosure Document 

 
n. Insurance 
 

SecƟon XI 
 
Items 6 and 8 

 
o. AdverƟsing 
 

Not Applicable 
 
Not Applicable 

 
p. IndemnificaƟon 
 

SecƟon XI / SecƟon XI 
 
Item 6 

 
q. Owner’s parƟcipaƟon/ 
management/staffing 
 

SecƟons V, VII, and VIII 

 
Items 11 and 15 

 
r. Records and reports 
 

SecƟons IX and X 
 
Item 6 

 
s. InspecƟons and audits 
 

SecƟon X 
 
Item 17 

 
t. Transfer 
 

SecƟons XVI / VIII 
 
Item 17 

 
u. Renewal 
 

SecƟon II 
 
Item 17 

 
v. Post-terminaƟon obligaƟons 
 

SecƟon XVIII 
Item 17 

 
w. Non-compeƟƟon covenants 
 

SecƟon XIX / IX 
 
Item 17 

 
x. Dispute resoluƟon 
 

SecƟon XXIII / XI 
 
Item 17 

 
y. Other:  
 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

 

ITEM 10: FINANCING 
 
We do not offer any direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee any notes, leases, or financial obligaƟons. 
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ITEM 11: FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND 
TRAINING 

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance. 

Pre-Opening ObligaƟons 
 
1. You will operate your Franchised Business from the Franchised Business Site—i.e., from the vehicle described 

elsewhere in this document. While we do not select the vehicle that you purchase and use for your 
Franchised Business, we must approve the vehicle before you purchase it to ensure that it will meet the 
minimum requirements necessary for you to operate the Franchised Business. (SecƟon IV of the Franchise 
Agreement). 

 
2.  For your Site, we provide branding specificaƟons for your mobile vehicle. (SecƟon IV of the Franchise 

Agreement). 
 
3.  We provide you with the standards, specificaƟons, and a list of designated and approved suppliers for all 

décor, equipment, signs, fixtures, opening inventory, supplies, products, and other materials you will need 
to operate the Franchised Business. We do not deliver or install equipment for your site. We are the sole 
exclusive supplier of all coffee, frappe mix, teas, straws, and printed coffee sleeves and the nonexclusive 
supplier of  smoothie mixes to The Rush Coffee franchisees. We do not have any affiliates, parents, or 
predecessors that provide products or services to our franchises. Delivery is provided, but not installaƟon. 
(SecƟon VI of the Franchise Agreement). 

 
4.  We provide a lisƟng of all products and services that your Franchised Business may offer. Franchise 

Agreement ArƟcle VI). 
 
5.  We provide final wriƩen approval prior to the opening of your Franchised Business. (SecƟon IV of the 

Franchise Agreement). 
 
6.  We provide 2 calendar days of free onsite assistance at your grand opening or ribbon-cuƫng ceremony.  We 

may provide addiƟonal onsite assistance at our then-current rate, which currently is $300 per day plus travel 
expenses. (SecƟon V of the Franchise Agreement). 

 
7.  We approve the Designated Manager of your Franchised Business. We do not select or hire your employees. 

(SecƟon VIII of the Franchise Agreement). 
 
8.  We provide you with an iniƟal training program as further described in this item. (SecƟon V of the 

Franchise Agreement). 
 
9.  We loan or make available to you a copy of the OperaƟng Manual, which is confidenƟal and will remain our 

property. We may modify the OperaƟng Manual from Ɵme to Ɵme. The table of contents for the OperaƟng 
Manual is provided in Exhibit J. The current OperaƟng Manual has a total of approximately 120 pages. 
(SecƟon XIII of the Franchise Agreement). 

AŌer the Franchised Business Opens 
 
1.  For your Site, we provide branding specificaƟons for your vehicle for the site of your Franchised Business 

upon relocaƟon or remodeling or updaƟng upon relocaƟon. (SecƟon IV of the Franchise Agreement). 
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2.  We maintain and provide updated System Standards—i.e., standards, specificaƟons, and designated and 

approved suppliers for all the equipment, supplies, products, and other materials you will need to operate 
the Franchised Business. (SecƟon VI of the Franchise Agreement). 

 
3.  We maintain and provide an updated lisƟng of all products and services that your Franchised Business may 

offer. (Franchise Agreement ArƟcle VI) 
 
4.  We provide iniƟal training for replacement staff and managers. (SecƟon V of the Franchise Agreement) 
 
5.  We may provide addiƟonal and ongoing training for staff and managers. (SecƟon V of the Franchise 

Agreement). 
 
6.  If you do not resolve a dispute with another franchisee, we may invesƟgate the maƩer and work to resolve 

the dispute. (Franchise Agreement VII). 
 
7.  We provide conƟnuing advice and/or assistance in operaƟng your Franchised Business. (SecƟon V of the 

Franchise Agreement). 
 
8.  We will provide you with any updates and changes we might make to the OperaƟng Manual. (SecƟon XV of 

the Franchise Agreement). 
 
9.  We may review your The Rush Coffee adverƟsing material before you implement them. (SecƟon XV of the 

Franchise Agreement) 
 
10.  To the extent permiƩed by law, we set and establish pricing for Franchised Business products to promote 

our System (e.g., uniformity and consistency). You must fully parƟcipate, honor, and comply with any and all 
System Standards, local, regional, seasonal, promoƟonal, and other programs, iniƟaƟves, and campaigns 
adopted by us that we ask you to parƟcipate in. (SecƟon VI of the Franchise Agreement) 

 
11.  We approve any replacement Designated Manager of your Franchised Business. We do not select or hire 

your employees. (SecƟon VIII of the Franchise Agreement). 
 
12. We will maintain and administer a naƟonal MarkeƟng Fund when/if we establish one. (SecƟon XV of the 

Franchise Agreement). 

AdverƟsing 

MarkeƟng Fund 
 
We may establish a “MarkeƟng Fund” in the future to promote The Rush Coffee Businesses and The Rush Coffee 
Brand.  When and if the MarkeƟng Fund is established, you will be required to make a contribuƟon (“MarkeƟng 
Fund ContribuƟon”) in an amount ranging from 1% - 3% of your annual Gross Revenues to the MarkeƟng Fund.  
You will pay the MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon to us at the same Ɵme and in the same manner as the Royalty Fee.  
The MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon may be increased or decreased, at our discreƟon, but no increase will exceed 
3% of your Gross Revenues.  We will give you at least thirty (30) days wriƩen noƟce before any increase in the 
MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon.  All franchisees will contribute at the same rate.  We will make contribuƟons to the 
MarkeƟng Fund for The Rush Coffee Businesses owned by us or our affiliate on the same basis as our franchisees.  
We will manage the MarkeƟng Fund and have sole discreƟon over all maƩers relaƟng to it. 
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Once established, the MarkeƟng Fund may be used for (among other things) product development; signage; 
creaƟon, producƟon and distribuƟon of markeƟng, adverƟsing, public relaƟons and other materials in any 
medium, including the Internet; administraƟon expenses; legal fees incurred by or spent defending the MarkeƟng 
Fund, brand/image campaigns; media; naƟonal, regional and other markeƟng programs; acƟviƟes to promote 
current and/or future The Rush Coffee Businesses; agency and consulƟng services; research, any expenses 
approved by Franchisor and associated with franchisee advisory groups (if any); and all or porƟons of the salaries, 
benefits or expenses of people Franchisor employs who work on MarkeƟng Fund maƩers (except that such 
salaries, benefits or expenses will be charged pro rata based on the Ɵme they spend on MarkeƟng Fund maƩers.)   
 
No funds in the MarkeƟng Fund will be used for adverƟsing that is principally a solicitaƟon for the sale of franchises, 
but we may include a brief statement regarding the availability of the The Rush Coffee franchises in adverƟsing 
and other items produced using the MarkeƟng Fund.  

 
We have no obligaƟon to ensure that MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟons are spent on adverƟsing in your market area 
or territory, and we have no obligaƟon to ensure that your Franchised Business benefits directly or on a pro rata 
basis from the placement of any adverƟsing. 
 
We anƟcipate that adverƟsing will be naƟonal and regional in scope, but unƟl we establish a naƟonal adverƟsing 
campaign, all contribuƟons to the MarkeƟng Fund will be spent in your own specified region.  

 
AdverƟsing may be prepared in-house or by a naƟonal or regional adverƟsing agency. 
 
Any sums paid to the MarkeƟng Fund that are not spent in the year they are collected will be carried over to the 
following year.   
 
We will prepare, and furnish to you upon wriƩen request, an annual, unaudited statement of funds collected and 
costs incurred.  We are not required to have the AdverƟsing Fund statements audited, but if we do so, any related 
accounƟng/audiƟng costs will be paid by the MarkeƟng Fund. 

AdverƟsing CooperaƟve 
 
We have no plans to create a local or regional adverƟsing cooperaƟve.  We do not require you to join or parƟcipate 
in any local or regional adverƟsing cooperaƟve.  

Local AdverƟsing 
 
We have no obligaƟon to spend any amount on adverƟsing in the area or territory in which your Franchised 
Business is located.  You are responsible for local markeƟng acƟviƟes to aƩract customers to your Franchised 
Business. Examples of local adverƟsing include billboards, newspaper ads, bench signs, promoƟonal acƟviƟes, 
community events and youth sports team sponsorships, charitable sponsorships, radio, cable, and television.  

We do not currently require that you spend any amount on local adverƟsing to promote your Franchised Business, 
but we may do so in the future.  How and the amount you spend on local adverƟsing is at your discreƟon.  

Your AdverƟsing 
 
You must submit to us for our prior wriƩen approval samples of all adverƟsing and promoƟonal plans, materials, 
and all other materials displaying the Marks, and we will provide you with wriƩen approval or disapproval within 
15 calendar days. You may not use your own adverƟsing materials or other materials that bear the Marks unless 
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you have received our prior wriƩen approval. We have a perpetual royalty free right to use any Franchisee-
developed adverƟsing. 
 
You may not establish or maintain a domain name, an internet website, or webpage that relates to or adverƟses 
your Franchised Business or displays the Marks, as we reserve the exclusive right to control any websites or web 
pages concerning The Rush Coffee franchises and Marks. 

Social Media 
 
You must adverƟse and promote your Franchised Business via social media, which may be comprised of pages, 
communicaƟons, and content located on third-party plaƞorms using the Marks as specified by us (collecƟvely, the 
"Social Media"). For all such Social Media, you must grant us administrator access.  
 
You must post to Instagram and Facebook at least once per week. While you are not obligated to submit your 
Social Media posts to us for review or approval, if we ask you to edit or remove any Social Media post, you must 
do so immediately.  
 
All uses of the Social Media and communicaƟon channels and uses must be established in accordance, and at all-
Ɵme remain in compliance with, the OperaƟng Manual and System Standards.  
 
We will be the sole owner of all related intellectual property rights of all Social Media and other digital and media 
accounts and all content posted on Social Media. 

GiŌ Cards and Loyalty Programs 
 
You must parƟcipate in all coupon, giŌ card, and loyalty programs we may designate from Ɵme to Ɵme. You must 
honor all coupons, giŌ cerƟficates, loyalty programs, and other promoƟons we may insƟtute from Ɵme to Ɵme. 
You may not create or insƟtute any coupon, giŌ card, or loyalty programs unless authorized in wriƟng by us. 

Computer/SoŌware Requirements 
 
We currently require you to have and use Square for your point of sale and invoicing. We esƟmate the cost of 
leasing or purchasing the computer system/soŌware to be $150 to $500.  
 
We may, from Ɵme to Ɵme, develop or authorize others to develop proprietary soŌware and applicaƟons for use 
in your Franchised Business that you must purchase/license and use (together, with the above-referenced 
requirement to use Square, the “Computer System”). In such cases, you may be required to execute documents to 
permit such license/use, as well as pay applicable fees for maintenance, updates, upgrades, and support required 
by us or any other approved licensor or approved supplier of such proprietary soŌware programs. 
    
It is your obligaƟon to maintain, repair, upgrade, and update your Computer System. Without a contractual limit 
on frequency and cost, you are required to lease, buy, use, update, and upgrade the computer hardware and 
soŌware, mobile, internet, and other applicaƟons, or other programs that we designate and sƟpulate. We are not 
required, and we do not require our affiliates or third parƟes, to maintain, repair, upgrade, and update your 
Computer System. We esƟmate the annual costs of any opƟonal or required maintenance updaƟng, upgrading, or 
support contracts for the Computer Systems to be $500 to $1,000 (ArƟcle X of the Franchise Agreement). 
 
You will use your Computer System to maintain informaƟon about your customers, prepare proposals and invoices, 
transmit payment for products or services, maintain the financial records of the Franchised Business, access 
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internet sites, and communicate with prospecƟve and current customers, suppliers us, and others via e-mail. You 
must provide us with independent access to all of the informaƟon that will be generated and stored on your 
computer/soŌware system if we request it, including the delivery of a backup of your enƟre database. You 
acknowledge that there are no contractual limitaƟons on our right to access the informaƟon. 

Site SelecƟon and Opening 
 
The Franchised Business is a vehicle (i.e., a truck with a box or a trailer) equipped with The Rush Coffee mobile 
package. While we do not select your vehicle, your selecƟon is subject to our pre-approval (SecƟon IV of the 
Franchise Agreement). We do not own or lease any vehicles to franchisees for the operaƟon of the Franchised 
Business.  
 
To obtain our approval, you must provide us with all informaƟon and documents about the vehicle that we require. 
Some of the factors we consider in approving the vehicle are current market condiƟons, the Territory you will 
serve, and the condiƟon and appearance of the vehicle. The Ɵme limit for us to approve or disapprove your 
proposed Site is 30 calendar days aŌer you submit all of our required documents and informaƟon to us. We will 
provide you with branding specificaƟons for your vehicle (SecƟon IV of the Franchise Agreement). You are 
responsible for ensuring that your vehicle conforms with all local ordinances, building codes, and/or HOA 
regulaƟons. You are also responsible for obtaining any required permits for construcƟng, remodeling, or decoraƟng 
the vehicle. We may, but are not obligated to, provide you with assistance in ensuring that your vehicle conforms 
to local ordinances and building codes, as well as with obtaining any required permits related to operaƟng the 
Franchised Business. 
 
The typical length of Ɵme between the signing of the Franchise Agreement, or the first payment of consideraƟon 
for the Franchised Business, and opening the Franchised Business varies, but you should be able to commence 
operaƟon within five months aŌer signing the Franchise Agreement. Factors affecƟng this Ɵme period include, 
without limitaƟon, how long it takes to complete any modificaƟon to your vehicle, compleƟon of financing 
arrangements, compliance with local ordinances and obtaining permits, obtaining and installing equipment, your 
previous employment commitments (if any), your ability to complete our training program, and/or your hiring and 
training of your personnel. 
 
If you do not secure a Site, or in exercising our obligaƟons in good faith, we do not approve your vehicle, within 
four months from the signing of your Franchise Agreement, or if you do not open your Franchised Business within 
five months of the signing of the Franchise Agreement, we may terminate your Franchise Agreement and retain 
all money that you have paid us or our affiliates.  
 
We approve each addiƟonal Site for any addiƟonal Franchised Businesses you may decide to open under the Area 
Development Agreement. Our then-current standards for Sites'/vehicles’ approval will apply.  
 
The typical length of Ɵme between the signing of the Area Development Agreement or the first payment of 
consideraƟon for the Area Development Agreement and securing the truck or trailer for each addiƟonal franchise 
under the Area Development Agreement is an addiƟonal four to five months for each franchise. You must open 
each addiƟonal Franchised Business under the Area Development Agreement within an addiƟonal five months for 
each franchise. Factors affecƟng this Ɵme period include, without limitaƟon, how long it takes to complete any 
modificaƟon of your subsequent Site, compleƟon of financing arrangements, compliance with local ordinances, 
etc. 
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Training Program 
 
We provide a tuiƟon-free iniƟal training program, which includes orientaƟon to The Rush Coffee System, customer 
service, operaƟonal management, financial management, computer soŌware use, adverƟsing/markeƟng, and 
reporƟng procedures. The training lasts up to two weeks, depending on your exisƟng experience. The training is 
currently held at our headquarters in San Marcos, California, where you will bring your vehicle to us. We may, 
however, choose to change the locaƟon of your training to another locaƟon in San Diego or Orange County.  
 
InstrucƟonal materials that we provide to you may include manuals, videos, scripts, and PowerPoint presentaƟons. 
Training is not scheduled on a regular basis but will be offered to you before opening the Franchised Business. You 
and your Franchised Business’s Designated Manager must aƩend and successfully complete, to our saƟsfacƟon, 
the iniƟal training before the opening of the Franchised Business. You must pay for all travel, lodging, and other 
costs of aƩending and parƟcipaƟng in the iniƟal training.  
 
If you subsequently replace your Designated Manager, that individual must receive the iniƟal training, which you 
will pay us to provide (at our then current training rates). Our current fee for training such replacement and new 
managers is $300 per day per aƩendee. 
 

TRAINING PROGRAM 
 

Subject 
Hours of 

Classroom 
Training 

Hours of 
On-the-Job 

Training 
LocaƟon 

AdministraƟon Paperwork & 
Controls 5.0 1.0 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 

Ordering, Receiving, and Inventory 2.0 2.0 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 

Signage and Décor 0 1.0 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 

Personnel (Hiring, Training & 
RetenƟon) 3.0 2.0 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 

Items for Sale, Pricing, and 
PreparaƟon  2.0 18.0 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 

Customer Policies and OperaƟonal 
Procedures 2.0 8.0 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 
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Subject 
Hours of 

Classroom 
Training 

Hours of 
On-the-Job 

Training 
LocaƟon 

MarkeƟng/Customer 
CommunicaƟon/Emailing/Text 1.0 4.0 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 

Cleaning and Truck/Equipment 
Maintenance 0 8.0 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 

Security and Safety 1.0 2.0 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 

EvaluaƟon and Compliance 2.0 3.0 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 

Preparing for Opening 0 4.5 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 

Building Routes & Securing Events 2.0 6.5 

Our corporate headquarters located 
in San Marcos, California (or at a 
locaƟon later designated by us) and 
the Franchised Business Site 

Total 20 Hours 60 Hours  

 
Instructors for IniƟal Franchise Training 
 
Claire Oksayan, Owner and Manager since our incepƟon in June of 2021 and October of 2016, respecƟvely. 
 
Parsegh Oksayan, Owner and Manager since our incepƟon in June of 2021 and October of 2016, respecƟvely. 
 
We may change, add to, or make subsƟtuƟons for the subjects and instructors listed in the tables and above as 
necessary or appropriate. All instructors and subsƟtute instructors will have a minimum of one year of experience 
operaƟng a Rush Coffee franchise and with the subject maƩer in which they provide training and instrucƟon. 
 
We may provide addiƟonal training programs at reasonable Ɵmes and at locaƟons selected by us during the Term 
of the Franchise Agreement. We may also require aƩendance at other addiƟonal training programs, also at your 
own expense.  
 
We encourage you to schedule your training as soon as possible aŌer execuƟng the Franchise Agreement. We will 
not be liable for your costs or expenses if we terminate the Franchise Agreement because mandatory training was 
not completed to our reasonable saƟsfacƟon on a Ɵmely basis. 
 
You are responsible for all expenses you and your employees incur to aƩend all training offered by Franchisor, 
including the iniƟal training, and including wages, benefits, transportaƟon, meals, accommodaƟons, and 
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entertainment. Other than providing iniƟal training, we are not obligated to provide any other assistance with the 
hiring or training of your employees. 

ITEM 12: TERRITORY 
 
You are granted the right to operate the Franchised Business from the Franchised Business Site (i.e., the vehicle 
described elsewhere in this document) within a non-exclusive, protected Territory (see the definiƟon of “Territory” 
below). 
 
You will not receive an exclusive territory.  You may face compeƟƟon from other franchisees, from outlets that we 
own, or from other channels of distribuƟon or compeƟƟve brands that we control.     
 
Subject to the Franchise Agreement, your protected Territory will consist of a specific 30-mile geographic radius, 
or an area containing a populaƟon of 250,000 persons, whichever is less (the “Territory”). You may adverƟse, 
solicit, offer, accept orders, and conduct your Franchised Business within the Territory. You may not, however, 
adverƟse, solicit, offer, accept orders, or conduct any business related to your Franchised Business outside of the 
Territory without our wriƩen consent, and provided that there is no other The Rush Coffee franchisee operaƟng 
in the area in quesƟon. If you are granted consent to service another specified area, you shall be obligated to pay 
royalty fees and other fees to us for the services performed or products sold.  
 
If you are in compliance with the Franchise Agreement, subject to the limitaƟons stated below, we will not operate, 
or authorize anyone else to operate, another business using the Marks within the Territory during the Term of your 
Franchise Agreement.  
 
We are not, however, obligated to ensure that no other franchisee will conduct operaƟons in your Territory. 
Although such acƟviƟes are discouraged, we reserve the right to determine how to respond to any such situaƟon. 
That being said, nothing shall prevent you from taking whatever legal acƟon you wish to take against such infringing 
franchisees.  

We Reserve the Right to Limit your Territory  
 
With respect to the Territory, we reserve the right to: 
 
1. Own, acquire, establish, operate, and license others to establish and operate businesses like the Franchised 

Business, or substanƟally similar to the Franchised Business, whether under the Marks, or otherwise, outside 
the Territory.  

 
2. Acquire a system of CompeƟƟve Businesses with exisƟng units located within your Territory or outside the 

Territory.  
 
3. Establish, or license another to establish, a Rush Coffee concept different from the mobile version currently 

in existence (the “Model Concept”). For example, Franchisor reserves the right to allow others to use the 
Marks to open and operate (within or outside the Territory) storefront, brick, and mortar, co-branded, pop-
up, virtual, or mobile outlets that are substanƟally different from the mobile concept that you are operaƟng.  

 
4. Sell, or franchise others to sell, the services and products authorized for The Rush Coffee Franchised 

Businesses using The Rush Coffee Marks or other trademarks, service marks, and commercial symbols 
through alternate channels of distribuƟon, venues, joint markeƟng with partner companies, direct mail, 
catalog sales, internet sites, and co-branding strategies. 
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5. AdverƟse, promote, market, or sell goods or services using The Rush Coffee Marks over the internet, or any 
other electronic network. 

 
6. Offer and sell the services and products authorized for Franchised Business using The Rush Coffee Marks or 

other trademarks, service marks, and commercial symbols to Special Accounts.  
 
7. Own, acquire, establish, and operate, and license others to establish and operate, businesses like the 

Franchised Business or substanƟally similar to the Franchised Business, whether under the Marks or other 
proprietary marks, in Special Venues. 

 
8. Except as stated above, neither we, nor our affiliates, operate, or have plans to operate, or franchise others 

to operate, a business selling the same goods or products as under the Franchised Business, whether under 
a different name or otherwise, within the Territory.  

Special Venues 
 
We or other franchisees or licensees may own, acquire, establish, or operate businesses like The Rush Coffee 
Franchised Business, or substanƟally similar to the Franchised Business, whether under the Marks or other 
proprietary marks, in any temporary or permanent venues where there is a capƟve audience and where the 
primary purpose is other than patronizing a The Rush Coffee business (“Special Venue”).  
 
Such Special Venues, for example, may include malls, entertainment and sports centers/arenas, military bases, 
transportaƟon faciliƟes, supermarkets, service staƟons, and carnivals within or outside of the Territory (or any 
other area you may have rights to). 

Special Accounts 
 
The Franchisor has the exclusive right to contract with customers or third-party delivery carriers and/or vendors 
whose offices, stores, plants, buildings, or other physical faciliƟes are not confined to the territory of a single The 
Rush Coffee franchisee, Franchisor-owned, or Affiliate-owned business (“Special Accounts”). If Franchisor 
establishes a contract for faciliƟes of a Special Account located in the Territory, Franchisor shall offer Franchisee 
the first opƟon of providing the services to the Special Account at those faciliƟes in the Territory at the prices and 
subject to the contract requirements negoƟated by Franchisor with the Special Account. If you accepted the 
project, we would collect all amounts due from the Special Account and remit to you the amount due for products 
and services rendered for the Special Account, less the amount of RoyalƟes and other fees due under this 
document. All amounts collected from Special Accounts on your behalf or by you from Special Accounts will be 
included in your Gross Revenues for purposes of calculaƟng RoyalƟes and other fees due under this document.  
 
If you decline to accept such a Special Account, we will have the unfeƩered right to fulfill the contract requirements 
to the Special Account in the Territory in any manner we deem suitable, including through other The Rush Coffee 
franchisees, a Franchisor or Affiliate-owned business, or a third-party contractor. 

AcquisiƟon of CompeƟng System 
 
If you are in compliance with the Franchise Agreement and we acquire a CompeƟƟve Businesses (“Acquired 
System(s)”) during the Term of the Franchise Agreement, we will offer you the opƟon to purchase and operate, as 
a The Rush Coffee Franchise, any unit of the Acquired Systems (an “Acquired Unit”) that is both purchased by us 
for operaƟon by us or our Affiliate (e.g., the unit will not be operated by a licensee of the Acquired Systems) and 
is located within the Territory. We shall provide you with wriƩen noƟce of our purchase of the Acquired Systems, 
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the terms and condiƟons applicable to your opƟon to purchase Acquired Unit, and such other informaƟon that we 
believe is necessary to be included in the noƟce. If you do not elect to purchase or fail to complete the purchase 
of an Acquired Unit within two months aŌer we send our noƟce, we will have the right to operate the Acquired 
Unit directly, or through an Affiliate or third-party licensee, under any trade name or trademark other than The 
Rush Coffee Marks. In no event will you have the right to purchase, and we are not obligated to offer you any 
opƟon to purchase, any Acquired Unit that is operated by a licensee under the Acquired System. We may license 
such units to be operated under any trade name or trademarks other than The Rush Coffee Marks and may also 
license addiƟonal units of the Acquired Systems to be developed and operated within your Territory. 

AddiƟonal Franchises 
 
If you are in good standing under the Franchise Agreement and otherwise meet our financial qualificaƟons, you 
may request that we sell you another The Rush Coffee franchise. We reserve the right to determine whether to 
sell you another franchise. If you buy an addiƟonal franchise, it will be under the then-current form of Franchise 
Agreement and other applicable agreements that may be different from those described in this disclosure 
document.  
 
Your Franchise Agreement does not give you any other opƟons, rights of first refusal, or similar rights to acquire 
addiƟonal franchises within the Territory or conƟguous territories.  We may establish another franchise or 
company-owned locaƟon in the Territory if you fail to comply with the Franchise Agreement or you fail to achieve 
$10,000 minimum monthly Gross Revenues per month. Except as disclosed in Item 12, there are no other 
circumstances that permit us to modify your territorial rights. 

Area Development Agreement 
 
If you sign an Area Development Agreement, your rights to the Development Area will be protected as set forth in 
the Area Development Agreement. The Development Area Territory is typically similar to the calculaƟon that went 
into establishing the Territory (i.e., a 30-mile geographic radius or a populaƟon of 250,000 persons, whichever is 
less), but may be smaller depending on the market area for each addiƟonal franchise you might purchase. The 
Development Area Territory is determined as mutually agreed upon by you and us and set forth in the Area 
Development Agreement at the Ɵme of the signing of the Area Development Agreement.  
 
While the Area Development Agreement is in effect, provided that you open and operate new The Rush Coffee 
franchise in accordance with the Development Schedule and the minimum number of franchises that you have 
open and operaƟng in the Development Area at any given Ɵme is not less than the minimum required under the 
Development Schedule, we will not operate, or license any person other than you to operate, a The Rush Coffee 
franchise under the Marks and the System within a new territory you may purchase rights to. 
 
The processes, costs, and Ɵmelines for selecƟng a vehicle for a franchise covered by the Area Development 
Agreement are the same as for those related to selecƟng a vehicle for the Franchised Business.  
 
The typical length of Ɵme between the signing of the Franchise Agreement, or the first payment of consideraƟon 
for the Area Development Agreement, and opening the new franchised business varies, but you should be able to 
commence operaƟon within an addiƟonal five months for each addiƟonal franchise aŌer signing as required by 
the Area Development Agreement. Factors affecƟng this Ɵme period include how long it takes to complete any 
modificaƟon of your The Rush Coffee vehicle, compleƟon of financing arrangements, compliance with local 
ordinances, etc. If you fail to adhere to the Development Schedule, we may terminate the Area Development 
Agreement, and all of your territorial rights to any subsequent (i.e., addiƟonal) franchise will be eliminated.  
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If a default occurs under any Franchise Agreement, resulƟng in the terminaƟon of such Franchise Agreement, we 
may terminate your Area Development Agreement. However, a default under the Area Development Agreement 
is not cause for terminaƟon of any other exisƟng Franchise Agreement. 
 

ITEM 13: TRADEMARKS 
 
We grant you the right to operate a Franchised Business under the trade name “The Rush Coffee”.  You may also 
use other current or future trademarks to operate your Franchised Business that we designate.  By trademark, we 
mean trade names, trademarks, service marks, and logos used to idenƟfy the Franchised Business (collecƟvely, the 
“Marks”).  The following Marks are registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (the “Trademark 
Office”) on the registry as stated below: 
 

Mark RegistraƟon Number Class RegistraƟon Date Registry 

 

5604681 IC 043 November 13, 2018 Principal 

Happiness Delivered 5804574 IC 043 July 16, 2019 Principal 

 
We have filed all required affidavits and renewals with respect to these registraƟons.  
 
The trademarks are owned by our affiliate, The Rush Coffee, LLC.  We have a perpetual license agreement to use 
and franchise the Marks, which may only be terminated upon our dissoluƟon.  In such an event, you may lose your 
right to use the Marks. 
 
There are no currently effecƟve material determinaƟons of the Trademark Office, the Trademark Trial and Appeal 
Board, or any other trademark administrator or any court, pending interference, opposiƟon, or cancellaƟon 
proceeding, or any pending material liƟgaƟon involving the Marks. 
 
We do not know of any prior rights that could materially affect your use of the Marks. Nor are there any 
agreements currently in effect that limit our right to use or license the use of our Marks. Likewise, we are not 
aware of any infringing uses of the Marks that could materially affect your right to use them. 
 
Your use of the Marks is limited to use in connecƟon with the operaƟon of your Franchised Business within the 
Territory as described in the Franchise Agreement and as set forth in the OperaƟng Manual. You must promptly 
noƟfy us of any use of Marks or any colorable variaƟon by any person or legal enƟty or any liƟgaƟon insƟtuted by 
any person or legal enƟty against you or us involving the Marks. While we will control any such liƟgaƟon or 
proceedings, we are not otherwise required to defend the Marks. If we undertake the defense, prosecuƟon, or 
seƩlement of any liƟgaƟon relaƟng to the Marks, you agree to assist (non-monetarily) as necessary to carry out 
such defense, prosecuƟon, or seƩlement.  
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We retain the right to modify or disconƟnue the Mark(s). You shall, upon demand by us, modify or disconƟnue the 
use of Mark(s), at your sole cost and expense, as directed by us. We are not required to reimburse or compensate 
you for any modificaƟon or disconƟnuaƟon of the Marks. If we decide to add a new trademark, or modify or 
disconƟnue the use of any exisƟng Marks, you must use the new trademark or change or disconƟnue the use of 
the Mark/trademark, all at your expense. You must not contest our right to our Marks, trade secrets, or business 
techniques, or our right to use them. 
 
If any party demonstrates to us a superior right to use any of Marks, you shall, upon demand by us, disconƟnue 
use of such Mark(s) and adopt, at your sole cost and expense, any Mark(s), if any, selected by us to replace such 
disconƟnued Mark(s). 
 
You shall not use any of The Rush Coffee Marks, or any derivaƟve or a colorable variaƟon of the Marks: (i) as part 
of your corporate or other legal names; (ii) on or as part of any website, domain name, URL, web page, electronic 
mail address, lisƟng, banner, adverƟsement or any other service or link on, to, or with the internet,; (iii) with any 
prefix, suffix (including, but not limited to, the word “Inc.”), or other modifying words, terms, designs, or symbols; 
or (iv) in any modified form. You shall not register any of the Marks, or any derivaƟve or a colorable variaƟon of 
the Marks, as a service mark, trademark, or internet domain name, or hold out or otherwise employ the Marks to 
perform any acƟvity or to incur any obligaƟon or indebtedness in such a manner as could reasonably result in 
liability for us, or that may harm, tarnish, or impair our reputaƟon, name, services, or Marks. The provisions of this 
paragraph shall survive the expiraƟon, terminaƟon, or cancellaƟon of this Agreement. 

ITEM 14: PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 
 
We do not own any patents material to the Franchise. We do not own any copyright registraƟon material to the 
Franchise. We do have unregistered copyrights in The Rush Coffee OperaƟng Manual, and all printed, audiovisual, 
and other materials developed and distributed for use by our franchisees or us (collecƟvely called the “Proprietary 
InformaƟon” or “ConfidenƟal InformaƟon”). InformaƟon not protected by copyright but which is confidenƟal to 
us, such as informaƟon about our methods, policies, and markeƟng programs, are also part of the Proprietary 
InformaƟon. 
 
There are no administraƟve or judicial determinaƟons relaƟng to the copyrights, nor any agreements that limit the 
use of them. We are not obligated to protect our copyrights. 
 
You will not acquire any interest in the Proprietary InformaƟon. All Proprietary InformaƟon must be returned to 
us immediately upon the terminaƟon of the Franchise Agreement, regardless of the cause of such terminaƟon. 
We are disclosing the Proprietary InformaƟon to you solely on the condiƟon that you: (1) will not use it in any 
other business or capacity; (2) will maintain the absolute confidenƟality of the informaƟon during and aŌer the 
Term of your Franchise Agreement; (3) will not make unauthorized copies of any porƟon of the OperaƟng Manual 
or any other wriƩen communicaƟon from us; (4) will not disclose or duplicate any part of the Proprietary 
InformaƟon other than disclosure to an employee of the Franchised Business to the extent necessary to do his or 
her job; and (5) will adopt and implement all reasonable procedures we may require to prevent unauthorized use 
or disclosure of the Proprietary InformaƟon, including restricƟons on disclosure of the informaƟon to employees 
of the Franchised Business and the use of non-disclosure and, where legally permissible, non-compeƟƟon clauses, 
in your employment agreements. All shareholders, officers, directors, partners, and members of the Franchise are 
presumed to have access to the Proprietary InformaƟon and must sign a Nondisclosure and, where legally 
permissible, NoncompeƟƟon Agreement, to maintain the confidenƟality of the Proprietary InformaƟon and 
conform to any legally permissible noncompeƟƟon covenants. 
 
You must inform us in wriƟng if you learn about anyone else’s improper use of the Proprietary InformaƟon, or if 
anyone breaches the Nondisclosure and NoncompeƟƟon Agreement. 
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If we require you to modify or disconƟnue using the subject maƩer covered by the patent or copyright, we are not 
required to reimburse or compensate you for the modificaƟon or disconƟnuaƟon. 
 
We will defend you against claims of infringement if you are using the Proprietary InformaƟon as required by the 
Franchise Agreement. You must cooperate with us fully in connecƟon with such defense. We will control any 
administraƟve proceedings or liƟgaƟon involving the copyrighted materials. You do not have the right to seƩle a 
claim without our consent. 

ITEM 15: OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE 
BUSINESS 

 
You must maintain a designated full-Ɵme manager (i.e., the Designated Manager) of the Franchised Business who 
is approved by us, successfully completes the iniƟal training program to our saƟsfacƟon, and who will devote 
his/her full Ɵme and energy to the operaƟon of the Franchised Business. If you are the one who intends to act as 
the Designated Manager, then you do not need to hire a separate individual to fulfill that role. If, however, the 
Designated Manager is going to be someone other than you, then that individual must, in addiƟon to the 
requirements referenced above, also sign a confidenƟality, non-solicitaƟon, and, where legally permissible, a non-
compeƟƟon agreement in a form that is saƟsfactory to us.  
 
No individual franchisee or any shareholder, partner, member, or other owner of a business enƟty franchisee may 
compete with us or own an interest in any compeƟtor of ours anywhere during the Term of your Franchise 
Agreement or within 25 miles of any The Rush Coffee franchise territory. Where legally permissible, that non-
compete obligaƟon shall extend for an addiƟonal two years aŌer the expiraƟon or terminaƟon of your Franchise 
Agreement. 
 
While you are not required or obligated to parƟcipate personally in the direct operaƟons of the Franchised 
Business, we strongly recommend that you do so. You and each shareholder, partner, member, and other equity 
owners of the franchise, along with each individual shareholder, partner, member, and other equity owners of any 
shareholder, partner, member, and other equity owners that is itself a business enƟty, all must personally 
guarantee all of the your obligaƟons and performance under the Franchise Agreement. 
 
To prevent any interrupƟon of the Franchised Business that may cause harm to the Franchised Business and to The 
Rush Coffee System, we may step in to operate the Franchised Business when we deem it necessary. Reasons may 
include our determinaƟon that you: (1) are incapable of operaƟng the franchise; (2) your you and, where 
applicable, your Designated Manager, are absent or incapacitated because of illness or death for more than one 
week; (3) have failed to pay when due any taxes or assessments against the Franchised Business or property used 
in connecƟon with it; (4) have failed to pay when due any liens or encumbrances of every kind placed upon or 
against your business property; or (5) we decide that operaƟonal problems reasonably require us to operate the 
Franchised Business for a Ɵme. 
 
All Gross Revenue derived from our operaƟon of the Franchised Business will be for your account. We will pay 
from that Gross Revenue all expenses, debts, and liabiliƟes we incur during our operaƟon of the Franchised 
Business, including payments to ourselves for the Ɵme spent running your Franchised Business. We will keep 
account all Gross Revenue generated by the operaƟon of the Franchised Business, less the expenses of the 
business, including reasonable compensaƟon and expenses for us and our representaƟves. 
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ITEM 16: RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL 
 
You must offer and sell all products and services, and only those products and services, authorized by us and 
specified in The Rush Coffee OperaƟng Manual, or as designated in wriƟng by us (the “PermiƩed Products and 
Services”). Without limit, we have the right to change, add, and delete products or services to or from the 
PermiƩed Products and Services at any Ɵme. We may also designate any products or services as opƟonal. 
 
You may adverƟse, solicit, offer, accept orders, and sell the PermiƩed Products and Services within the Territory 
unless we give you wriƩen consent to serve another specified area where no other The Rush Coffee franchise or 
company-owned unit is located. If you are granted consent to service another specified area, you shall be obligated 
to pay royalty fees and other fees to us for the services performed or products sold. Unless otherwise stated in 
this disclosure document (e.g., social media), you do not have the right to use other channels of distribuƟon such 
as the internet, catalog sales, telemarkeƟng, or other direct markeƟng systems unless we give you wriƩen consent. 
 
You must parƟcipate in and fully comply with any customer warranty, guaranty, or customer saƟsfacƟon programs 
we may establish from Ɵme to Ɵme. 

ITEM 17: RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 
 
This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should read these 
provisions in the agreements aƩached to this disclosure document. 
 

Provision Section in 
Franchise Agreement Summary 

a. Length of the franchise term SecƟon II(A) Five years from the date that we sign the 
Franchise Agreement. 

b. Renewal or extension of 
term 

SecƟon II(B) Upon the expiraƟon of the IniƟal Term of the 
Franchise Agreement, you may, at its opƟon, 
renew the Franchise Agreement for an addiƟonal 
Term of five years (the “Successor Term”), 
provided that at the end of each Term you meet 
condiƟons listed, including payment of a successor 
fee. 

c. Requirements for franchisee 
to renew or extend 

SecƟon II(B) Renew means upon the expiraƟon of your 
Franchise Agreement; you may sign an agreement 
with materially different terms and condiƟons 
from the original Franchise Agreement for an 
addiƟonal Term of five year term; among other 
condiƟons, your right to renew is condiƟoned on 
our offering The Rush Coffee franchises; you must 
give us between 6-12 months of advance wriƩen 
noƟce  prior to the end of the Term if you wish to 
renew; you must not be in default under any 
provision of the Franchise Agreement or any other 
agreement between you and our affiliates; in 
addiƟon, if we deem it necessary, you must 
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Provision Section in 
Franchise Agreement Summary 

refurbish your vehicle (or any other aspects of 
your Franchised Business) to conform to the then-
current The Rush Coffee trade dress, color 
schemes, and presentaƟon of the Marks and The 
Rush Coffee Systems Standards;  you must sign the 
then-current The Rush Coffee franchise agreement 
(the terms of which, again, may differ from the 
terms of the Franchise Agreement); you must pay 
us a Successor Term fee of 50% of the then-
current iniƟal franchise fee; and you must comply 
with then-current The Rush Coffee qualificaƟons 
and training requirements 

d. Termination by franchisee SecƟon XVII(H) Subject to state law and other provisions of the 
Franchise Agreement, we will be considered in 
default of the Franchise Agreement if we breach 
any material obligaƟons of the Franchise 
Agreement and fail to cure the default within 30 
calendar days’ wriƩen noƟce from you. 

e. Termination by franchisor 
without cause 

Not applicable Not Applicable 

f. Termination by franchisor 
with cause 

SecƟon XVII(A)-(C) 
 

We can terminate only for cause (e.g., your 
material breach of the Franchise Agreement or 
other agreements, intenƟonal, repeated defaults 
and others).  A default by you under the terms and 
condiƟons of the Franchise Agreement, will, at our 
opƟon, consƟtute a default under the Area 
Development Agreement and any such other 
agreements. 

g. “Cause” defined  – curable 
defaults 

SecƟon XVII(C) We may elect to terminate your Franchise 
Agreement if: (1) you fail to pay, when due, any 
sum required to be paid under the Franchise 
Agreement or any other agreement between us 
aŌer wriƩen noƟce and 10 calendar days’ 
opportunity to cure; (2) you breach the Franchise 
Agreement or any other agreement between us 
and fail to cure any such breach within the 
requisite Ɵme alloƩed; (3) you fail to pay any 
amounts due to any of our approved or 
designated vendors aŌer wriƩen noƟce and 10 
calendar days’ opportunity to cure; (4) you fail to 
comply with any federal, state, or local law, 
regulaƟon, or ordinance aŌer wriƩen noƟce and 
10 calendar days’ opportunity to cure; (5) you sell 
products or services other than the PermiƩed 
Products and Services without obtain our prior 
wriƩen consent, or alternaƟvely, you refuse to sell 
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Provision Section in 
Franchise Agreement Summary 

any of the items listed in the PermiƩed Products 
and Services; and/or (6) you refuse or fail to 
parƟcipate in a promoƟonal campaign, 
discount/giŌ card program, within five calendar 
days of noƟce from us.  A default by you under the 
terms and condiƟons of the Franchise Agreement, 
will, at our opƟon, consƟtute a default under the 
Area Development Agreement and any such other 
agreements. 

h. “Cause” defined –  
non-curable defaults 

SecƟon XVII(A) and (B) We may elect to terminate your Franchise 
Agreement, without any opportunity to cure if: (1) 
you fail to purchase an appropriate vehicle/trailer, 
or open the Franchised Business, within the Ɵme 
limits prescribed by the Franchise Agreement; (2) 
you fail to saƟsfy all of the training obligaƟons; (3) 
you fail to submit reports or other informaƟon 
when due on two or more occasions in any 12-
month period; (4) you fail to operate your 
Franchised Business for more than seven 
consecuƟve calendar days, or you otherwise 
abandon the Franchised Business; (5) except as 
expressly stated in the Franchise Agreement, the 
OperaƟng Manual, or any other wriƩen 
agreement between us and you, you conduct any 
porƟon of your Franchised Business outside of the 
Territory, or otherwise infringe upon rights granted 
by us under franchise agreements with other 
franchisees; (6) you fail to achieve or exceed the 
Performance Standards for two consecuƟve 
calendar years; (7) you are declared bankrupt or 
insolvent, or you are the debtor in a voluntary or 
involuntary bankruptcy proceeding brought under 
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code; (8) a receiver is 
appointed for you or for any part of your property, 
or you make any assignment for the benefit your 
creditors, if not dismissed within 15 calendar days; 
(9) you lose the right to legally transact business in 
the jurisdicƟon where the Franchised Business is 
located; (10) you violate the non-compeƟƟon or 
non-circumvenƟon provisions during the Term of 
the Agreement; (11) you make any transfer or 
aƩempted transfer that fails to comply with the 
Franchise Agreement, the OperaƟng Manual, or 
any other wriƩen agreement between us and you; 
(12) the Franchised Business is seized, taken over, 
or foreclosed by a government enƟty or creditor; 
(13) a final judgment entered against you by a 
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Provision Section in 
Franchise Agreement Summary 

court of competent jurisdicƟon remains 
unsaƟsfied for 30  calendar days (unless an appeal 
bond has been filed), or a levy of execuƟon has 
been made upon the Franchised Business or upon 
any property used in the Franchised Business that 
is not discharged within 5  calendar days of such 
levy; (14) any conduct or acƟvity by you or any of 
your principals, directors, or officers that 
Franchisor believes is reasonably likely to have an 
adverse effect or reflect unfavorably on the 
Franchised Business, us, The Rush Coffee System, 
the Marks, or the goodwill associated with us; (15) 
you knowingly maintain false books or records, or 
knowingly submit any false reports to us, or 
knowingly understate your Gross Revenues; (16) 
any threat or danger to public health or safety 
resulƟng from the construcƟon, maintenance, or 
operaƟon of the Franchised Business that cannot 
reasonably be cured in a Ɵmely fashion; (17) you 
make or aƩempt  to make any transfer or 
assignment of the Franchised Business (including 
its assets, rights under any agreements with us, or 
any of the principals’ ownership interest in or to 
the Franchised Business); (18) you or any of your 
principals infringe on our ownership rights or 
control of the Marks, ConfidenƟal InformaƟon, or 
other trade secrets; (19) you or a principal is 
convicted of a felony, a crime of moral turpitude, 
or any other crime that we reasonably believe will 
damage our goodwill or reputaƟon; (20) you 
repeatedly violate one or more requirements 
under the Franchise Agreement; (21) you fail to 
obtain and deliver to us signed RestricƟve 
Covenant Agreements from the appropriate 
individuals; and/or (22) you refuse to allow us (or 
cooperate with us) to inspect or audit the 
Franchised Business.  A default by you under the 
terms and condiƟons of the Franchise Agreement, 
will, at our opƟon, consƟtute a default under the 
Area Development Agreement and any such other 
agreements. 

i. Franchisee’s obligation on 
termination/non-renewal 

ArƟcle XVIII Upon the terminaƟon of the Franchise Agreement, 
you must: (1) cease to operate your Franchised 
Business and not hold yourself out as a present or 
former The Rush Coffee franchisee; (2) cease to 
use System, the Marks, or the ConfidenƟal 
InformaƟon; (3) at our opƟon, assign to us (a) 



35 
2024 The Rush Coffee FDD 

Provision Section in 
Franchise Agreement Summary 

telephone numbers of the Franchised Business, or 
(b) all URLs, websites, webpages, or links related 
to the Franchised Business; (4) at our opƟon, sell 
us the assets of the Franchised Business at fair 
market value; (5) return to us all copies of 
OperaƟng Manual and other Proprietary 
InformaƟon, soŌware provided and/or 
owned/licensed by us; (6) cancel any assumed 
name or equivalent registraƟon that contains the 
Marks; (7) pay all sums due and owing to us; (8) 
obtain and conƟnue to maintain professional 
liability or errors and omissions insurance and 
general liability insurance for a period of Ɵme not 
less than the applicable statute of limitaƟons in 
the jurisdicƟon in which the Franchised Business is 
located; and (9) appoint us as the true and lawful 
aƩorney-in-fact and agent for the Franchised 
Business to carry out all of your obligaƟons under 
the other terminaƟon requirements.  

j. Assignment of contract by 
franchisor 

SecƟon XVI(A) We have the right to transfer or assign all or any 
part of our rights and/or obligaƟons to any person 
or legal enƟty without your consent. 

k. “Transfer” by franchisee 
definition 

SecƟon XVI(B) A transfer includes any direct or indirect sale, 
assignment, conveyance, transfer, pledge, or 
encumbrance of all or a substanƟal porƟon of the 
assets of the Franchised Business, the Franchisee, 
or any enƟty that has an ownership interest in the 
Franchisee. 

l. Franchisor approval of 
transfer by franchisee 

SecƟon XVI(B) We have the right to approve all transfers, but may 
not unreasonably withhold consent. 

m. Conditions for franchisor 
approval of transfer 

SecƟon XVI(B) We have no obligaƟon to consider any transfer of 
your rights in and to the Franchised Business 
unless all of the following condiƟons are met: (1) 
all outstanding obligaƟons related to the 
Franchised Business have been paid; (2) your right 
to receive compensaƟon from the sale or transfer 
must be subordinated and secondary to our rights; 
(3) the transferee must meet our standards and 
otherwise be reasonably acceptable to us; (4) the 
transferee must sign a then-current The Rush 
Coffee franchise agreement and such other 
ancillary agreements as may be required at the 
Ɵme, and otherwise agree to take on all of your 
obligaƟons; (5) the transferee must successfully 
complete The Rush Coffee iniƟal training, and you 
or the transferee must pay the requisite transfer 
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Provision Section in 
Franchise Agreement Summary 

fee; (6) you must sign a general release in a form 
saƟsfactory to us; and/or (7) either you or the 
transferee must upgrade the vehicle/trailer to 
conform to the System Standards then in place. 

n. Franchisor’s right of first 
refusal to acquire 
franchisee’s business 

SecƟon XVI(E) We have the right, exercisable by wriƩen noƟce to 
you, to purchase such rights or interests for the 
price and on the terms and condiƟons contained in 
any offer for your Franchised Business, except we 
may subsƟtute equivalent cash for any form of 
payment proposed in such offer. Any purchase by 
us must be completed within 90 calendar days aŌer 
your receipt of our wriƩen noƟce. If we do not 
exercise our right of first refusal, you may complete 
the sale of interest to the bona fide purchaser, 
subject to our reasonable approval and the 
transferee’s meeƟng the requisite condiƟons; 
however, if the sale to the purchaser is not 
completed within 90 calendar days aŌer the 
delivery of the offer to us, we will again have the 
right of first refusal. 

o.   Franchisor’s option to 
purchase franchisee’s 
business 

SecƟon XVIII(6) Upon terminaƟon or expiraƟon of your Franchise 
Agreement, at our opƟon (to be exercised within 
30  calendar days aŌer terminaƟon), you must sell 
to us any or all of the furnishings, equipment, 
signs, fixtures, supplies, vehicles, trailers, or 
inventory related to the operaƟon of your 
Franchised Business, at the depreciated book 
value. 

p. Death or disability of 
franchisee 

SecƟon XVI(D) Must transfer either to a qualified heir or a third 
party; if to the laƩer, the transfer must occur 
within 120 calendar days; if to the former, then no 
transfer fee required; we can step in and run the 
business unƟl proper training and other condiƟons 
are saƟsfied. 

q. Non-competition covenants 
during the term of the 
franchise 

SecƟon XIX(B) No involvement in a compeƟng business; cannot 
assist or deal with a compeƟng business; cannot 
infringe on another franchisee’s territorial rights. 
These provisions are subject to applicable state 
law. 

r. Non-competition covenants 
after the franchise is 
terminated or expires 

SecƟon XIX(C) Where legally permissible, no involvement in a 
compeƟng business for two years in or within 25 
air miles of any The Rush Coffee franchisee’s 
territory or the territory in which we operate; no 
solicitaƟon of customers of your franchise for two 
years, subject to state law. 
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Provision Section in 
Franchise Agreement Summary 

s. Modification of the 
Franchise Agreement 

SecƟon XXIII(D) The Agreement may not be modified or amended 
except by a wriƩen instrument signed by each of 
the parƟes. 

t. Integration/merger clause SecƟon XXII(D) Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement and 
this disclosure are binding; to the extent that the 
Franchise Agreement and this disclosure are in 
direct conflict, the Franchise Agreement shall 
control; the Franchise Agreement supersedes all 
prior agreements between the parƟes. 

u. Dispute resolution by 
arbitration or mediation 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

v. Choice of forum SecƟon XXIII(F) All acƟons arising out of the Franchise Agreement 
must be heard and determined in a court located 
in San Diego County, California (subject to 
applicable state law.) 

w. Choice of law SecƟon XXIII(E) California law applies (subject to applicable state 
law.) 

 

AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
This table lists certain important provisions of the Area Development Agreement and related agreements.  You 
should read these provisions in the agreements aƩached to this disclosure document. 
 

PROVISION 
SECTION IN AREA 
DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT  
SUMMARY 

a. Length of the term of the Area 
Development Agreement 

Section VI The rights granted under the Area Development 
Agreement expire on the date of our acceptance 
and signing of a Franchise Agreement for the last 
Franchised Business to be developed. 

b. Renewal or extension of the 
term 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

c. Requirements for developer to 
renew or extend 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

d. Termination by developer Not Applicable The Area Development Agreement does not 
contain a provision allowing you to terminate the 
Area Development Agreement for any reason.  
Your right to terminate is subject to state law. 

e. Termination by franchisor 
without cause 

Not Applicable The Area Development Agreement does not 
provide for termination without cause. 

f. Termination by franchisor with 
cause 

Section VII We can terminate only if you default.  We can 
terminate the Area Development Agreement if 



38 
2024 The Rush Coffee FDD 

PROVISION 
SECTION IN AREA 
DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT  
SUMMARY 

the Franchise Agreement is terminated, but not 
vice-versa (i.e., terminaƟon of the Area 
Development Agreement is not cause for 
terminaƟng the Franchise Agreement). 

g. “Cause” defined – curable 
defaults 

Not Applicable The Area Development Agreement does not 
provide for defaults which can be cured. 

h. “Cause” defined – non-curable 
defaults 

Section VII(A) We may terminate the Area Development 
Agreement if: (1) you fail to pay any iniƟal 
franchise fee or execute any agreement by any 
deadline specified in the Development Schedule; 
(2) you fail to have opened and maintained in 
conƟnuous operaƟon the minimum number of 
The Rush Coffee franchises specified in the 
Development Schedule by any applicable 
deadline specified in the Development Schedule; 
(3) if a default occurs under any agreement that 
results in the terminaƟon of your right to operate 
one of our The Rush Coffee franchises; or (4) you 
breach or otherwise fail to comply fully with any 
other provision contained in the Area 
Development Agreement or any other agreement 
between you and us or our affiliates.  

i. Developer’s obligations on 
termination/non-renewal 

Not applicable Not applicable 

j. Assignment of contract by 
franchisor SecƟon VIII(A) 

We have the right to transfer or assign all or any 
part of our rights and/or obligaƟons to any person 
or legal enƟty.  

k. “Transfer” by developer – 
defined SecƟon VIII(B) 

A transfer includes any voluntary or involuntary 
sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance, pledge, 
mortgage, or encumbrance of or on any of the 
assets used to operate the Franchised Business. 

l. Franchisor approval of transfer 
by developer SecƟon VIII(B) We have the right to approve all transfers but may 

not unreasonably withhold consent. 

m. Conditions for franchisor 
approval of transfer 

SecƟon VIII(B) We have no obligaƟon to consider any transfer of 
your rights in and to the Franchised Business 
unless all of the following condiƟons are met: (1) 
all outstanding obligaƟons related to the 
Franchised Business have been paid; (2) your right 
to receive compensaƟon from the sale or transfer 
must be subordinated and secondary to our 
rights; (3) the transferee must meet our standards 
and otherwise be reasonably acceptable to us; (4) 
the transferee must sign a then-current The Rush 
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PROVISION 
SECTION IN AREA 
DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT  
SUMMARY 

Coffee franchise agreement and such other 
ancillary agreements as may be required at the 
Ɵme; (5) the transferee must successfully 
complete The Rush Coffee iniƟal training, and you 
or the transferee must pay the requisite transfer 
fee; (6) you must sign a general release in a form 
saƟsfactory to us; and/or (7) either you or the 
transferee must pay the requisite transfer fee.  

n. Franchisor’s right of first refusal 
to acquire developer’s business 

SecƟon VIII(C) If we elect to purchase an interest under a bona 
fide offer for purchase, the closing will occur 
within 90 calendar days aŌer the date of our 
noƟce to the seller elecƟng to purchase the 
interest; if we do not elect to purchase such 
interest within the 30-day period, you may sell or 
transfer their offered interests to a third party, 
provided that such sale or transfer: (1) is made 
within 90 calendar days aŌer we give noƟce of its 
elecƟon; (2) is made at a price and on the same 
material terms as those offered to us; and (iii) is 
made in full compliance with all applicable 
requirements of the Area Development 
Agreement. 

o. Franchisor’s option to purchase 
developer’s business 

Not applicable Not applicable 

p. Death or disability of developer Not Applicable See rows k., l. and m. above. 
While your death or disability is not specifically 
addressed in the Area Development Agreement, a 
transfer of shares upon the death of an owner of 
the area developer (or a transfer of the 
agreement upon your death if you are an 
individual) would be treated the same as any 
other transfer. 

q. Non-competition covenants 
during the term of the franchise 

SecƟon IX(A) No involvement in a compeƟng business; cannot 
assist or deal with a compeƟng business; cannot 
infringe on another franchisee’s territorial rights. 

r. Non-competition covenants after 
the franchise is terminated or 
expires 

SecƟon IX(B) Subject to applicable law, no involvement in a 
compeƟng business for 2 years in or within 25 air 
miles of any The Rush Coffee franchises or 
company owned businesses; no solicitaƟon of 
customers of your franchise for 2 years. 
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PROVISION 
SECTION IN AREA 
DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT  
SUMMARY 

s. Modification of the agreement SecƟon XI(B) The Agreement may not be modified or amended 
except by a wriƩen instrument signed by each of 
the parƟes.  

t. Integration/merger clause SecƟon XI(B) Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement, the 
Area Development Agreement, and this 
disclosure are binding; to the extent that the 
Franchise Agreement directly conflicts with the 
Area Development Agreement or this disclosure, 
then in the context of an iniƟal franchise, the 
Franchise Agreement shall control, and in the 
context of a subsequent franchise, the Area 
Development Agreement shall control.  

u. Dispute resolution by arbitration 
or mediation 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

v. Choice of forum SecƟon XI(E) All acƟons arising out of the Franchise Agreement 
must be heard and determined in a court located 
in San Diego County, California (subject to 
applicable state law.) 

w. Choice of law SecƟon XI(D) California law applies (subject to applicable state 
law.) 

 

ITEM 18: PUBLIC FIGURES 
 
We do not use any public figures to promote our franchise. 
 

 
[Remainder of Page IntenƟonally LeŌ Blank] 
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ITEM 19: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 
 
The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide informaƟon about the actual or potenƟal financial 
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the informaƟon, 
and if the informaƟon is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance informaƟon that differs from 
that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an exisƟng outlet you 
are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the informaƟon provided in this Item 19, for example, by 
providing informaƟon about a possible performance at a parƟcular locaƟon or under parƟcular circumstances. 
 
Historic Gross Sales InformaƟon 
 
Our affiliate and Licensor, The Rush Coffee, LLC, currently owns and operates two (2) The Rush Coffee businesses 
of the type we franchise (each a “Truck”).  Licensor opened its first The Rush Coffee Truck in March 2017. Its 
principal place of business is 757 N. Twin Oaks Valley Rd., Suite 2, San Marcos, CA 92069.   
 
There were three (3) Franchised Outlets at our year end in 2023.  There are no material differences between the 
company-owned outlets in this financial performance representaƟon and the franchises offered in this disclosure 
document.  
 
The following informaƟon is derived from the actual results of the Trucks owned and operated by our affiliate and 
our franchised outlets for the calendar years 2021 to 2023.  The term “Gross Sales” means the total revenues 
received from the sale of goods and services at or in connecƟon with the Trucks, less sales taxes or similar taxes 
or refunds.   
 
The table below reflects the “Gross Sales” and “Gross Sales Minus the Cost of Goods Sold” for the two (2) Trucks 
owned and operated by our affiliate for the full calendar year in 2021 and the Truck operated by our first franchisee 
located in North AusƟn, Texas, who began operaƟons in December 2021. 

 
2021 

Gross Sales for all Trucks  
Gross Sales – Truck 1 $199,889  
Gross Sales – Truck 2 $94,016  
Gross Sales - North Austin, TX Franchisee (began operation Dec 2021) $2,288  

Total Gross Sales $296,193  
Cost of Goods Sold for all Trucks  

Coffee and Dry Goods $21,691  
Paper Goods $11,342  
Pastries and Food Items $5,028  
Perishable Goods (Milk, bananas, chocolate, etc.) $35,578  

Total Cost of Goods Sold $73,638  
Gross Sales of all Trucks minus the Cost of Goods Sold for all Trucks $222,555  

 
The table below reflects the “Gross Sales” and “Gross Sales Minus the Cost of Goods Sold” for the two (2) Trucks 
owned and operated by our affiliate for the full calendar year in 2022 and the two (2) Trucks operated by our first 
two (2) franchisees.  The franchisee located in Texas was open and reported Gross Sales for the full calendar year 
in 2022.  The second franchisee located San Diego, California, opened in July 2022, and reported Gross Sales from 
July 2022 through December 2022. 
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2022 

Gross Sales for all Trucks  
Gross Sales – Truck 1 $249,030  
Gross Sales – Truck 2 $122,736  
Gross Sales - North Austin, TX Franchisee (began operation Dec 2021) $86,736  
Gross Sales - San Diego North, CA Franchisee (began operation July 2022) $54,987  

Total Gross Sales $513,489  
Cost of Goods Sold for all Trucks  

Coffee and Dry Goods $25,816  
Paper Goods $18,733  
Pastries and Food Items $26,356  
Perishable Goods (Milk, bananas, chocolate, etc.) $54,860  

Total Cost of Goods Sold $125,765  
Gross Sales of all Trucks minus the Cost of Goods Sold for all Trucks $387,724  

 
The table below reflects the “Gross Sales” and “Gross Sales Minus the Cost of Goods Sold” for the two (2) Trucks 
owned and operated by our affiliate for the full calendar year in 2023 and the three (3) Trucks operated by our first 
three (3) franchisees.  The franchisees located in North AusƟn, Texas and San Diego, California, were open and 
reported Gross Sales for the full calendar year in 2023.  The third franchisee located Temecula, California, opened 
in April 2023, and reported Gross Sales from April 2023 through December 2023. 
 

 2023 
Gross Sales for all Trucks  

Gross Sales – Truck 1 $255,006  
Gross Sales – Truck 2 $149,846  
Gross Sales - North Austin, TX Franchisee (began operation Dec 2021) $113,814  
Gross Sales - San Diego North, CA Franchisee (began operation July 2022) $113,544  
Gross Sales - Temecula, CA Franchisee (began operation April 2023) $66,354  

Total Gross Sales $698,564  
Cost of Goods Sold for all Trucks  

Coffee and Dry Goods $35,121  
Paper Goods $25,484  
Pastries and Food Items $48,899  
Perishable Goods (Milk, bananas, chocolate, etc.) $74,633  

Total Cost of Goods Sold $184,138  
Gross Sales of all Trucks minus the Cost of Goods Sold for all Trucks $514,426  

 
Some outlets have sold this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no assurance you’ll sell as much.  
 
WriƩen substanƟaƟon for the historical financial performance representaƟon above will be made available upon 
reasonable request.  
 
This Item 19 was prepared without an audit.   
 
You should conduct an independent invesƟgaƟon of the costs and expenses you will incur in operaƟng your 
Franchised Business.  Franchisees or former franchisees, listed in the franchise disclosure document, may be one 
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source of this informaƟon. 
 
Other than the preceding financial performance representaƟon, The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC does not 
make any representaƟons about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past financial performance of 
company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or representaƟves to make any 
such representaƟons either orally or in wriƟng. If you are purchasing an exisƟng outlet, however, we may provide 
you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance informaƟon or projecƟons 
of your future income, you should report it to our management by contacƟng Claire Oksayan at 757 N. Twin Oaks 
Valley Rd., Suite 2, San Marcos, CA 92069 or by telephone at (760) 402-8225, the Federal Trade Commission, and 
the appropriate state regulatory agencies. 

ITEM 20: OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION 
 

Table No. 1 
Systemwide Outlet Summary 
For Fiscal Years 2021 to 2023 

 

OUTLET TYPE YEAR OUTLETS AT THE 
START OF THE YEAR 

OUTLETS AT THE 
END OF THE YEAR NET CHANGE 

Franchised  
2021 0 1 +1 
2022 1 3 +2 
2023 3 3 0 

Company-Owned 
2021 2 2 0 
2022 2 2 0 
2023 2 2 0 

Total Outlets 
2021 2 3 +1 
2022 3 5 +2 
2023 5 5 0 

*The Company-owned Outlets are owned and operated by our affiliate, The Rush Coffee, LLC. 
 

Table No. 2 
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor) 

For Fiscal Years 2021 to 2023 
 

STATE YEAR NUMBER OF TRANSFERS 

California 
2021 0 
2022 0 
2023 0 

Texas 
2021 0 
2022 0 
2023 0 

Total Outlets 
2021 0 
2022 0 
2023 0 
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Table No. 3 
Status of Franchised Outlets 
For Fiscal Years 2021 to 2023 

 

STATE YEAR 
OUTLETS 
AT START 
OF YEAR 

OUTLETS 
OPENED 

TERMI-
NATIONS 

NON-
RENEWALS 

REACQUIRED 
BY 

FRANCHISOR 

CEASED 
OPERATIONS- 

OTHER 
REASONS 

OUTLETS 
AT END 
OF THE 
YEAR 

California 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2022 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 
2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Texas 
2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Total 
2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 
2022 1 2 0 0 0 0 3 
2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

 
Table No. 4 

Status of Company-Owned Outlets  
For Fiscal Years 2021 to 2023 

 

STATE YEAR 
OUTLETS 
AT START 
OF YEAR 

OUTLETS 
OPENED 

OUTLETS 
REACQUIRED 

FROM FRANCHISEE 

OUTLETS 
CLOSED 

OUTLETS 
SOLD TO 

FRANCHISEE 

OUTLETS AT 
END OF THE 

YEAR 

California 
2021 2 0 0 0 0 2 
2022 2 0 0 0 0 2 
2023 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Total 
2021 2 0 0 0 0 2 
2022 2 0 0 0 0 2 
2023 2 0 0 0 0 2 

*The Company-owned Outlets are owned and operated by our affiliate, The Rush Coffee, LLC. 
 

Table No.5 
Projected Openings as of December 31, 2023 

 

STATE 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS 
SIGNED BUT OUTLETS NOT 

OPENED  

PROJECTED NEW 
FRANCHISED OUTLETS IN 

THE NEXT FISCAL YEAR 

PROJECTED NEW COMPANY-
OWNED OUTLETS IN THE 

NEXT FISCAL YEAR 

California 0 1 0 

Texas 0 1 0 

 
The number of new franchised locaƟons projected to be opened in the next fiscal year, as presented in the table 
above, is an esƟmate based on the best informaƟon we have as of the date of this disclosure document. There is 
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no assurance that the actual number of openings, or the states in which we projected the openings, will be the 
same as our esƟmates. 
 
A list of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of all The Rush Coffee franchisees is aƩached to this 
disclosure document as EXHIBIT J. A list of the names, last known home addresses, and telephone numbers of 
every The Rush Coffee franchise who has had their franchise terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise 
voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under a franchise agreement during the most recently completed 
fiscal year, or who has not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the date of this disclosure document, is 
aƩached to this disclosure document as EXHIBIT J. If you buy this franchise, your contact informaƟon may be 
disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system. 

ITEM 21: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
AƩached to this disclosure document as EXHIBIT K are our audited financial statements for our fiscal years ended 
December 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021. 

ITEM 22: CONTRACTS 
 
The following exhibits to this disclosure document are the contracts used by us in offering franchises: 
 

EXHIBIT A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT B AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT C PERSONAL GUARANTY 
EXHIBIT D RESTRICTIVE COVENANT AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT E POWER OF ATTORNEY TO ASSIGN TELEPHONE NUMBER 
EXHIBIT K STATE-SPECIFIC ADDENDA 

ITEM 23: RECEIPT 
 
The Receipt page is aƩached to the last page of this disclosure document. You must sign the receipt to acknowledge 
your receipt of this disclosure document. 
 



 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT  

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

Franchise Agreement 
 
 

between 
 
 

THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
(“Franchisor”) 

 
 

and 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
(“Franchisee”) 

 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Territory Name / LocaƟon 

 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
Dated 
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THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 
This Franchise Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on the dates set forth on the coversheet on 
the prior page by and between The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC, a California limited liability company 
(“Franchisor” or “The Rush Coffee”) and ___________________________________ (“Franchisee”). Franchisor 
and Franchisee may be collecƟvely referred to in this Agreement as the “ParƟes,” or individually as a “Party.” 
 
RECITALS 
 

A. Franchisor has dedicated Ɵme, skill, effort, and money to create and develop a system for the 
establishment and operaƟon of a disƟncƟve type of business that offers premiere coffee, espresso drinks, 
specialty smoothies, Italian sodas, teas, shaved ice, other beverages, baked goods, and desserts (the 
“System”). 
 

B. The System’s disƟnguishing and proprietary characterisƟcs include, without limitaƟon, certain technical 
knowledge and markeƟng concepts, including Franchisor’s internal processes, trade secrets, purchasing 
arrangements, commercial ideas, adverƟsing/promoƟonal materials, markeƟng strategies, informaƟon on 
sources of supply, administraƟve procedures, business forms, disƟncƟve signs, specially designed 
equipment, logos, vehicle design, employee training, techniques, and the confidenƟal operaƟng manual 
(the “OperaƟng Manual”). 
 

C. Franchisor idenƟfies the System by means of certain trade names, service marks, trademarks, logos, 
emblems and indicia of origin, including but not limited to, the mark “THE RUSH COFFEE,” and such other 
trade names, service marks, and trademarks as are now designated or may later be designated or 
subsƟtuted by Franchisor, for use in connecƟon with the System (the “Mark(s)”). Franchisee is receiving a 
license pursuant to this Agreement to uƟlize Franchisor’s Marks. 
 

D. Franchisor conƟnues to develop, use, and control the use of the Marks as a means of idenƟfying for the 
public the source of services and products marketed under the Marks and the System and to represent 
the System’s high standards of quality, appearance, and service. 
 

E. Franchisee desires to enter into the business of operaƟng a vehicle-based mobile coffee business under 
the System (the “Franchised Business”) and wishes to obtain a franchise from Franchisor for that purpose, 
as well as to receive the training and other assistance provided by Franchisor in connecƟon with the 
Franchised Business. Franchisor in turn wishes to permit Franchisee to purchase and operate the 
Franchised Business uƟlizing the System in the below-defined Territory. 
 

F. Franchisor has reviewed Franchisee’s applicaƟon and has decided to award a franchise to Franchisee to 
operate the Franchised Business in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 
In acknowledging the truth of the foregoing, and in consideraƟon of the mutual covenants set forth below, the 
ParƟes agree as follows: 
 
I APPOINTMENT 
 
A. Grant of Franchise 
 
Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Franchisor grants to Franchisee the right, and Franchisee undertakes the 
obligaƟon, to operate the Franchised Business under the Marks in accordance with the System and using the 
standards set in the OperaƟng Manual, this Agreement, and other direcƟves provided by Franchisor (the “System 



Franchise Agreement | Page 2 

Standards”) within the non-exclusive, protected geographic area described in Exhibit “2” of this Agreement (the 
“Territory”). 
 
The Territory will consist of a specific 30-mile geographic radius, or an area containing a populaƟon of 250,000 
persons, whichever is less.  Franchisee shall not offer or perform services or sell products under the System or 
Marks outside of Franchisee’s designated Territory without Franchisor’s prior wriƩen consent, which Franchisor 
may withhold or withdraw for any reason. If Franchisor permits such acƟvity outside of Franchisee’s Territory, 
Franchisee is required to comply with all of the condiƟons and other requirements that Franchisor may from Ɵme 
to Ɵme specify in wriƟng with respect to such acƟviƟes, as well as to pay royalty fees and other fees for services 
as if such business was conducted in the Territory.  
 
While Franchisor intends upon protecƟng Franchisee’s right to conduct business within the Territory, Franchisee 
agrees that under no circumstances will Franchisor be liable to Franchisee for violaƟons by other franchisees who 
conduct business within Franchisee’s protected Territory. 
 
Franchisee acknowledges that Ɵme is of the essence with respect to securing and ouƞiƫng an acceptable vehicle 
from which Franchisee will operate the Franchised Business (i.e., the below-defined Site). Franchisor requires 
Franchisee to commence business operaƟons within five months of signing this Agreement. Franchisee therefore 
agrees that Franchisee’s failure to secure and ouƞit an approved vehicle within four months of signing this 
Agreement shall consƟtute a material default of this Agreement.  
 
B. Franchisor RestricƟons 
 
Provided that Franchisee is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, and except as otherwise set forth 
elsewhere in this Agreement, Franchisor shall not establish or franchise another to establish the same The Rush 
Coffee vehicle-based mobile concept (the “Model Concept”) under Marks within the Territory during the Term of 
this Agreement. If for any reason the boundaries of the Territory are moved, altered, or eliminated, Franchisor 
shall re-define the boundaries of the Territory to correspond as nearly as possible, in Franchisor’s discreƟon, to 
Franchisee’s original Territory, and Franchisor’s decision shall be final and binding upon both Franchisor and 
Franchisee.  
 
As was set forth above, Franchisor is not obligated to ensure that no other franchise will conduct operaƟons in 
Franchisee’s Territory. Although such acƟviƟes are discouraged, Franchisor reserves the right to determine how to 
respond to any such situaƟon. Likewise, if Franchisor decides to take no acƟon to penalize another franchisee’s 
acƟviƟes within Franchisee’s Territory, Franchisee is free to take whatever legal acƟon is available to Franchisee to 
address such infringement.  
 
C. Reserved Rights 
 
Franchisor specifically reserves all rights not expressly granted to Franchisee in this Agreement. Without limiƟng 
the generality of the preceding sentence, Franchisor has the right to: 
 

1. Own, acquire, establish, and operate (or license others to do so) businesses like the Franchised Business 
or substanƟally similar to the Franchised Business, whether or not under the System or Marks, outside the 
Territory. 
 
2. Acquire a CompeƟƟve Businesses with units located within the Territory or outside the Territory. 
[“CompeƟƟve Business” means any business that directly or indirectly operates, manages, offers, sells, or 
provides (or grants franchises or licenses to others to do so): (a) coffee, espresso drinks, smoothies, sodas, 
teas, and other beverages; (b) shaved ice; (c) baked goods and desserts; or (d) products similar to those 
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customarily offered by the Franchised Business, or in which trade secrets or other ConfidenƟal InformaƟon 
could be used to the disadvantage of Franchisor or its other franchisees]. 
 
3. Establish or license another to establish new business concepts uƟlizing the System and Marks that 
differs from the Model Concept (e.g.,  storefront, brick and mortar, co-branded, pop-up, virtual, direct 
mail, catalog, co-branded, etc.) within or outside the Territory. 
 
4. Franchisor, its affiliates, or a franchisee or licensee may adverƟse, promote, market, or sell goods or 
services using the Marks over the Internet, the world wide web, or any other electronic network. 
 
5. Offer and sell the services and products authorized for Franchised Business using the Marks or other 
trademarks, service marks, and commercial symbols to Special Accounts as defined and per the condiƟons 
set forth in this Agreement. 
 
6. Own, acquire, establish, and operate, and license others to establish and operate businesses like the 
Franchised Business or substanƟally similar to the Franchised Business, whether under the Marks or other 
proprietary marks, in Special Venues as defined in this Agreement. 
 

D. Special Venues 
 
Franchisor, its affiliates or a franchisee or licensee may own, acquire, establish and operate, and license others to 
establish and operate businesses like the Franchised Business or substanƟally similar to the Franchised Business, 
whether under the Marks or other proprietary marks in any temporary or permanent venue where there is a 
capƟve audience and where the primary purpose is other than patronizing a The Rush Coffee business (“Special 
Venue”)—e.g., malls, entertainment, and sports centers, military bases, transportaƟon faciliƟes, supermarkets, 
service staƟons, and carnivals within or outside of the Territory. 
 
E. Special Accounts 
 
The Franchisor has the exclusive right to contract with customers or third-party delivery carriers and/or vendors 
whose offices, stores, plants, buildings, or other physical faciliƟes are not confined to the territory of a single 
franchisee of The Rush Coffee or a Franchisor/Affiliate-owned business (“Special Account(s)”). If Franchisor 
establishes a contract for faciliƟes of a Special Account located in the Territory, Franchisor shall offer Franchisee 
the first opƟon of providing the Franchised Business’s services to the Special Account at those faciliƟes in the 
Territory at the prices and subject to the contract requirements negoƟated by Franchisor with the Special Account. 
If Franchisee accepts the project, Franchisor will collect all amounts due from the Special Account and remit to 
Franchisee the amount due for products and services rendered to the Special Account, less the amount of RoyalƟes 
and other fees due under this Agreement. All amounts collected from Special Accounts on Franchisee’s behalf, or 
by Franchisee from Special Accounts, will be included in Franchisee’s Gross Revenues for purposes of calculaƟng 
RoyalƟes and other fees due under this Agreement.  
 
If Franchisee declines to accept the project, Franchisor will have the unfeƩered right to fulfill the contract 
requirements to the Special Account in the Territory in any manner it deems suitable, including through other The 
Rush Coffee Franchisees, a Franchisor or Affiliate-owned business, or a third-party contractor. AddiƟonally, if at 
any Ɵme a Special Account makes a commercially reasonable request that services in the Territory be provided by 
someone other than Franchisee, Franchisor may revoke Franchisee’s opƟon or right to provide, or conƟnue to 
provide, the services to that Special Account, and Franchisor may fulfill the contract requirements of the Special 
Account in the Territory in any manner Franchisor deems suitable. 
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F. AcquisiƟon of CompeƟng System 
 
If Franchisee is in compliance with this Agreement and Franchisor acquires a CompeƟƟve Businesses (once 
acquired, an “Acquired System”) during the Term of this Agreement, the following provisions shall apply: 
 

1.  Franchisor shall offer Franchisee the opƟon to purchase and operate, as a The Rush Coffee franchise, 
any unit of the Acquired System (an “Acquired Unit”) that is purchased by Franchisor for operaƟon by 
Franchisor (e.g., the unit will not be operated by a licensee of the Acquired Systems) and is located within 
the Territory. Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with wriƩen noƟce of Franchisor’s purchase of the 
Acquired System, the terms and condiƟons applicable to Franchisee’s opƟon to purchase Acquired Units, 
and such other informaƟon that Franchisor deems necessary to be included in the noƟce. The terms and 
condiƟons offered to Franchisee will include, without limitaƟon, the following: (i) the purchase price of 
the unit; and (ii) the requirement that Franchisee enters into Franchisor’s then-current form of the 
franchise agreement for the Acquired Unit, provided that Franchisee shall not be required to pay an iniƟal 
franchise fee for an Acquired Unit. If Franchisee does not elect to purchase, or fails to complete the 
purchase of, an Acquired Unit within two months aŌer its receipt of the noƟce, Franchisor shall have the 
right to operate the Acquired Unit itself, or through an Affiliate or third-party licensee, under any trade 
name or trademark other than the Marks. 
 
2.  Franchisee has no right to purchase, and Franchisor is not obligated to offer Franchisee any opƟon to 
purchase, any Acquired Unit that is operated by a licensee under the Acquired Systems. Franchisor may 
license such units to be operated under any trade name or trademarks other than the Marks and may also 
license addiƟonal units of the Acquired Systems to be developed and operated within the Territory. 

 
II TERM AND RENEWAL 
 
A. IniƟal Term 
 
Except as otherwise provided, the iniƟal term of this Agreement shall be for a period of five years commencing on 
the date set forth on the cover sheet of this Agreement (the “IniƟal Term”). 
 
B. Renewal 
 
Upon the expiraƟon (but not a sooner terminaƟon) of the IniƟal Term, Franchisee may, at its opƟon, renew this 
Agreement for an addiƟonal five year period (the “Successor Term”), provided that at the end of each such term 
(collecƟvely, the IniƟal Term, as well as any Successor Terms, may be referred to as the “Term”), all of the following 
are true: 
 

1.  Franchisor is sƟll offering Franchises at the Ɵme of each renewal period. 
 
2.  Franchisee has given Franchisor wriƩen noƟce of its elecƟon to renew not less than six months, nor 
more than one year, prior to the end of the preceding Term. 
 
3.  Franchisee is not in default under any provision of this Agreement, or any other agreement or 
instrument between Franchisee and Franchisor or its affiliates, and Franchisee has not been in default of 
this or such other agreements, whether cured or uncured, during the preceding Term. 
 
4.  The Franchised Business must meet Franchisor’s then-current requirements, or Franchisee must make 
all expenditures deemed reasonably necessary by Franchisor to refurbish or replace the Franchised 
Business’ equipment and signage to reflect Franchisor’s then-current requirements and brand image. 
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5.  Franchisee executes Franchisor’s then-current form of the franchise agreement and all other 
agreements and contracts that are normally and customarily signed by The Rush Coffee’s franchisees, 
which agreement shall supersede this Agreement in all respects. 
 
6.  At least 30 calendar days prior to the expiraƟon of a Term, Franchisee on behalf of itself and its 
representaƟves must sign a general release of any and all claims against Franchisor and its representaƟves 
related in any way to, without limitaƟon, the Franchised Business, the System, and/or Franchisor’s acƟons 
or inacƟons vis-a-vis Franchisee. 
 
7.  Franchisee pays Franchisor a Successor Term fee of 50% of the then-current iniƟal franchise fee at the 
same Ɵme that Franchisee gives Franchisor the wriƩen request required by this secƟon. If Franchisor 
refuses to grant Franchisee a Successor Term, Franchisor shall, at the same Ɵme that Franchisor noƟfies 
Franchisee of the refusal, refund the Successor Term fee paid by Franchisee. The Successor Term fee is not, 
however, refundable under any other circumstances. 
 
8.  Franchisee shall comply with Franchisor’s then-current qualificaƟon and training requirements, 
including, without limitaƟon, any training requirements specifically designated for renewing Franchisees. 

 
C. Interim Term 
 
If Franchisee does not execute a new franchise agreement before the expiraƟon of the IniƟal Term and Franchisee 
conƟnues to operate the Franchised Business beyond the IniƟal Term, then at Franchisor’s opƟon, this Agreement 
may be treated either as: (i) expired as of the expiraƟon of the IniƟal Term, with Franchisee then operaƟng without 
a legal right to do so and in violaƟon of Franchisor’s rights; or (ii) conƟnuing on a month-to-month basis (the 
“Interim Term”) unƟl terminated by either Party (which shall require at least 30 calendar days’ advance wriƩen 
noƟce). In the laƩer case, during the Interim Term, all of Franchisee’s obligaƟons will remain in full force and effect 
as if this Agreement had not expired, except Royalty Fees, and all other fees, shall be at the Franchisor’s then-
current rates/amounts, plus an addiƟonal 2% Royalty Fee on Gross Revenues.  
 
Except as described above, all obligaƟons and restricƟons imposed on Franchisee upon the expiraƟon of this 
Agreement will be deemed to take effect upon terminaƟon of the Interim Term. If any applicable laws requires a 
longer noƟce period, the above-referenced 30-day period will be deemed modified to be the shortest noƟce 
period required by law. 
 
III INITIAL AND ONGOING FEES 
 
A. IniƟal Franchise Fee 
 
Franchisee shall pay Franchisor an “IniƟal Franchise Fee” of $22,000, which shall be payable via cash, check, money 
order, wire, or bank draŌ. If Franchisee is an exisƟng The Rush Coffee Franchisee purchasing an addiƟonal 
Franchised Business, the IniƟal Franchisee Fee will be reduced to $17,000 for each addiƟonal Franchisee purchases 
under a franchise agreement.  The IniƟal Franchise Fee is used, among other things, to offset Franchisor’s costs 
and expenses relaƟng to site selecƟon assistance [if appropriate], iniƟal training, equipment [if appropriate], 
establishment of suppliers, inspecƟon, tesƟng and other quality control programs, design assistance, iniƟal 
markeƟng and grand opening assistance, as well as Franchisor’s other costs in helping Franchisee open the 
franchise.  The IniƟal Franchise Fee shall be fully earned by Franchisor upon payment and is not refundable, in 
whole or in part, under any circumstances.  
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If Franchisee enters into an area development agreement with Franchisor (“Area Development Agreement”) for 
the development of two (2) or more Franchised Businesses, Franchisee will pay Franchisor a “Development Fee” 
in an amount equal to $22,000 for the first Franchised Business and $17,000 for each addiƟonal Franchised 
Business to be developed under the terms of the Area Development Agreement.  Each Ɵme Franchisee signs a 
Franchise Agreement for a Franchised Business developed pursuant to an Area Development Agreement, 
Franchisor will credit the amount paid for that Franchised Business as part of the Development Fee against the 
amount of the IniƟal Franchise Fee due for such Franchised Business.  The IniƟal Franchise Fee will be reduced to 
$17,000 for the second and each subsequent Franchised Business Franchisee develops under an Area 
Development Agreement.  
 
B. Royalty Fee 
 
In addiƟon to the IniƟal Franchise Fee, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor the following royalty fees (the “Royalty 
Fee(s)”): 
 

1.  5% of Gross Revenues each month aŌer opening for the first six months (i.e., months 1-6). 
 

2.  $500 per month for the next six months (i.e., months 7-12). 
  
3.  Beginning in month 13 and conƟnuing each month unƟl expiraƟon of the IniƟal Term, $750 per month, 

plus 1% of the Franchised Business’s Gross Revenues.  
 

Royalty Fees are due and payable by the 15th of each month and shall be calculated upon Franchisee’s Gross 
Revenues for the preceding calendar month. Franchisee shall also pay all federal, state, and local sales or use taxes 
that may be levied or assessed, in whole or in part, on the Royalty Fees payable to Franchisor, regardless of whether 
such taxes be assessed against or payable by Franchisor or Franchisee.  
 
C. Gross Revenues 
 
The term “Gross Revenues” means all sales and other income (recognized on an accrual basis), whether cash or 
credit or barter for exchange (regardless of the collecƟon in the case of credit), arising from the operaƟon of the 
Franchised Business, less (i) all refunds and discounts made to customers in good faith and in accordance with 
Franchisor’s policies, and (ii) any sales or excise taxes that are separately stated and that Franchisee may be 
required to and does collect from customers and pays to any federal, state, or local taxing authority. 
 
D. MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon 
 
If Franchisor establishes a MarkeƟng Fund to adverƟse and promote The Rush Coffee Franchised Businesses, 
Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor, month, during the term of this Agreement, 1% to 3% (at Franchisor’s 
discreƟon) of Franchisee’s Gross Revenues, without set-off, credit or deducƟon of any nature, for naƟonal 
adverƟsing and markeƟng services (the “MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon”), at the same Ɵme and in the same manner 
as the Royalty Fee is paid.  The MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon shall be expended in accordance with SecƟon 9.3 
herein.  Franchisor, at its discreƟon, may increase or decrease the MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon upon thirty (30) 
days’ wriƩen noƟce to Franchisee; however, no increase shall exceed 3% of Franchisee’s Gross Revenues.  The 
MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon shall be expended in accordance with SecƟon XV. B, herein. 
 
C. Late Payments 
 
Although each failure by Franchisee to Ɵmely pay any fee due under this Agreement when due consƟtutes a 
material breach of this Agreement, to encourage prompt payment and to cover the costs involved in processing 
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late payments, if any payment owed by Franchisee to Franchisor is overdue for any reason, Franchisee must pay 
to Franchisor interest on that overdue amount upon demand by Franchisor from the due date unƟl the overdue 
amount is paid at a rate equal to the lesser of 5% per year or the highest rate allowed by applicable law. 
 
D. Method of Payment 
 
Franchisee agrees to remit fees and any other amounts due to Franchisor hereunder via electronic funds transfer 
or other means as Franchisor may sƟpulate. Franchisee agrees to execute and deliver to Franchisor an 
authorizaƟon for electronic transfer of funds (see Exhibit 3, or such other form as Franchisor may accept) for direct 
debits from Franchisee’s primary business checking operaƟng account. Franchisee authorizes Franchisor to iniƟate 
debit entries and/or correcƟon entries to the above-referenced business checking account for payment of Royalty 
Fees or any other fees and amounts payable to Franchisor, including, but not limited to, aƩorney fees, costs, late 
fees, and interest. Franchisee shall make funds available to Franchisor for withdrawal by electronic transfer no 
later than the due date for any payment due. If Franchisee has not Ɵmely reported Franchisee’s Gross Revenues 
to Franchisor for any reporƟng period, then Franchisor shall be authorized to debit Franchisee’s account in an 
amount equal to 125% of the Royalty Fees and other fees and amounts payable by Franchisee for the last reporƟng 
period for which a statement of operaƟons was received from Franchisee. Nothing contained in this paragraph 
shall be construed to waive Franchisee’s obligaƟons to submit any reports, records, or other materials required by 
this Agreement or waive any remedy available to Franchisor for Franchisee’s failure to make Ɵmely payments. 
 
Franchisee’s obligaƟons to make payments in accordance with this Agreement, as well as any other agreement 
between Franchisor or its affiliates with respect to the Franchised Business are absolute and uncondiƟonal. Such 
fees are not subject to abatement, reducƟon, setoff, defense, counterclaim, or recoupment due or alleged to be 
due to any past, present, or future claims that Franchisee has or may have against Franchisor, any of its affiliates, 
any of its designees, or against any other person for any reason whatsoever. 
 
E. Inventory of Products  
 
Franchisee agrees to purchase a “Startup Package” from Franchisor in the amount of $1,200 prior to the opening 
of the Franchised Business.  The Startup Package includes a 1-week supply of coffee, flavored syrups, frappe mix, 
smoothie mix, teas, straws, cups, lids, printed coffee sleeves, milk, and accessories.  The cost of the Startup Package 
is non-refundable, in whole or in part, under any circumstances.  AddiƟonally, throughout the term of this 
Agreement, Franchisee agrees to conƟnue purchasing The Rush Coffee branded products and other products from 
Franchisor to replenish the inventory at the Franchised Business as Franchisee sells the products.  Such products 
include, but are not limited to, coffee, frappe mix, teas, printed cups and printed coffee sleeves, and other branded 
products, and certain related supplies used in the operaƟon of the Franchised Business.  Franchisor will supply 
Franchisee with a list of its proprietary products and the price of each item that is available for purchase from 
Franchisor.  The list and the item prices may be modified by Franchisor from Ɵme to Ɵme.  Franchisee agrees to 
purchase the types and amounts of branded products and other products from Franchisor, as set forth in the 
Manual and/or elsewhere by Franchisor.  Franchisee’s iniƟal order must include a minimum order of iniƟal 
products, as specified by Franchisor.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor cannot guarantee that 
all orders will be fulfilled on Ɵme, all the Ɵme, as products and inventory are subject to delays caused by 
manufacturing boƩlenecks, suppliers, commodity prices, shippers, acts of God, pandemics, quaranƟne 
restricƟons, and other delaying factors; and, therefore, Franchisee agrees that Franchisor and its affiliates are not 
liable for any delayed or unfulfilled orders or inventory requests.  Up to ten percent (10%) of the total catalog of 
inventory offered by Franchisor may not be available to Franchisee at any given Ɵme due to shortages, as a course 
of normal business. 
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F. Security Interest 
 
As security for all of Franchisee’s monetary and other obligaƟons to Franchisor arising under or relaƟng to this 
Agreement, or any other agreement entered into with Franchisor with respect to the Franchised Business, 
Franchisee grants to Franchisor a security interest in all of Franchisee’s assets used in connecƟon with the 
Franchised Business. Such assets shall include, without limitaƟon, the lease for the vehicle being used to operate 
the Franchised Business, as well as the Franchised Business’s equipment, inventory, and all other property (tangible 
or intangible), now owned or later acquired, and used in any capacity in connecƟon with the Franchised Business 
(collecƟvely, the “Security”). Franchisee shall execute such financing statements, conƟnuaƟon statements, noƟces 
of lien, assignments, or other documents as may be required to perfect and maintain Franchisor’s security interest. 
Franchisee authorizes Franchisor to execute and file, on behalf of either or both parƟes, any of the documents 
described in this provision of the Agreement. 
 
IV OPENING OF FRANCHISED BUSINESS 
 
A. Site 
 
The site for the Franchised Business is a truck or trailer ouƞiƩed with Franchisor’s mobile package (the “Site”). The 
Site must be approved by and meet Franchisor’s then-current requirements and is idenƟfied in Exhibit 2 to this 
Agreement. Franchisee may only operated the Franchised Business from the Site.  
 
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor’s approval of the Site is solely based upon the Site conforming 
to Franchisor’s System Standards and is not intended as, nor should it be interpreted as, an opinion, testament, or 
assurance regarding the success or profitability of the Site or the Franchised Business.  
 
B. Schedule of Equipment 
 
Franchisor shall provide, at no charge to Franchisee, a schedule of all equipment and inventory necessary to 
operate the Franchised Business. 
 
C. Compliance with Laws 
 
At all Ɵmes, Franchisee shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, ordinances, and regulaƟons, 
including without limitaƟon, those involving: (i) employment (e.g., labor laws, workers compensaƟon, etc.); (ii) 
disabiliƟes and access (e.g., ADA); and/or (iii) health and safety. If Franchisee receives any complaint, claim, or 
other noƟce alleging a failure to comply with any applicable law, rule, etc., Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with 
a copy of such noƟce within five business days of receiving the noƟce. 
 
D. Opening Date 
 
Franchisee shall have four months from the date of execuƟon of this Agreement to purchase/lease and ouƞit the 
Site with the appropriate mobile package required by Franchisor (i.e., featuring the Marks, etc.).  
 
Franchisee shall otherwise complete all pre-opening requirements and commence operaƟon of the Franchised 
Business no later than five months from the date of execuƟon of this Agreement. 
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E. NoƟce of Franchisor’s Final InspecƟon Approval 
 
In connecƟon with the opening of the Franchised Business, Franchisee shall provide at least thirty days prior noƟce 
to Franchisor of the date on which Franchisee proposes to commence operaƟng the Franchised Business. 
Franchisee agrees not to commence operaƟng of the Franchised Business without first obtaining Franchisor’s final 
wriƩen inspecƟon approval. 
 
V TRAINING AND ASSISTANCE 
 
A. IniƟal Training 
 
Prior to opening the Franchised Business, Franchisee and/or its below-defined Designated Manager shall aƩend 
and successfully complete, the iniƟal training program offered by Franchisor at a locaƟon designated by Franchisor. 
If any required aƩendee does not saƟsfactorily complete such training, Franchisor may require that a replacement 
person aƩends and successfully completes at Franchisee’s sole expense, the iniƟal training program. 
 
Franchisee acknowledges that the grant of the franchise under this Agreement is condiƟoned upon the successful 
compleƟon of Franchisor’s iniƟal training program by Franchisee and/or a Designated Manager. If, therefore, 
during the course of the iniƟal training program, or within 15 calendar days aŌer the end of the training, Franchisor 
concludes that Franchisee and/or the Designated Manager, as the case may be, has not exhibited the apƟtude, 
abiliƟes, or personal characterisƟcs necessary or desirable to successfully operate the Franchised Business in 
accordance with the standards and procedures that make up the System, Franchisor may, in its sole discreƟon, 
cancel this Agreement by giving wriƩen noƟce to Franchisee.  
 
Upon such cancellaƟon of this Agreement, Franchisee shall return to Franchisor all copies of the OperaƟng Manual 
and any other materials received from Franchisor. Franchisee agrees to maintain the confidenƟality of all 
informaƟon received relaƟng to System and not to use, in connecƟon with the offering or selling of coffee, espresso 
drinks, smoothies, sodas, teas, shaved ice, other beverages, baked goods, and desserts, or similar business, any 
trade secrets or confidenƟal informaƟon obtained from Franchisor. 
 
B. Training of Replacement Personnel 
 
If Franchisee’s Designated Manager ceases acƟve day-to-day involvement in the Franchised Business, Franchisee 
shall have 45 calendar days to hire/select a new Designated Manager who meets Franchisor’s then-current training 
requirement and is approved by Franchisor. The laƩer does not apply to a Franchisee who is acƟvely involved in 
the day-to-day operaƟons of the Franchised Business. 
 
Franchisor reserves the right to review any Franchisee-trained personnel and require that such persons aƩend and 
successfully complete, at Franchisee’s sole expense, the iniƟal training programs offered by Franchisor at a locaƟon 
designated by Franchisor.  
 
C. Ongoing/Refresher/AddiƟonal Training 
 
Franchisor may require that Franchisee (and/or its Designated Manager), employees, and contractors aƩend, at 
Franchisee’s sole expense, such refresher courses, seminars, convenƟons, and other training programs, as 
Franchisor may reasonably require from Ɵme to Ɵme.  Franchisor may also offer addiƟonal onsite training and 
support at its then-current addiƟonal training fee.  In addiƟon to paying any required training fee(s), Franchisee 
will be responsible for all compensaƟon, travel and living expenses of Franchisee and its employees during training. 
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D. Grand Opening Assistance 
 
Franchisor will provide Franchisee with two calendar days of onsite assistance at the grand opening or ribbon-
cuƫng ceremony for the Franchised Business, at no charge to Franchisee.  At Franchisee’s request, Franchisor may, 
at its sole discreƟon, provide addiƟonal onsite assistance at its then-current addiƟonal training fee, plus 
Franchisor’s travel and living expenses while providing the addiƟonal assistance. 
 
VI SYSTEM STANDARDS 
 
A. Standards 
 
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that every detail of the System is important to develop and maintain high 
and uniform operaƟng standards, to increase the demand for the products and services offered by all of The Rush 
Coffee’s franchisees, to establish and maintain a reputaƟon for uniform, efficient, high-quality products and 
services, and to protect the goodwill of all The Rush Coffee franchises. Franchisee further acknowledges and agrees 
that a fundamental requirement of this Agreement is Franchisee’s strict adherence to the uniform specificaƟons, 
standards, operaƟng procedures, and rules prescribed by Franchisor for the development and operaƟon of the 
Franchised Business (collecƟvely referred to as System Standards).  
 
Accordingly, Franchisee must operate the Franchised Business in conformity with such System Standards as 
Franchisor may from Ɵme to Ɵme prescribe in the OperaƟng Manual or in another wriƩen form. Franchisee further 
agrees that System Standards prescribed from Ɵme to Ɵme in the OperaƟng Manual or otherwise communicated 
to Franchisee in wriƟng shall consƟtute provisions of this Agreement as if fully set forth in this Agreement. All 
references to this Agreement shall, therefore, include all System Standards as they existed on the date of execuƟon 
of this Agreement, and aŌer.  
 
In addiƟon to all other remedies provided in this Agreement or available to Franchisor by law, if Franchisee fails to 
adhere to the System Standards, Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for any and all cost and expenses (including 
aƩorneys’ fees and costs) arising out of this Agreement.  
 
B. Supplier Approval 
 
Franchisee must purchase all of the inventory and supplies necessary to operate the Franchised Business from 
Franchisor, its affiliates, or the suppliers that the Franchisor designates, at prices the Franchisor or they set. These 
prices may be higher than prices you could obtain elsewhere for the same or similar goods.  
 
At the present Ɵme, Franchisor is the exclusive supplier of all coffee, frappe mix, teas, printed cups and printed 
coffee sleeves, and the nonexclusive supplier of smoothie mixes, flavored syrups, straws to The Rush Coffee 
franchisees. 
 
To the extent that Franchisor designates a supplier for any products or services sold as part of the Franchised 
Business, Franchisee may not use any other supplier to provide those products or services without Franchisor’s 
express wriƩen consent. Franchisor may designate new or different approved suppliers from Ɵme to Ɵme, 
including Franchisor itself, or one of Franchisor’s affiliates (although at the current Ɵme, Franchisor does not have 
any such affiliates).  
 
With respect to the flavored syrups, smoothie mix, straws, paper goods (other than cups and sleeves), and 
desserts/pastries, while Franchisee must use the brands that Franchisor designates, at the present Ɵme, 
Franchisee is free to purchase those items from a designated vendors or from any other source that Franchisee 
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chooses. Franchisor, however, reserves the absolute right to rescind this parƟcular right upon wriƩen noƟce to 
Franchisee. 
 
As was stated above, if Franchisee would like to uƟlize a supplier for one or more products or services outside of 
Franchisor’s exclusivity, Franchisee must obtain Franchisor’s prior wriƩen consent. Franchisor’s general criteria for 
designaƟng such suppliers include their: (i) ability to meet Franchisor’s quality standards; (ii) availability; and (iii) 
consistency of their products or services. Franchisor’s primary criteria for designaƟng and approving suppliers are 
not published and are not made available to franchisees. To approve such a supplier, Franchisor requires: (a) a 
sample of the product(s); (b) informaƟon regarding the product’s quality standards, availability, and terms and 
condiƟons of purchase; and (c) any other informaƟon that Franchisor may request. Franchisor may also request a 
physical inspecƟon of the supplier’s place of business or manufacturing facility. Franchisor will generally noƟfy 
Franchisee of its decision regarding a supplier within 30 calendar days of Franchisor’s receipt of the samples and 
informaƟon requested (and, if requested, a site visit). As a condiƟon of approval, Franchisee must reimburse 
Franchisor for all reasonable costs incurred in approving the supplier, including without limitaƟon, travel costs and 
legal fees, plus 15% to cover administraƟve overhead.  Franchisor reserves the right to revoke the approval of any 
supplier upon 30 calendar days’ wriƩen noƟce to Franchisee.  
 
FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT FRANCHISOR MAKES NO WARRANTIES REGARDING ANY EQUIPMENT, 
PRODUCTS, SUPPLIES, OR SERVICES PROVIDED TO FRANCHISEE FOR THE OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISED 
BUSINESS, AND FRANCHISEE THEREFORE DISCLAIMS THE IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, THE IMPLIED 
WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY OTHER IMPLIED WARRANTY.  
 
FRANCHISEE AGREES THAT THE DISCLAIMERS SET FORTH IN THIS PROVISION OF THE AGREEMENT CONSTITUTE AN 
ESSENTIAL PART OF THIS AGREEMENT AND THAT THE FRANCHISOR WOULD NOT HAVE ENTERED INTO THIS 
AGREEMENT ABSENT THE ENFORCEABILITY OF SUCH A DISCLAIMER. Any claim, therefore, made by Franchisee and 
relaƟng in any way to any equipment, products, supplies, or services, shall be made only against the third-party 
vendor or manufacturer, and never against the Franchisor, who Franchisee acknowledges and agrees, shall have 
no liability to Franchisee or any other third party.  
 
Franchisee will provide Franchisor with reasonable wriƩen noƟce prior to taking any acƟon in connecƟon with 
such a claim. Franchisor may, in its sole discreƟon, assist Franchisee in resolving any disputes with third-party 
vendors or manufacturer approved and/or designated by Franchisor. 
 
C. Products and Services 
 
Franchisee must use the Site solely for operaƟng the Franchised Business. Except to the extent limited by federal, 
state, or local laws, Franchisee must keep the Franchised Business open for business and in normal operaƟon for 
such minimum hours and days as Franchisor may from Ɵme to Ɵme prescribe in its OperaƟng Manual, or otherwise 
in wriƟng. 
 
Franchisee shall offer and sell all products and services, and only those products and services, authorized by 
Franchisor, specified in the OperaƟng Manual, or as designated in wriƟng by Franchisor (the “PermiƩed Products 
and Services”). Franchisor may unilaterally add and delete products or services to or from the PermiƩed Products 
and Services at any Ɵme. Franchisor may also designate any products or services as opƟonal. 
 
D. Pricing 
 
To help promote System uniformity and consistency, Franchisor shall have the absolute right to set and establish 
pricing for all products and services offered by the Franchised Business. Franchisee shall honor all of the currency, 
credit, charge, courtesy, and cash card programs approved by Franchisor. 
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E. PromoƟons 
 
Franchisee shall fully parƟcipate, honor, and comply with any local, regional, seasonal, promoƟonal, and other 
programs, iniƟaƟves, and campaigns adopted by Franchisor that Franchisor requires Franchisee to parƟcipate in, 
including but not limited to giŌ cerƟficates, specials, discounts, loyalty programs, and giŌ cards. Franchisee may 
not create, honor, accept, or issue any giŌ cerƟficates, giŌ cards, coupons, or discounts except those issued or 
approved in wriƟng by Franchisor.  
 
F. Fixtures and Furnishings 
 
Franchisee shall purchase and install on the Site, at Franchisee’s expense, all fixtures, furnishings, signs, Computer 
Systems, and other equipment designated from Ɵme to Ɵme by Franchisor as being part of the System Standards. 
Franchisor shall not permit the installaƟon of any fixtures, furnishings, signs, Computer Systems, or other 
equipment that fail to conform to the System Standards. 
 
G. Maintenance Standards 
 
Franchisee shall maintain the Franchised Business and all of its equipment and fixtures in a high degree of 
sanitaƟon, repair, and condiƟon. Franchisee shall, therefore, make all addiƟons, alteraƟons, repairs, and 
replacements to its equipment and fixtures as may be necessary from Ɵme to Ɵme, including without limitaƟon: 
(i) periodic repainƟng; (ii) equipment maintenance and repairs; or (iii) replacement of obsolete signs, furnishings, 
equipment, or Site-interior decor. Franchisee shall grant Franchisor (and its agents) the right to enter the 
Franchised Business at any reasonable Ɵme for the purpose of conducƟng an inspecƟon to ensure compliance 
with this provision of the Agreement. 
 
At Franchisor’s request, which may be made no more than once every two years during the Term of this Agreement 
(excluding any periods of renewal of the franchise rights, for which addiƟonal refurbishment may be required), 
Franchisee shall refurbish the Franchised Business at its own expense to conform to the trade dress, color schemes, 
and presentaƟon of the Marks in a manner consistent with the image then in effect for any newer The Rush Coffee 
franchises. Such refurbishment may include structural changes, installaƟon of new equipment and signs, 
remodeling, redecoraƟon, and modificaƟons to exisƟng improvements. Franchisee shall complete the refurbishing 
within the reasonable Ɵme period specified by Franchisor. 
 
H. Variance 
 
Franchisee acknowledges that because complete and detailed uniformity under many varying condiƟons may not 
be possible or pracƟcal, subject to applicable law, Franchisor specifically reserves the right and privilege to vary 
System Standards for any of its individual franchisees.  
 
VII FRANCHISED BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
A. Business OperaƟon 
 
AŌer opening, and conƟnuing at all Ɵmes during the Term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall maintain the 
Franchised Business in conƟnuous operaƟon during all normal business hours as provided for in the OperaƟng 
Manual. Franchisee shall use its best efforts to promote and develop the market for the PermiƩed Products and 
Services. At all Ɵmes, the Franchised Business must be under Franchisee’s and/or the Designated Manager’s direct 
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supervision. This means that Franchisee and/or the Designated Manager must devote his or her full Ɵme and 
energy to the operaƟon of the Franchised Business.  
 
B. InspecƟon 
 
To ensure compliance with this Agreement and System Standards, Franchisor or its designated agents have the 
right, at any reasonable Ɵme and without prior noƟce, to: (i) inspect the Franchised Business; (ii) observe Franchise 
Owner and its employees during the performance of work; (iii) confer with the Franchisee, Designated Manager, 
and/or the Franchised Business’s employees; (iv) contact and interview customers and suppliers/distributors; (v) 
conduct an inspecƟon and inventory of inventory, equipment, signage, fixtures, furniture, and supplies of the 
Franchised Business; (vi) test the Franchised Business’s products and supplies; and (vii) conduct surveys or hire 
secret shoppers. Franchisor may require that Franchisee furnishes its customers with evaluaƟon forms provided 
by Franchisor and pre-addressed to the Franchisor. Franchisee agrees to fully cooperate with Franchisor’s 
representaƟves during the performance of any inspecƟon or evaluaƟon contemplated in this secƟon of the 
Agreement. 
 
If any inspecƟon conducted by Franchisor or its designee reveals that the Franchised Business fails to meet the 
requisite System Standards, Franchisor may charge the then-current standard re-inspecƟon fee. Franchisee’s 
failure to achieve or exceed System Standards in two inspecƟons in any 24-month period shall consƟtute a material 
breach of this Agreement, for which Franchisor, in addiƟon to its other legal and equitable remedies, may 
terminate this Agreement, refuse to renew the Franchise granted under this Agreement, or reduce the geographic 
size of the Territory. 
 
C. Performance Standard 
 
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that to remain in good standing and maintain the Territory rights granted 
under this Agreement, the Franchised Business must generate Gross Revenues of at least $10,000 per month (the 
“Performance Standard”). Failure to meet the Performance Standard for six consecuƟve months shall consƟtute a 
material breach of this Agreement, at which Ɵme Franchisor shall have the right to grant another franchisee the 
right to open a compeƟng franchise within the Territory.  
 
Franchisee acknowledges that the Performance Standard does not consƟtute a claim or promise related to the 
anƟcipated earnings or financial performance of the Franchised Business. Franchisor therefore disclaims any 
representaƟon, warranty, or guarantee that Franchisee can or will achieve levels of sales necessary to comply with 
the Performance Standard, or any other level or range of sales, income, or other measures of performance. As a 
pracƟcal business maƩer, Franchisor is unable to reliably esƟmate or predict the future financial condiƟon of the 
Franchised Business. 
 
D. Payment of LiabiliƟes 
 
At all Ɵmes, Franchisee shall Ɵmely pay any debts or obligaƟons due to its distributors, lessors, contractors, 
suppliers, creditors, and employees. In addiƟon to any other indemnitee obligaƟons contained in this Agreement, 
Franchisee shall indemnify, defend, and hold Franchisor harmless from all such debts and obligaƟons. Franchisee’s 
failure to Ɵmely pay its debts and obligaƟons, or indemnify Franchisor when required to do so, shall consƟtute a 
material breach of this Agreement.  
 
If Franchisee fails to Ɵmely pay any such debts or obligaƟons, in addiƟon to any other rights and remedies granted 
to Franchisor by law or under this Agreement, Franchisor shall have the right, in its sole discreƟon, to pay any or 
all of Franchisee’s obligaƟons. If Franchisor elects to pay any such debts or obligaƟons, Franchisee shall repay 
Franchisor all sums paid on its behalf, plus interest at the maximum legal rate, concurrently with the next Royalty 
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Payment due, or within 14 calendar days, whichever occurs first. Franchisee’s failure to Ɵmely reimburse 
Franchisor, including interest, shall consƟtute a material breach of this Agreement.  
 
E. Payment of Taxes 
 
At all Ɵmes, Franchisee shall Ɵmely pay all taxes related to the Franchised Business’s personal property, leasehold 
improvements, fixtures, equipment, payroll, etc. In addiƟon to any other indemnitee obligaƟons contained in this 
Agreement, Franchisee shall indemnify, defend, and hold Franchisor harmless from all such taxes. Franchisee’s 
failure to Ɵmely pay all taxes due, or indemnify Franchisor when required to do so, shall consƟtute a material 
breach of this Agreement.  
 
If Franchisee fails to Ɵmely pay any such taxes, in addiƟon to any other rights and remedies granted to Franchisor 
by law or under this Agreement, Franchisor shall have the right, in its sole discreƟon, to pay any or all of the 
Franchised Business’s taxes then due. If Franchisor elects to pay such taxes on Franchisee’s behalf, Franchisee shall 
repay Franchisor all sums paid on its behalf, plus interest at the maximum legal rate, concurrently with the next 
Royalty Payment due, or within 14 calendar days, whichever occurs first. Franchisee’s failure to Ɵmely reimburse 
Franchisor, including interest, shall consƟtute a material breach of this Agreement. 
 
F. Compliance with Law 
 
Franchisee agrees to comply with all laws, regulaƟons, and requirements of federal, state, municipal, and other 
governmental enƟƟes and agencies (including, but not limited to, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, the ADA, the Age 
DiscriminaƟon in Employment Act, and any other federal, state or local employment laws relaƟng to occupaƟonal 
hazards and health, consumer protecƟon, employment discriminaƟon, and sexual harassment), and to obtain and 
maintain any and all licenses and permits required by any governmental agencies or otherwise necessary to 
conduct the Franchised Business in any jurisdicƟon in which it operates. Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that 
Franchisee alone shall be responsible for compliance with the obligaƟons under this provision of the Agreement. 
 
Franchisee acknowledges that it has a clear understanding of the relevant wage and labor laws, including those 
relaƟng to the misclassificaƟon of independent contractors. Franchisee agrees that it shall at all Ɵmes operate 
independently from Franchisor and shall not be considered, either directly or indirectly, or ostensibly or otherwise, 
to be an employee, employer, agent, joint-venturer, shareholder, trustee, or partner of Franchisor. Except as is 
specifically set forth in this Agreement, Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor has no right to control 
the business or operaƟons of the Franchised Business, or to control the hiring and firing of Franchisee’s employees, 
it being understood that so long as Franchisee conducts the Franchised Business in a lawful manner and in 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement, that the control over Franchisee’s employees remains exclusively 
with Franchisee. Franchisee, therefore, agrees to indemnify and hold Franchisor harmless from any all claims, 
liabiliƟes, fines, debts, suits, acƟons, expenses (including aƩorney’s fees and costs), charges, proceedings, and/or 
demands arising out of any misclassificaƟon of Franchisee’s employees, and/or any labor or wage claims between 
Franchisee and any of its employees and/or independent contractors who provided any services to the Franchised 
Business. 
 
G. NoƟce of Suit 
 
If Franchisee becomes the subject of any legal proceeding, administraƟve or otherwise, or if any arbitrator, court, 
administraƟve agency, or government agency iniƟates an invesƟgaƟon or issues an order that could adversely 
affect the operaƟon or financial condiƟon of the Franchised Business, Franchisee must immediately noƟfy 
Franchisor in wriƟng. Such noƟce must include a detailed synopsis of the relevant facts and procedural status of 
the suit/invesƟgaƟon/order, and Franchisee must cooperate with Franchisor by providing Franchisor with copies 
of any related documents that Franchisor requests. 
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H. Client Service 
 
Franchisee acknowledges that customer saƟsfacƟon is essenƟal to Franchisee’s success. as well as to the 
reputaƟon and success of the Marks, the System, and other The Rush Coffee franchisees. Accordingly, Franchisee 
agrees to: (i) use its best efforts to ensure the saƟsfacƟon of each of Franchisee’s customers; (ii) use good faith and 
fair dealing in all dealings with customers, potenƟal customers, suppliers, and creditors; (iii) respond to customer 
complaints in a courteous, prompt, and professional manner; and (iv) use its best efforts to resolve customer 
disputes promptly and fairly in a mutually agreeable manner. If Franchisee fails to resolve a dispute with a 
customer, Franchisor shall have the right, in its sole discreƟon, to invesƟgate the maƩer and require Franchisee to 
take such acƟons as Franchisor deems necessary or appropriate to resolve the dispute fairly and promptly. Nothing 
contained in this SecƟon or any other provision of this Agreement shall be construed to impose liability upon 
Franchisor to any third party for any of Franchisee’s acƟons or inacƟons. 
 
VIII MANAGEMENT AND STAFFING 
 
A. EnƟty Franchisee 
 
If Franchisee is a legal enƟty, then that legal enƟty shall comply with the following requirements prior to or 
contemporaneously with Franchisee’s execuƟon of this Agreement: 
 

1.  The enƟty’s governing documents (e.g., arƟcles of organizaƟon, bylaws, partnership agreement, 
shareholder/operaƟng agreement, etc.) shall provide (or be amended to provide) that its acƟviƟes are 
confined exclusively to operaƟng the Franchised Business (or one or more addiƟonal The Rush Coffee 
franchises). 
 
2.  A list of the enƟty’s owners (e.g., members, shareholders, partners, managers, etc.) shall be provided 
as requested in Exhibit 1 to this Agreement. If any subsequent changes in such informaƟon occurs, 
Franchisee must noƟfy Franchisor in wriƟng within seven calendar days of the change. 
 
3.  All shareholders, members (or in the case of a manager-manager LLC, the managing members), and 
partners of Franchisee shall enter into an agreement, in a form saƟsfactory to Franchisor, uncondiƟonally 
guaranteeing the full payment and performance of the enƟty’s obligaƟons to Franchisor. 
 
4.  Each ownership cerƟficate of Franchisee, if any, shall have conspicuously endorsed upon its face the 
following legend: 
 

“The transfer, sale, or pledge of these shares is subject to the terms and condiƟons of a Franchise 
Agreement with The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC dated __________________.” 

 
5.  Copies of Franchisee’s governing documents, as well as a signed resoluƟon authorizing the execuƟon 
of this Agreement, shall be furnished to Franchisor for its approval. 
 
6.  Franchisee’s name shall not consist of or contain the Marks, or any colorable variaƟon of the Marks.  

 
B. Designated Manager 
 
If Franchisee is an enƟty, then prior to beginning the iniƟal training program, Franchisee shall designate, subject 
to Franchisor’s approval, an individual who shall be responsible for general oversight and management of the day-
to-day operaƟons of the Franchised Business on behalf of Franchisee (the “Designated Manager”). There are few 
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bright-line Criteria for Franchisor’s approval of the Designated Manager, but such criteria does include the 
Designated Manager’s successful compleƟon of the Franchisor’s iniƟal training.  
 
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the Designated Manager shall have reasonable decision-making 
authority and responsibility regarding all aspects of the day-to-day operaƟons of the Franchised Business, and that 
Franchisor may rely upon that broad authority.  
 
If the Designated Manager dies, becomes incapacitated, leaves Franchisee’s employ, transfers his or her interest 
in Franchisee, or otherwise ceases to supervise the operaƟons of the Franchised Business, Franchisee shall have 
45 calendar days to select a new Designated Manager, subject to Franchisor’s reasonable approval. 
 
IX COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
 
A. Computer System 
 
To ensure the efficient management and operaƟon of the Franchised Business and the transmission of data to and 
from Franchisor, prior to opening, Franchisee shall, at its own expense, install, maintain, and uƟlize during the 
Term of this Agreement, such point of sale systems, hardware, and proprietary/licensed soŌware (i.e., Computer 
Systems) that Franchisor may designate for mandatory use from Ɵme to Ɵme.  
 
Currently, Franchisee must use Square as its point of sale system for processing credit cards and invoicing. 
Franchisor does not, however, require Franchisee to uƟlize any other soŌware or hardware. If, subsequent to 
execuƟon of this Agreement, Franchisor noƟfies Franchisee in wriƟng that the Franchised Business must uƟlize 
addiƟonal hardware and/or soŌware, whether proprietary or licensed, Franchisee will be required to execute any 
documents necessary to facilitate Franchisee’s use of the Computer Systems, as well as pay any applicable fees for 
the purchase, license, installaƟon, maintenance, update, upgrade, and/or support required by Franchisor or any 
other approved licensor or approved supplier of such Computer Systems. [As used in this Agreement, the phrase 
“Computer System(s)” shall mean communicaƟon systems, computer systems, point of sales systems, soŌware, 
applicaƟons, and other electronic or digital hardware, whether proprietary or licensed, that Franchisor mandates 
for use in the Franchised Business or that Franchisee uses in the operaƟon of the Franchised Business, including 
without limitaƟon: (i) back office and point of sale systems, soŌware, applicaƟons, mobile devices, data, audio, 
video, and voice storage, retrieval, and transmission systems; (ii) physical, electronic, and other security systems; 
(iii) printers and scanners; (iv) archival back-up systems; and (v) Internet and mobile access modes and 
applicaƟons.] 
 
If required by Franchisor, Franchisee shall obtain and maintain a contract with a vendor that Franchisor has 
approved in wriƟng for soŌware and applicaƟon maintenance, support, and upgrade services for Franchisee’s 
Computer Systems and to provide Franchisee with such assistance as Franchisee and Franchisee’s employees may 
require. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor may be one of or the only approved vendor for such services, 
and in such cases, Franchisee agrees that it shall pay Franchisor the maintenance fee and help desk fee specified 
by Franchisor for such services.  
 
Franchisee shall upgrade and update its Computer Systems in the manner and when specified by Franchisor in 
wriƟng. At all Ɵmes, Franchisee shall be solely responsible for the manner in which Franchisee’s Computer Systems 
interface with other systems, including those of Franchisor and other third parƟes, as well as any consequences 
that may arise if Franchisee’s Computer Systems are not properly operated, maintained, or upgraded. 

 
Franchisee shall: (a) promptly enter into its Computer Systems, and maintain, all informaƟon required to be 
entered and maintained by Franchisor from Ɵme to Ɵme (including, without limitaƟon, all sales generated and 
expenses paid by the Franchised Business); (b) provide to Franchisor such reports as Franchisor may request from 
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the data so collected and maintained; and (c) permit Franchisor to unfeƩered access Franchisee’s Computer 
Systems at all Ɵmes via any means specified by Franchisor from Ɵme to Ɵme. Franchisee shall cooperate with 
Franchisor and shall execute all documents required by Franchisor to permit its access to Franchisee’s Computer 
Systems and data contained within. The reporƟng requirements set forth in this SecƟon shall be in addiƟon to and 
not in lieu of the reporƟng requirements set forth otherwise in this Agreement. 

 
All data collected or downloaded from Franchisee’s Computer Systems, shall be owned exclusively by Franchisor, 
and Franchisor shall have the right to use such data in any manner that Franchisor deems appropriate without 
compensaƟon to Franchisee. Such use may include, without limitaƟon, the disclosure or distribuƟon of such 
informaƟon to other franchisees or to prospecƟve franchisees of Franchisor, by inclusion in Franchisor’s franchise 
disclosure document, or any other use that Franchisor deems appropriate. Franchisee shall enjoy a charge free 
license to use such data, but only for the purpose of operaƟng the Franchised Business. Franchisee’s license to use 
such data shall, therefore, automaƟcally terminate upon expiraƟon or terminaƟon of this Agreement without any 
further noƟce. 
 
B. Telephone and Electronic Mail, Text, and Messaging 
 
Franchisee shall maintain telephone, electronic mail, text, and messaging services and features (all a part of the 
“Computer Systems” defined above) for use exclusively by the Franchised Business as required by Franchisor in 
the OperaƟons Manual or otherwise communicated to Franchisee from Ɵme-to-Ɵme. 

 
Franchisee acknowledges that at all Ɵmes, the Franchised Business’s telephone number(s), electronic mail, text, 
and messaging account(s) and lisƟng(s) will remain in the name, and sole property, of Franchisor. Franchisee shall 
nonetheless remain solely responsible for all costs and expenses associated with the Franchised Business’s 
telephone numbers(s), electronic mail, text, and messaging account(s) and lisƟngs(s), including without limitaƟon 
any deposits, connecƟon, installaƟon, maintenance, storage, and usage fees. 
 
X RECORDS AND REPORTS 
 
A. Records 
 
Franchisee shall prepare and maintain—in accordance with generally accepted accounƟng principles—complete 
and accurate books and records of accounts and customer files and records pertaining to the Franchised Business 
as prescribed by Franchisor in the OperaƟng Manual or otherwise in wriƟng. Franchisee shall preserve all such 
books, records, and files for seven years from the date they are created, regardless of whether or not this Franchise 
Agreement has expired or been otherwise terminated. 
 
In connecƟon with its maintenance of such books, records, and files, Franchisee, shall, at its sole expense: 
 

1.  Submit to Franchisor, on or before the 15th of each month during the Term of this Agreement, a report 
detailing the Franchised Business’s Gross Revenue for the preceding month, as well as any other related 
data that Franchisor may request. The Franchisee or Designated Manager shall cerƟfy in wriƟng that the 
report consƟtutes an accurate reflecƟon of the Franchised Business’s Gross Revenues for the relevant Ɵme 
period. 
 
2.  Submit to Franchisor monthly, quarterly, and/or annual financial reports, including balance sheets, cash 
flow statements, profit and loss statements, and other reports as required by Franchisor. Franchisee shall 
submit such reports within 14 calendar days of Franchisor’s request, and shall be cerƟfied in wriƟng by 
Franchisee or the Designated Manager as being an accurate reflecƟon of the Franchised Business’s 
financial condiƟon for the relevant Ɵme period.  
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3.  Submit to Franchisor signed copies of the Franchisee’s federal income tax returns for the previous tax 
year, as filed with the Internal Revenue Service, as well as the K-1’s of all owners (e.g., shareholders, 
members, and partners) holding an ownership interest in the Franchised Business of 50% or greater. 
Franchisee shall submit such documents to Franchisor on or before April 30 of each year, or if the taxpayer 
has received an extension of Ɵme to file and submits to Franchisor a signed, file-stamped copy of IRS Form 
4868 or 2688, as applicable, then within 15 calendar days aŌer the final due date for such return, but in 
no event later than October 30th. 
 
4.  Submit to Franchisor for review or audiƟng, such other forms, reports, bank statements, customer files, 
records, informaƟon, and data as Franchisor may designate, in the form, and at such Ɵmes and places as, 
Franchisor may request. 

 
B. Franchisor Audits and InspecƟon 
 
At all Ɵmes during the Term of this Agreement and for a period of three years aŌer its terminaƟon or expiraƟon or 
seven years from the date the record was created, whichever is greater, Franchisee shall permit Franchisor or its 
designated agents to examine and copy, at Franchisor’s expense and at such locaƟon as Franchisor may reasonably 
select, Franchisee’s books and records of accounts, bank statements, canceled checks, customer files, federal, 
state, and local income tax, sales and use tax, and payroll tax returns, the federal income tax returns of any owner 
(e.g., shareholder, member, partner, etc.) who owns an ownership interest in Franchisee of at least 50%, and any 
other informaƟon or records pertaining to the Franchised Business (collecƟvely referred to as Franchisee’s Business 
Records).  
 
If such an audit should reveal that Gross Revenues were ever understated in any report made to Franchisor, then 
Franchisee shall immediately pay the amount of Royalty and other fees and amounts due with respect to such 
understatement, plus the late fees and interest provided by this Agreement. If Franchisor conducts such an audit 
as a result or Franchisee’s breach of this Agreement or the requirements contained in the OperaƟng Manual, or if 
such an inspecƟon reveals an understatement of the Franchised Business’s Gross Revenues for any period of 3% 
or more, then in addiƟon to the above-referenced fees and interest owed to Franchisor, Franchisee shall also 
reimburse Franchisor for all of the fees and costs incurred in conducƟng the inspecƟon/audit, including without 
limitaƟon: (i) wages paid by Franchisor to its employees in relaƟon to the audit; (ii) travel expenses; (iii) 
postage/shipping; (iv) aƩorneys’ fees and costs; and (v) accountant-related fees and costs. The foregoing remedies 
shall be in addiƟon to any other remedies Franchisor may have.  
 
XI INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 
 
A. IndemnificaƟon by Franchisee 
 
As an independent owner and operator of the Franchised Business, Franchisee shall, at all Ɵmes, be and remain 
solely responsible for all demands, acƟons, administraƟve/regulatory complaints, judgments, damages, liabiliƟes, 
losses, costs, and expenses (including reasonable aƩorney’s fees and costs, even if incident to appellate, post-
judgment, or bankruptcy proceedings) to which Franchisor (or Franchisor’s owners, employees, aƩorneys, 
representaƟves, successors, and assigns) becomes subject or incurs arising from or relaƟng to claims brought in 
connecƟon with the operaƟon of the Franchised Business, or by Franchisee’s employees, customers, or any other 
third parƟes, and relaƟng in any manner to Franchisee’s ownership or operaƟon of the Franchised Business 
(collecƟvely, the “Claims”).  
 
Consequently, Franchisee shall indemnify, protect, and hold Franchisor harmless (along with Franchisor’s owners, 
employees, aƩorneys, representaƟves, successors, and assigns) from all Claims. Franchisee’s indemnity obligaƟon 
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will conƟnue in full effect in perpetuity regardless of whether or not this Agreement has expired or been 
terminated, and regardless of whether or not joint liability has been imposed on the ParƟes by any applicable law.  
 
In Franchisor’s sole discreƟon, Franchisor may opt out of having Franchisee’s aƩorneys represent Franchisor in 
defending a Claim, and in such cases, Franchisor shall have the absolute right to select and hire independent 
counsel of its own choosing to represent it in the Claim. If that occurs, Franchisee’s indemnity obligaƟons shall 
require Franchisee to Ɵmely pay for all of Franchisor’s reasonable aƩorneys’ fees and costs as they are incurred, 
and thus Franchisee shall have the right to review all unredacted invoices. To ensure preservaƟon of the aƩorney-
client privilege associated with Franchisor’s aƩorney invoices (among other things), if Franchisor requests that 
Franchisee execute a joint defense agreement, Franchisee must execute such an agreement. [For the purpose of 
this provision, “reasonable aƩorneys’ fees and costs” shall take into account various factors, including: (i) the Ɵme 
and labor required; (ii) the skill required to perform the legal services; and (iii) the experience, reputaƟon, and 
ability of the aƩorneys performing the legal work.]  
 
Franchisee shall provide wriƩen noƟce to Franchisor of any Claims iniƟated or filed against Franchisee or its 
owners, employees, or representaƟves within seven calendar days of receipt. Even in cases where a Claim has not 
been made against Franchisor, Franchisor shall have the right, in its sole discreƟon and at Franchisee’s sole 
expense, to compel Franchisee to retain the services of aƩorneys acceptable to Franchisor if, in Franchisor’s 
reasonable opinion, the applicable Claim might damage the reputaƟon of The Rush Coffee’s reputaƟon or brand.  
 
B. Insurance 
 
During the Term of the Agreement, Franchisee must maintain and keep the following minimum insurance coverage 
from an insurance company with a Best raƟng of “A” or beƩer: (i) comprehensive general liability in the amount of 
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate; (ii) automobile insurance in the amount of 
$1,000,000; (iii) property insurance in an amount sufficient to replace the equipment, inventory, the vehicle(s) 
from which Franchisee is operaƟng the Franchised Business, and any necessary business-related personal property 
upon loss or damage; (iv) theŌ insurance in the amount of $25,000; (v) business interrupƟon insurance in the 
amount of $100,000; (vi) an umbrella policy in at least the amount of $1,000,000; (vii) accidental medical coverage 
for Franchisee and its employees in at least the sum of $25,000; and (viii) any other insurance required by 
applicable law (e.g., worker’s compensaƟon insurance). Franchisor may, in its sole discreƟon, revise Franchisee’s 
insurance requirements by providing Franchisee with wriƩen noƟce of the updated requirements, and Franchisee 
shall have 60 calendar days from receiving such noƟce to conform to the updated insurance requirements. 
 
All of Franchisee’s insurance policies must provide for at least 30 calendar days’ wriƩen noƟce to Franchisor before 
cancellaƟon, and must name Franchisor as an addiƟonal insured. Franchisee must provide Franchisor with 
evidence of all required insurance at least 10 calendar days before Franchisee begins operaƟon of the Franchised 
Business, and a cerƟficate of renewal must be provided to Franchisor no later than 10 calendar days before the 
expiraƟon date of each policy. 
 
If Franchisee fails to maintain the minimum insurance coverage required in this secƟon of the Agreement, or if 
Franchisee fails to produce acceptable evidence of such coverage in a Ɵmely fashion, in addiƟon to any other 
remedies available to Franchisor, Franchisor may purchase any missing insurance at Franchisee's sole expense. 
Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor on demand for Franchisor's costs in obtaining such missing insurance, along 
with a 20% surcharge based on the cost of the insurance obtained by Franchisor.  
 
Following the expiraƟon or terminaƟon of this Agreement, Franchisee shall conƟnue to maintain professional 
liability or errors and omissions insurance and general liability insurance for a period of Ɵme not less than the 
maximum applicable statute of limitaƟons in the jurisdicƟon in which the Franchised Business is located for any 
potenƟal Claim. 
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XII PROPRIETARY MARKS 
 
A. Use by Franchisee 
 
Franchisee may use the Marks only in accordance with the standards and specificaƟons contained in this 
Agreement or as Franchisor may determine from Ɵme to Ɵme, and only during the Term. Without limiƟng the 
foregoing, Franchisee agrees to all of the following: 
 

1.  Franchisee must use the Marks solely in connecƟon with operaƟng the Franchised Business within the 
Territory and in accordance with the ConfidenƟal OperaƟng Manual, or as may be set forth in wriƟng by 
Franchisor. At no Ɵme shall Franchisee permit the Marks to be used or displayed as part of the Franchised 
Business in conjuncƟon with any other person or enƟty’s proprietary marks without Franchisor’s express 
wriƩen consent. 
 
2.  Franchisee must use the Marks as the sole idenƟficaƟon for the Franchised Business, and Franchisee 
must prominently display the Marks on or in connecƟon with all materials Franchisor designates and only 
in the manner prescribed by Franchisor. 
 
3.  Franchisee must never use the Marks as security for any obligaƟon or indebtedness, nor may Franchisee 
ever encumber or aƩempt to encumber the Marks. 
 
4.  Franchisee shall not, without Franchisor’s prior wriƩen consent, use any of the Marks (or any variaƟon 
of the Marks): (i) as part of Franchisee’s corporate or other legal names; (ii) on or as part of any website, 
domain name, URL, web page, electronic mail address, lisƟng, banner, adverƟsement, or any other service 
or link on, to, or with the internet; (iii) with any prefix, suffix (including, but not limited to, the word “Inc.”), 
or other modifying words, terms, designs, or symbols; or (iv) in any modified form. Franchisee shall not 
register any of the Marks (or any variaƟon of the Marks) as a service mark or trademark, or hold out or 
otherwise employ the Marks to perform any acƟvity or to incur any obligaƟon or indebtedness that might: 
(a) reasonably result in making Franchisor liable to any third party; or (b) harm, tarnish, or impair 
Franchisor’s reputaƟon, name, services, or Marks. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the 
expiraƟon, terminaƟon, or cancellaƟon of this Agreement. 
 
5.  Franchisee shall not permit any third party to imprint the Marks on any products, materials, documents, 
and supplies uƟlized by Franchisee in connecƟon with the operaƟon of the Franchised Business without 
first obtaining Franchisor’s prior wriƩen consent and causing such third party to execute a license 
agreement acceptable to Franchisor. 
 

B. Exclusive Property of Franchisor 
 
Except for the limited license expressly granted in this Agreement, Franchisee has no ownership or other rights in 
or to the Marks. Franchisee’s use of the Marks under this Agreement does not give Franchisee any interest, 
ownership or otherwise, in or to the Marks except the non-exclusive license granted in this Agreement. Franchisee 
therefore acknowledges and agrees that at all Ɵmes Franchisor is the sole owner of the Marks. In addiƟon to the 
foregoing, Franchisee further acknowledges and agrees that: 
 

1.  Franchisor is the exclusive owner of the goodwill associated with the Marks. Any goodwill arising from 
Franchisee’s use of the Marks in its operaƟon of the Franchised Business, whether under the System or 
otherwise, shall inure solely and exclusively to Franchisor and in and for Franchisor’s benefit. Upon 
expiraƟon or terminaƟon of this Agreement (and the license granted under this Agreement), no monetary 
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amount shall be assigned as having been aƩributable to any goodwill associated with Franchisee’s use of 
the System or the Marks. 
 
2.  Franchisee will not directly or indirectly contest the validity of Franchisor’s ownership of the Marks 
either during or aŌer the Term. 

 
C. Infringement by Franchisee 
 
Any unauthorized use of the Marks by Franchisee shall consƟtute an infringement of Franchisor’s rights. Both 
during and aŌer the Term, Franchisee must not, directly or indirectly, infringe on the Marks, or take any acƟon in 
derogaƟon of Franchisor's rights to the Marks. 
 
D. Infringement by Others 
 
If Franchisee ever becomes aware of what it reasonably believes to be the unauthorized use of the Marks (or any 
variaƟon of the Marks) by a third party, Franchisee shall promptly noƟfy Franchisor in wriƟng. Franchisor shall, in 
its sole discreƟon, determine whether or not it wishes to undertake any acƟon against that third party as a result 
of that third party’s alleged infringement of the Marks. If Franchisor undertakes such acƟon, it shall have the sole 
authority and power of aƩorney to prosecute or seƩle such a claim or acƟon, and in such cases, Franchisee agrees 
to render such assistance as Franchisor shall reasonably demand to carry out the prosecuƟon or seƩlement of any 
such claim or acƟon. In no event, however, shall Franchisee have any right to prosecute any claim or iniƟate any 
acƟon relaƟng to the alleged infringement of the Marks without Franchisor’s prior wriƩen consent.  
 
E. Claims Against the Marks By a Third Party 
 
If Franchisee ever becomes aware of a claim or demand by a third party against Franchisor and/or Franchisee 
arising out of the ParƟes use of the Marks in accordance with this Agreement or any alleged infringement of a 
third party’s mark, Franchisee shall promptly noƟfy Franchisor in wriƟng of such claim or demand. Franchisee shall 
have no power, right, or authority to seƩle or compromise any such claim by a third party without Franchisor’s 
prior wriƩen consent.  
 
Provided that Franchisee is in full compliance with this Agreement, Franchisor shall defend Franchisee against any 
third-party claim or demand against Franchisee arising out of Franchisee’s use of the Marks in accordance with 
this Agreement, using aƩorneys of Franchisor’s choosing. Franchisor may elect to compromise or seƩle any such 
claim, at its sole discreƟon. Franchisee agrees to cooperate fully with Franchisor in connecƟon with any such 
defense. Franchisee irrevocably grants Franchisor authority and power of aƩorney to defend or seƩle such claims 
or demands. 
 
If a third party ever demonstrates, to Franchisor’s sole saƟsfacƟon, a superior right to use any of the Marks, 
Franchisee shall, upon demand by Franchisor, disconƟnue its use of such Mark(s) and adopt, at Franchisee’s sole 
cost and expense, any Mark(s), if any, selected by Franchisor to replace such disconƟnued Mark(s). 
 
F. Non-Exclusive Use 
 
The license of the Marks granted to Franchisee is non-exclusive. In addiƟon to Franchisor’s right to use and grant 
others the right to use the Marks, all rights not expressly granted in this Agreement to Franchisee relaƟng to the 
Marks or other maƩers are reserved for Franchisor, including the right to: 
 

1.  To grant other licenses for the use of the Marks, in addiƟon to those already granted to exisƟng 
franchisees and to Franchisee.  
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2.  To develop and establish other systems and programs uƟlizing the same or similar Marks, or any other 
proprietary marks, and to grant franchises relaƟng to the use of those marks without granƟng Franchisee 
any such rights. 
 
3.  Sell, within or outside the Territory, through various channels of distribuƟon under any terms that 
Franchisor deems appropriate, products and/or services similar or idenƟcal to those authorized for the 
Franchised Business, using the Marks. As an example only, and not as a limitaƟon on this reservaƟon by 
Franchisor, Franchisor may offer certain products for sale via the internet, both within and outside the 
Territory. 

 
G. Franchisor’s Right to Modify the Marks 
 
Franchisor has no present intenƟon of altering any of its Marks. Franchisor recognizes, however, that rights in 
intangible property such as the Marks are oŌen difficult to establish and defend and that changes in the cultural, 
economic, and geographic environment within which the System operates may make changes in one or more of 
the Marks desirable or necessary. Franchisor therefore reserves the right, in its sole discreƟon, to change any of 
its Marks and the specificaƟons for each when Franchisor believes that it will be beneficial to the brand to do so. 
Franchisee agrees that it will promptly conform, at its own expense, to any such changes within thirty calendar 
days of Franchisor’s request. 
 
XIII CONFIDENTIAL OPERATING MANUAL 
 
A. Business OperaƟons 
 
To protect the System, as well as to ensure the maintenance of uniform standards of operaƟon under the Marks, 
Franchisee shall conduct the Franchised Business in accordance with the requirements of the OperaƟng Manual, 
which may be revised from Ɵme to Ɵme in Franchisor’s sole discreƟon. The provisions set forth below relaƟng to 
the OperaƟng Manual shall survive the expiraƟon, terminaƟon, or cancellaƟon of this Agreement. 
 
B. ConfidenƟality 
 
In addiƟon to any other restricƟons to Franchisor’s confidenƟal informaƟon contained in this Agreement, 
Franchisee further agrees that it shall at all Ɵmes treat the OperaƟng Manual (as well as any other manuals created 
for or approved for use by Franchisor in the operaƟon of the Franchised Business) as confidenƟal. Franchisee 
acknowledges and agrees that the contents of the OperaƟng Manual consƟtute a trade secret (which, together 
with other trade secrets and confidenƟal informaƟon whether designated specifically as confidenƟal or not, is 
collecƟvely referred to in this Agreement as the “ConfidenƟal InformaƟon”). In recogniƟon of this 
acknowledgment by Franchisee, Franchisee expressly agrees that it shall not at any Ɵme copy, duplicate, record, 
divulge, or otherwise communicate the contents of the OperaƟng Manual (or, as is stated below, any of the 
ConfidenƟal InformaƟon) for the benefit of any other person or enƟty. 
 
Franchisee shall divulge the informaƟon contained in the OperaƟng Manual only to those of its employees or 
independent contractors who must have access to the informaƟon to operate the Franchised Business. Prior to 
providing such individuals access to the informaƟon contained in the OperaƟng Manual, Franchisee shall obtain 
that individual’s express wriƩen acknowledgement and agreement to be bound by the confidenƟality 
requirements established in this provision in a form acceptable to Franchisor (which shall also grant Franchisor an 
independent right of acƟon against such an individual in the event of a breach), and shall deliver that 
acknowledgment/agreement to Franchisor prior to permiƫng such access to that individual. 
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Franchisee shall immediately noƟfy Franchisor in wriƟng of any instance discovered by Franchisee of unauthorized 
persons or enƟƟes obtaining access to the OperaƟng Manual. 
 
The OperaƟng Manual shall at all Ɵmes remain Franchisor’s exclusive property. Franchisee’s possession of and use 
of the OperaƟng Manual shall at all Ɵmes be deemed a loan from Franchisor to Franchisee, which may upon any 
breach or terminaƟon of this Agreement, be revoked by Franchisor.  
 
C. ModificaƟon 
 
Franchisor may from Ɵme to Ɵme, and in its sole discreƟon, revise the OperaƟng Manual. If that occurs, Franchisee 
agrees to comply with each new or modified standard and each such addiƟon and modificaƟon shall be deemed 
part of the OperaƟng Manual. To the extent that compliance with any revisions to the OperaƟng Manual carries 
with it addiƟonal costs/expenses, those shall be borne solely by Franchisee. In no event, however, shall any such 
revisions fundamentally alter Franchisee’s status or rights under this Agreement. 
 
XIV CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
 
A. Use of ConfidenƟal InformaƟon 
 
Franchisee may use the ConfidenƟal InformaƟon only during the Term of this Agreement and only in compliance 
with the requirements contained in this Agreement.  
 
As with the restricƟons set forth in the prior secƟon relaƟng to both the OperaƟng Manual and other materials 
consƟtuƟng Franchisor’s ConfidenƟal InformaƟon, Franchisee must at all Ɵmes treat the ConfidenƟal InformaƟon 
as strictly confidenƟal. In recogniƟon of this acknowledgment by Franchisee, Franchisee expressly agrees that it 
shall not at any Ɵme copy, duplicate, record, divulge, or otherwise communicate the contents of the ConfidenƟal 
InformaƟon including, or use of ConfidenƟal InformaƟon, to or for the benefit of any other person or enƟty. 
 
The ConfidenƟal InformaƟon shall at all Ɵmes remain Franchisor’s exclusive property. Franchisee’s possession of 
and use of the ConfidenƟal InformaƟon shall at all Ɵmes be deemed a loan from Franchisor to Franchisee, which 
may upon any breach or terminaƟon of this Agreement, be revoked by Franchisor. 
 
B. Use of and Improvement to the System 
 
As Franchisor develops and improves the System, Franchisor will disseminate such informaƟon to all of its 
franchisees. In return, and in consideraƟon of that fact, Franchisee agrees that any idea or suggested innovaƟons 
or variaƟons that may tend to enhance or improve the System that Franchisee develops, discovers, or otherwise 
becomes aware of during the Term of this Agreement shall be submiƩed to Franchisor for its evaluaƟon for 
adopƟon and use. Franchisee further agrees that all proprietary rights to such ideas, innovaƟons, improvements, 
enhancements, or variaƟons created or acquired by Franchisee, or any of its employees, shall be owned exclusively 
by Franchisor, and may be made available to all The Rush Coffee franchisees and licensees. 
 
C. Remedies 
 
Franchisee acknowledges that any failure to comply with the confidenƟality provisions of this Agreement will cause 
Franchisor irreparable injury. Franchisee therefore agrees that in any breach by Franchisee of any of the 
confidenƟality provisions of this Agreement, Franchisor shall not only be enƟtled to its aƩorneys’ fees and costs 
upon prevailing, but Franchisor shall also be enƟtled to seek injuncƟve relief without the necessity of posƟng a 
bond.  
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D. PreservaƟon of ConfidenƟality 
 
Franchisee shall divulge the ConfidenƟal InformaƟon only to those of its employees or independent contractors 
who must have access to the informaƟon to operate the Franchised Business. Prior to providing such individuals 
access to the ConfidenƟal InformaƟon, Franchisee shall obtain that individual’s express wriƩen acknowledgement 
and agreement to be bound by the confidenƟality requirements established in this provision in a form acceptable 
to Franchisor (which shall also grant Franchisor an independent right of acƟon against such an individual in the 
event of a breach), and shall deliver that acknowledgment/agreement to Franchisor prior to permiƫng such access 
to that individual. 
 
XV ADVERTISING 
 
A. AdverƟsing—Generally 
 
While Franchisee is free to engage in its own adverƟsing, it may only do so subject to the limitaƟons contained in 
this secƟon of the Agreement, and at its own expense. While Franchisor may provide markeƟng consultaƟon, 
general adverƟsing strategy, promoƟonal planning, and budgeƟng to Franchisee from Ɵme to Ɵme, Franchisor 
shall at no Ɵme be obligated to conduct adverƟsing or spend any amount of money on adverƟsing in Franchisee’s 
Territory, or otherwise.  
 
B. MarkeƟng Fund 
 
Franchisor may establish and administer an adverƟsing, publicity and markeƟng fund (the "MarkeƟng Fund") to 
promote The Rush Coffee Brand.  When and if the MarkeƟng Fund is established, Franchisee will be required to 
make a MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon, at Franchisor’s discreƟon, of 1% to 3% of Franchisee’s Gross Revenues (as 
defined in SecƟon III.C.) to the MarkeƟng Fund.  Franchisor will give Franchisee 30 days’ prior wriƩen noƟce before 
Franchisee is required to make any MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon.  Such MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon shall be 
payable to Franchisor monthly in the same manner and method as the Royalty Fee.  Upon 30 days’ noƟce to 
Franchisee, the MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟon may be increased or decreased, at Franchisor’s sole discreƟon, 
although no increase will require Franchisee to contribute more than 3% of its Gross Revenues. 
 
Franchisor has sole discreƟon over all maƩers relaƟng to the MarkeƟng Fund, and all related maƩers (consistent 
with its purposes and the provisions of this Agreement).  The MarkeƟng Fund may be used for (among other things) 
product development; signage; creaƟon, producƟon and distribuƟon of markeƟng, adverƟsing, public relaƟons 
and other materials in any medium, including the Internet; administraƟon expenses; legal fees incurred by or spent 
defending the MarkeƟng Fund, brand/image campaigns; media; naƟonal, regional and other markeƟng programs; 
acƟviƟes to promote current and/or future  and the Brand; agency and consulƟng services; research, any expenses 
approved by Franchisor and associated with franchisee advisory groups (if any); and all or porƟons of the salaries, 
benefits or expenses of people Franchisor employs who work on MarkeƟng Fund maƩers (except that such 
salaries, benefits or expenses will be charged pro rata based on the Ɵme they spend on MarkeƟng Fund maƩers.) 
Among other things, MarkeƟng Fund ContribuƟons may be used for website development/operaƟon and to pay 
Internet, Intranet, URL, 1-800 or similar number, and other charges, fees and/or expenses.  A brief statement 
regarding the availability of Th Rush Coffee Franchises may be included in adverƟsing and other items produced 
using the MarkeƟng Fund.  Franchisor shall have no obligaƟon in administering the MarkeƟng Fund, to make 
expenditures for Franchisee which are equivalent or proporƟonate to any payments by Franchisee, or to ensure 
that any parƟcular franchisee or any parƟcular Franchised Business benefits directly or pro rata from adverƟsing 
or promoƟon conducted under the MarkeƟng Fund. 
 
Franchisor and/or any affiliate can provide goods, services, materials, etc. (including administraƟve services and/or 
“in-house adverƟsing agency” services) and be compensated and/or reimbursed for the same by the MarkeƟng 
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Fund, provided that any such compensaƟon must be reasonable in amount.  Franchisor can arrange for goods, 
services, materials, etc. (including administraƟve services) to be provided by independent persons/companies and 
all related costs, fees, etc. will be paid by the MarkeƟng Fund.   
 
The MarkeƟng Fund will be accounted for separately and may be used to pay all administraƟve and other costs of 
the MarkeƟng Fund related to its acƟviƟes and purposes and/or as authorized by the relevant Franchise 
Agreements.  All taxes of any kind incurred in connecƟon with or related to the MarkeƟng Fund, its acƟviƟes, 
contribuƟons to the MarkeƟng Fund and/or any other Fund aspect, whether imposed on Franchisor, the MarkeƟng 
Fund or any other related party, will be the sole responsibility of the MarkeƟng Fund.  Franchisor will prepare 
financial statements for the MarkeƟng Fund annually, which will be furnished to Franchisee upon wriƩen request.  
Such statements may be audited and any related accounƟng/audiƟng costs will be paid by the MarkeƟng Fund.  
Funds in the MarkeƟng Fund must be expended, prior to terminaƟon of the MarkeƟng Fund, only for the purposes 
authorized by the relevant Franchise Agreement(s).  No profit, gain or other benefit will directly accrue to 
Franchisor from the MarkeƟng Fund.  All interest earned on monies contributed to, or held in, the MarkeƟng Fund 
will be remiƩed to the MarkeƟng Fund and will be subject to the restricƟons of the relevant Franchise 
Agreement(s).  
 
E. Subject to the express requirements of this Agreement that contribuƟons made by Franchisee will only be 
spent as authorized herein, Franchisee agrees that Franchisor may deny access to, and the benefits of, any and all 
programs and/or materials created by the MarkeƟng Fund to any Franchisee who is not in Good Standing 
 
C. Local AdverƟsing.  Local adverƟsing is at the discreƟon of Franchisee.  Franchisor does not currently require 
Franchisee to spend any amount on local adverƟsing to promote the Franchised Business, but Franchisor reserves 
the right to do so in the future.  Franchisor will give Franchisee 30 days’ prior wriƩen noƟce before implemenƟng 
any such requirement for local adverƟsing of the Franchised Business. 
 
D. Franchisee’s AdverƟsing 
 
In addiƟon to complying with the System Standards, all of Franchisee’s Franchised Business-related adverƟsing—
regardless of the medium, and including Social Media—must be professional, accurate, and in conformity with: (i) 
all applicable laws and regulaƟons relaƟng to consumer adverƟsing; (ii) the OperaƟng Manual and System 
Standards; and (iii) standards or requirements Franchisor may establish from Ɵme to Ɵme.  
 
The term “adverƟsing” shall be interpreted broadly to include any display of the Marks or any item intended to 
aƩract customers to the Franchised Business. At Franchisor’s request and in its sole discreƟon, Franchisee will 
promptly modify, take-down, remove from publicaƟon, and/or disconƟnue any adverƟsing (including but not 
limited to the below-defined Social Media material/posts) that Franchisor directs. At all Ɵmes, Franchisee shall 
display the Marks in the manner prescribed by Franchisor on all signs and all other adverƟsing and promoƟonal 
materials used in connecƟon with the Franchised Business. 
 
With the excepƟon of Social Media, which is addressed in more detail below, all adverƟsing containing the Marks 
must be submiƩed to Franchisor for approval prior to implementaƟon. Once Franchisee submits proposed 
adverƟsing to Franchisor, it will have 15 calendar days to review the adverƟsing, and within that Ɵme frame, 
Franchisor will provide Franchisee with wriƩen approval or denial of the adverƟsing materials. Once Franchisor 
has approved a parƟcular item of adverƟsing, Franchisee will not be obligated to obtain further permission to 
conƟnue using such adverƟsing in the future.  
 
E. Web Sites 
 
With the excepƟon of approved Social Media, Franchisee may not establish or maintain a domain name, an 
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internet website, or webpage that relates to or adverƟses the Franchised Business or displays the Marks. 
Franchisor, in fact, reserves for itself the exclusive right, but not the obligaƟon, to create or maintain any websites 
or web pages concerning or displaying The Rush Coffee franchises or the Marks.  
 
F. Social Media 
 
As is set forth more parƟcularly below, Franchisee is obligated to adverƟse and promote the Franchised Business 
via websites and applicaƟons that enable users to create and share content or parƟcipate in social networking 
(“Social Media”).  
 
Once Franchisee commences operaƟons of the Franchised Business, Franchisee must publish at least one post per 
week to both Instagram and Facebook for the purpose of adverƟsing the Franchised Business. Although the posƟng 
requirement applies only upon commencement of operaƟons, Franchisor encourages Franchisee to develop and 
insƟtute a Social Media adverƟsing campaign prior to that Ɵme. 
 
Notwithstanding the prior submission requirements contained above, Franchisee is not obligated to submit its 
Social Media posts to Franchisor for review or approval. If, however, Franchisor requests that Franchisee revise or 
remove any Social Media posƟng, Franchisee must do so immediately. 
 
At all Ɵmes, Franchisee must grant Franchisor administrator access to all Social Media promoƟng the Franchised 
Business or containing the Marks.   
 
G. Intellectual Property Rights to AdverƟsing 
 
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor shall be the sole owner of all intellectual property rights of 
all adverƟsing (including Social Media) related to the Franchised Business or containing the Marks, whether 
created or implemented by Franchisee or otherwise. Franchisee shall have a license to uƟlize such intellectual 
property only during the Term of this Agreement. 
 
Franchisee agrees to execute any documents (and, if necessary, require its independent contractors to execute 
such documents) as Franchisor may from Ɵme to Ɵme deem necessary to give effect to this provision. Any 
adverƟsing, markeƟng, promoƟonal, public relaƟons, or sales concepts, plans, programs, acƟviƟes, or materials 
proposed or developed by Franchisee for the Franchised Business or the System and approved by Franchisor may 
be used by Franchisor and other franchisees of Franchisor without any compensaƟon to Franchisee. 
 
H. Grand Opening 
 
Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor recommends that Franchisee spends at between $100 and $250 on 
grand opening adverƟsing and promoƟon before opening the Franchised Business and/or during the first three 
months of operaƟon. Franchisee may choose to spend more.  
 
XVI TRANSFER OF INTEREST 
 
A. Transfer by Franchisor 
 
Franchisor may, in its sole discreƟon, and without the consent of Franchisee, transfer or delegate any or all of its 
rights and/or obligaƟons under this Agreement to any person or enƟty. If Franchisor’s transferee or delegate 
assumes Franchisor’s obligaƟons under this Agreement, within seven business days of Franchisor’s delivery of 
noƟce of such transfer to Franchisee, Franchisee must execute and deliver to Franchisor a wriƩen general release 
of Franchisor. 
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Franchisor may also transfer its stock, engage in public and private securiƟes offerings, merge, consolidate, 
reorganize, acquire other businesses, sell all or substanƟally all of its assets, borrow money (with or without 
providing collateral), and otherwise deal in its assets or operate its business in such manner as Franchisor desires, 
all without Franchisee’s consent. 
 
B. Transfer by Franchisee (Other Than to a Controlled EnƟty) 
 
With respect to the transfer by Franchisee of the Franchised Business, Franchisee, and/or any individuals who own 
or control the Franchised Business or Franchisee, the ParƟes agree as follows: [As used in this provision of the 
Agreement, the un-capitalized term “transfer” shall mean and refer to a direct or indirect sale, assignment, 
conveyance, transfer, pledge, mortgage, or encumbrance of all or a substanƟal porƟon of the assets of the 
Franchised Business, Franchisee, or of any enƟty that owns an interest in the Franchised Business.]    
 

1.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the rights and duƟes set forth in this Agreement are personal 
to Franchisee. Franchisor has granted the Franchised Business to Franchisee in reliance upon Franchisee’s 
business skills, financial capacity, reputaƟon, apƟtude, and/or personal character. Accordingly, Franchisee 
and its owners may not directly or indirectly transfer, sell, assign, convey, pledge, encumber, mortgage, or 
otherwise dispose of—voluntarily, involuntarily, or by operaƟon of law—any direct or indirect interest in 
this Agreement or the Franchised Business without Franchisor’s prior wriƩen consent. Franchisor shall 
not, however, unreasonably withhold its consent to a transfer of any interest in Franchisee provided that 
Franchisee (and any other involved individuals or enƟƟes) strictly comply with the condiƟons set forth in 
this provision of the Agreement.  
 
2.  Any purported or aƩempted transfer by Franchisee, by operaƟon of law or otherwise, in violaƟon of 
this Agreement shall be null and void. Such a transfer shall also consƟtute a material breach of this 
Agreement, for which Franchisor may elect to terminate without any opportunity to cure. Notwithstanding 
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, no transfer may be made to any person or enƟty who directly 
or indirectly engages in a business that is compeƟƟve with, or is substanƟally similar to, the business 
conducted by the Franchised Business, or who directly or indirectly owns an interest in any such compeƟng 
business. 
 
3.  Franchisee has saƟsfied all of its obligaƟons, monetary or otherwise, to Franchisor and any third parƟes. 
 
4.  Franchisee executes a general release, in a form saƟsfactory to Franchisor, of any and all claims against 
Franchisor and its officers, directors, shareholders, aƩorneys, and employees, in their corporate and 
individual capaciƟes, including, without limitaƟon, claims arising under federal, state, and local laws, rules, 
and ordinances. 
 
5.  The transferor’s right to receive compensaƟon pursuant to any agreement for the purchase of any 
interest in Franchisee or in the Franchised Business shall be subordinated and secondary to Franchisor’s 
rights to receive any outstanding monetary obligaƟons or other outstanding obligaƟons due from the 
transferor or Franchisee pursuant to this Agreement, whether arising before or aŌer the transfer. 
 
6.  The transferee franchisee shall enter into a wriƩen assumpƟon, in a form saƟsfactory to Franchisor, 
assuming and agreeing to discharge all of Franchisee’s obligaƟons under this Agreement prior to and aŌer 
the date of the assumpƟon. 
 
7.  The transferee shall demonstrate to Franchisor’s saƟsfacƟon that it: (a) meets Franchisor’s educaƟonal, 
managerial, and business standards; (b) possesses a good moral character, business reputaƟon, and credit 
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raƟng; (c) has the apƟtude and ability to conduct the Franchised Business; and (d) has adequate financial 
resources to operate the Franchised Business. 
 
8.  The transferee shall execute the standard form franchise agreement then being offered by Franchisor 
(as well as any ancillary agreements as Franchisor may require including, without limitaƟon, individual 
joint and several guaranƟes by each and every owner (direct and indirect) of the transferee), which when 
executed, will supersede and replace this Agreement. 
 
9.  At the transferee’s or Franchisee’s expense, and upon such other terms and condiƟons as Franchisor 
may reasonably require, the transferee, its Designated Manager, and other persons that Franchisor 
requests, successfully completes Franchisor’s training requirements then in effect for franchisees. 
 
10.  Any right of Franchisee to any payments from the transferee resulƟng from the transfer shall be 
subordinate to any of Franchisor’s claims or rights against either or both the Franchisee and/or the 
transferee (and, at Franchisor’s opƟon, either or both the Franchisee and/or transferee must executed any 
documents reasonably requested by Franchisor to evidence or acknowledge such liability). 
 
11.  Either Franchisee or the transferee shall pay Franchisor a transfer fee of $4,000, plus Franchisor’s 
aƩorneys’ fees and costs incurred in reviewing and approving the terms and condiƟons of the transfer.  
 
12.  Either Franchisee or the transferee shall, at their own expense, upgrade the Site to conform to the 
then-current System Standards. 
 
13.  If a transfer occurs in violaƟon of the requirements set forth above, and notwithstanding the fact that 
such a violaƟon should have precluded the compleƟon of the transfer under the express terms of this 
Agreement, the failure of any individual shareholder, member, partner or owner of a transferee to obtain 
the above-referenced signatures from the transferee’s other shareholders, members, partners or owners 
shall result in the personal liability of the transferor Franchisee, as well as the individual who executed the 
assignment on behalf of the transferee. 
 
14.  Franchisee shall remain liable for all of its obligaƟons under this Agreement prior to the effecƟve date 
of the transfer, and Franchisee therefore agrees to execute and/or obtain any documents which Franchisor 
may require to ensure compliance with the requirements set forth in this secƟon. 
 
15.  Franchisor’s consent to a proposed transfer shall not consƟtute an opinion by Franchisor concerning 
the appropriateness or fairness of the terms of the transfer, or the likelihood of the transferee’s (or 
Franchisee’s) future success.  
 
16.  Franchisee releases and indemnifies Franchisor from any claims or liabiliƟes stemming from a denial 
by Franchisor of a proposed transfer, including without limitaƟon, if the denial resulted from a failure by 
Franchisee or the transferee to abide by all of the requirements set forth in this secƟon. 
 
17.  Franchisor’s consent to a transfer does not consƟtute a waiver by Franchisor of any claims it may have 
against Franchisee for any breach of this Agreement, either before or aŌer the consent was given. 
 
18.  Subject to the limitaƟons set forth below, all transfers are subject to Franchisor’s right of first refusal. 
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C. Transfer by Franchisee to a Controlled EnƟty 
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisee shall not be obligated to obtain Franchisor’s consent to a transfer or 
pay a transfer fee if all of the following are and remain true during the Term of the Agreement: 
 

1.  Franchisee is an individual who is transferring his or her interest in the Franchised Business to a wholly-
owned enƟty, provided that all voƟng and ownership interest in that enƟty will at all Ɵmes be, and remain, 
owned by the original (individual) Franchisee. 
 
2.  The enƟty’s governing documents (e.g., arƟcles of organizaƟon, bylaws, partnership agreement, 
shareholder/operaƟng agreement, etc.) shall provide (or be amended to provide) that its acƟviƟes are 
confined exclusively to operaƟng the Franchised Business (or one or more addiƟonal The Rush Coffee 
franchises). 
 
3.  Prior to the transfer, transferee shall, in Franchisor’s sole discreƟon, either complete Exhibit 1 or 
otherwise submit to Franchisor the informaƟon contained in Exhibit 1, which provides informaƟon 
regarding the enƟty’s owners  (e.g., members, shareholders, partners, managers, etc.). If any subsequent 
changes in such informaƟon occurs, Franchisee/transferee will noƟfy Franchisor in wriƟng within seven 
calendar days of the change. 
 
4.  The transferee enƟty shall select a Designated Manager in compliance with this Agreement. 
 
5.  All shareholders, members (or in the case of a manager-manager LLC, the managing members), and 
partners of the transferee/Franchisee shall enter into an agreement, in a form saƟsfactory to Franchisor, 
uncondiƟonally guaranteeing the full payment and performance of the enƟty’s obligaƟons to Franchisor. 
 
6.  Each ownership cerƟficate of the transferee enƟty, if any, shall have conspicuously endorsed upon its 
face the following legend: 
 

“The transfer, sale, or pledge of these shares is subject to the terms and condiƟons of a Franchise 
Agreement with The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC dated ____________.” 

 
7.  Copies of the transferee/Franchisee enƟty’s arƟcles of incorporaƟon/organizaƟon, bylaws, partnership 
agreement, operaƟng agreement, shareholder agreement, and other governing documents, as well as a 
signed resoluƟon authorizing the execuƟon of this Agreement, shall be furnished to Franchisor for its 
approval. 
 
8.  The transferee enƟty’s name shall not consist of or contain the Marks or any colorable variaƟon of the 
Marks. 

 
D. The Right of Franchisee’s Heirs Upon Death or Disability of Franchisee 
 
Within 30 calendar days from Franchisee’s or its principal’s death or permanent incapacity (the laƩer being defined 
as a disability for three consecuƟve months during which Franchisee is unable to perform its obligaƟons under this 
Agreement), Franchisee’s trustee(s), representaƟve(s), or executor(s) must either: (i) saƟsfy Franchisor that a 
spouse, family member, or other heir is willing, competent, and capable of taking over for Franchisee; or (ii) agree 
to transfer the Franchised Business in accordance with the terms set forth above.  
 
If the laƩer (i.e., opƟon “ii”) comes into play, Franchisee’s trustee(s), representaƟve(s), or executor(s) shall have an 
addiƟonal 120 calendar days to effectuate the transfer. If the transfer is not completed within the requisite 120 
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calendar days described in opƟon “ii” above, then Franchisor may, in its sole discreƟon, terminate this Agreement, 
at which Ɵme all rights granted to Franchisee under this Agreement shall revert to Franchisor. During the above-
referenced Ɵme periods (i.e., the first 30 days, and the subsequent 120 days), if there is no current Designated 
Manager already in place, Franchisor shall have the right, in its sole discreƟon, to step in and take over operaƟon 
of the Franchised Business on behalf of Franchisee’s trustee(s), representaƟve(s), or executor(s) in the manner and 
under the condiƟons described elsewhere in this Agreement. 
 
If opƟon “i” above comes into play—i.e., Franchisee’s trustee(s), representaƟve(s), or executor(s) present a spouse, 
family member, or heir to take over as the new Franchisee and Franchisor is saƟsfied with that individual’s 
capabiliƟes—no transfer fee will be assessed and the transfer will not trigger Franchisor’s right of first refusal 
described below, although Franchisee’s estate shall be obligated to Franchisor for its aƩorneys’ fees and costs 
incurred in addressing the transfer. If there is no current Designated Manager already in place, Franchisor shall 
have the right, in its sole discreƟon, to step in and take over operaƟon of the Franchised Business on behalf of 
Franchisee’s trustee(s), representaƟve(s), or executor(s) in the manner and under the condiƟons described 
elsewhere in this Agreement unƟl a new individual has been selected and successfully trained as the new 
Designated Manager.  
 
E. Franchisor’s Right of First Refusal 
 
Subject to the limitaƟons set forth elsewhere in this secƟon, the ParƟes agree that Franchisor shall at all Ɵmes 
have a right of first refusal on any bona fide offer by a prospecƟve purchaser (i.e., prospecƟve transferee) to 
purchase the Franchised Business under the following condiƟons:  
 

1.  Upon receipt of a bona fide offer by the prospecƟve purchaser/transferee, Franchisee shall prepare the 
details of the offer in wriƟng and provide them to Franchisor. The wriƩen noƟficaƟon to Franchisor must 
contain idenƟcal terms as the offer presented by the prospecƟve purchaser/transferee, as well as the 
prospecƟve purchaser’s/transferee’s name, address, telephone number, and other perƟnent contact 
informaƟon. In addiƟon to the foregoing, the wriƩen noƟficaƟon by Franchisee must also include 
Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise applicaƟon completed by the prospecƟve 
purchaser/transferee. 
 
2.  Upon receipt of Franchisee’s wriƩen noƟficaƟon, Franchisor shall have 30 business days to consider 
and accept the offer by sending wriƩen noƟficaƟon to Franchisee of Franchisor’s intent to exercise its right 
of first refusal by meeƟng the terms of the prospecƟve purchaser’s/transferee’s offer. If Franchisor does 
not send Franchisor’s acceptance within the requisite 30 business day period, then subject to the other 
transfer requirements set forth above, Franchisee may conclude the sale/transfer to the prospecƟve 
purchaser/transferee. 
 
3.  If Franchisor exercises its right of first refusal, the closing shall occur within 90 calendar days of 
Franchisor’s acceptance. If Franchisor chooses not to exercise its right of first refusal, then Franchisee must 
conclude the sale within 90 calendar days of Franchisor’s rejecƟon, or within 90 calendar days of the 
expiraƟon of Franchisor’s 30-day noƟce rights, whichever occurs first. 

 
XVII DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 
 
A. TerminaƟon by Franchisor Without NoƟce or Right to Cure 
 
Subject to applicable law, upon the occurrence of any of the following events, Franchisor may immediately 
terminate this Agreement without noƟce to Franchisee and without prejudice to any of its other rights or 
remedies, in law or equity: 
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1.  Franchisee becomes insolvent, makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, files a peƟƟon 
in bankruptcy (or involuntarily has such a peƟƟon filed against it) and the peƟƟon is not dismissed within 
60 calendar days, and/or is otherwise adjudicated as bankrupt. 
 
2.  A bill in equity or any proceeding for the appointment of a receiver or other custodian over the 
Franchised Business or the assets of Franchisee which is not dismissed within 45 calendar days. 
 
3.  A final judgment in excess of $10,000 remains unsaƟsfied or of record for 30 calendar days or longer 
(unless a supersedeas bond is filed and/or a stay on enforcement is in effect). 
 
4.  A writ of execuƟon is levied against Franchisee’s operaƟon, assets, or property, or suit to foreclose any 
lien or mortgage against the Franchised Business is insƟtuted against Franchisee and not dismissed within 
45 calendar days. 
 
5.  Franchisor reasonably determines that Franchisee’s operaƟon of the Franchised Business consƟtutes 
an imminent threat to the health and safety of the public that cannot reasonably be cured in a Ɵmely 
fashion. 
 
6.  Franchisee, its owners, or a Designated Manager is convicted of a felony, a crime of moral turpitude, or 
any other crime, regardless of whether it affects Franchisee’s ability to operate the Franchised Business, 
which in Franchisor’s reasonable discreƟon, is likely to impair and/or damage the goodwill or reputaƟon 
of Franchisor, the System, or the Marks. 

 
B. TerminaƟon by Franchisor AŌer NoƟce, But with No Right to Cure 
 
Upon the occurrence of any of the following events, Franchisor may immediately terminate this Agreement by 
providing Franchisee with wriƩen noƟce, but no right to cure: 
 

1.  Franchisee abandons the Franchised Business by failing to operate it for at least seven consecuƟve 
calendar days. 
 
2.  Franchisee fails to Ɵmely secure a Site or commence operaƟons of the Franchised Agreement within 
the Ɵme limits and under the condiƟons required under this Agreement. 
 
3.  Franchisee either loses the right to conduct business at the Site (i.e., the vehicle is seized by a creditor 
and not returned within seven calendar days), or otherwise forfeits the right to do or transact business in 
the Territory where the Franchised Business operates and such forfeiture results from circumstances 
beyond the control of Franchisee, does not arise from any acƟon taken or failure to act by Franchisee, nor 
from any failure by Franchisee to cure or correct the circumstances that led to such forfeiture. 
 
4.  The Franchised Business is seized, taken over, or foreclosed by a government official in the exercise of 
his or her duƟes, or seized, taken over, or foreclosed by a creditor, lienholder, or lessor and such 
seizure/foreclosure is not reversed within seven calendar days. 
 
5.  Franchisee repeatedly fails to comply with one or more requirements under this Agreement, whether 
or not corrected aŌer noƟce, or Franchisee, aŌer curing a default under this Agreement, engages in the 
same non-compliant conduct on two or more addiƟonal occasions. 
 



Franchise Agreement | Page 32 

6.  Franchisee aƩempts or purports to make a transfer without abiding by requirements set forth in the 
transfer secƟon of this Agreement. 
 
7.  Franchisee breaches any provision of this Agreement concerning use of the ConfidenƟal InformaƟon or 
Franchisor’s other trade secrets. 
 
8.  Franchisee fails to successfully saƟsfy all of the training obligaƟons required under this Agreement. 
 
9.  Franchisee directly or indirectly violates its non-compeƟƟon or non-circumvenƟon obligaƟons as set 
forth in this Agreement. 
 
10.  Franchisee fails to obtain and deliver to Franchisor obtain and deliver to Franchisor executed 
RestricƟve Covenant Agreements from the required individuals (enumerated below). 
 
11.  Franchisee provides, offers, or sells any PermiƩed Products and Services at or from a locaƟon that is 
within the franchise territory of another The Rush Coffee franchise (except as expressly stated in this 
Agreement, the OperaƟng Manual, or any other wriƩen agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee), 
or otherwise infringes upon rights granted by Franchisor under franchise agreements with other 
franchisees of Franchisor. 
 
12.  Franchisee knowingly maintains false books or records, knowingly submits any false reports (including, 
but not limited to, the informaƟon provided as part of Franchisee’s applicaƟon for this franchise) to 
Franchisor, or understates its Gross Revenues reported to Franchisor by more than 5% during any given 
180-day period. 
 
13.  Franchisee fails on two or more separate occasions within any 12 consecuƟve month period to submit: 
(a) reports, informaƟon, or records when due; (b) Royalty Fees or other fees and payments when due; or 
(c) breaches the terms of this Agreement on three or more occasions, whether or not such defaults or 
failures were corrected aŌer noƟce or demand, and regardless of whether or not such a defaults or failures 
would otherwise be curable. 
 
14.  Franchisee refuses to allow or cooperate with an inspecƟon or audit of the Franchised Business 
following wriƩen demand by Franchisor.  
 
15.  Franchisee fails to achieve or exceed System or Performance Standards in two inspecƟons conducted 
in any 24 month period. 
 
16.  Franchisee engages in non-criminal conduct which materially threatens the reputaƟon or goodwill 
associated with the System or Franchisor. 
 

C. TerminaƟon by Franchisor AŌer NoƟce and Right to Cure 
 
Upon the occurrence of any breach of this Agreement, including any of the following events, Franchisor may 
terminate this Agreement if, aŌer Franchisor’s delivery of a wriƩen noƟce to cure to Franchisee, Franchisee fails 
to cure the default within 30 calendar days, or within fewer days if explicitly specified, from the date of the noƟce 
to cure. To the extent a cure is required or permiƩed under this Agreement, Franchisee shall have the burden of 
proving it properly and Ɵmely cured any default: 
 

1.  Franchisee fails to tender any amounts due to Franchisor under this Agreement within 10 calendar days 
aŌer Franchisor provides wriƩen noƟce to Franchisee of the breach. 
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2.  Franchisee fails to tender any amounts due to any The Rush Coffee approved or designated vendor or 
supplier within 10 calendar days aŌer Franchisor provides wriƩen noƟce to Franchisee of the breach. 
 
3.  Franchisee fails, for a period of 10 calendar days aŌer receipt of noƟficaƟon of non-compliance, to 
comply with any federal, state, or local law, regulaƟon, or ordinance applicable to the operaƟon of the 
Franchised Business. 
 
4.  Franchisee fails to obtain and/or maintain insurance as required in this Agreement. 
 
5.  Franchisee fails to operate the Franchised Business in full compliance with the terms of this Agreement, 
the OperaƟng Manual, or the System Standards within seven calendar days’ noƟce from Franchisor. 
 
6.  Absent wriƩen consent from Franchisor, Franchisee provides, offers, or sells products or services other 
than the PermiƩed Products and Services, and/or Franchisee fails to provide, offer, or sell any one, some, 
or all of the PermiƩed Products and Services. 
 
7.  If Franchisees fail to parƟcipate in a promoƟonal campaign, discount/giŌ card program, or honor a 
coupon in accordance with standard established by Franchisor within five calendar days’ noƟce from 
Franchisor. 

 
D. Franchisor’s Right to Operate AŌer Death, Disability, or Event of Default 
 
The ParƟes acknowledge and agree that it is imperaƟve that the Franchised Business be operated without any 
interrupƟon and in a manner that will not cause harm to the System. To ensure such conƟnued operaƟon, upon 
the occurrence of the death or disability of the Franchisee, or upon the occurrence of an event of default set forth 
in this secƟon of the Agreement, Franchisee authorizes Franchisor to operate the Franchised Business in 
Franchisee’s place for as long as is reasonably necessary and pracƟcable without waiver of any other rights or 
remedies Franchisor may have under this Agreement.  
 
All proceeds from the operaƟon of the Franchised Business during such period of operaƟon by Franchisor shall be 
separately accounted for, and the expenses of the Franchised Business, including an administraƟve fee of 15% of 
the Gross Revenue earned during Franchisor’s operaƟon of the Franchised Business (for overhead, travel costs, 
etc.), plus reasonable compensaƟon and expenses for Franchisor’s representaƟve(s), shall be charged against 
proceeds.  
 
If at any Ɵme during the Term, Franchisor temporarily steps in to operate the Franchised Business as provided in 
this provision, Franchisee agrees to hold harmless and fully indemnify Franchisor and any of Franchisor’s 
representaƟve(s) from any claims, losses, acƟons, or damages that may arise. 
 
Franchisor’s operaƟon of the Franchised Business will not operate as an assignment to Franchisor of any lease or 
sublease of the Franchised Business’s property, nor will Franchisor have any responsibility for payment of any rent 
or other charges owing on any lease for Franchisee’s property except as the charges relate to the period of 
Franchisor’s operaƟon of the Franchised Business.  
 
In addiƟon to administraƟve fee and other reimbursements referenced above, Franchisor will also deduct from 
the Gross Revenue its legal and accounƟng fees and costs incurred as a result of Franchisor’s temporary operaƟon 
of the Franchised Business.  
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E. Liability for Default 
 
If Franchisee fails to cure any default within the applicable Ɵme period set forth in this Agreement, Franchisee 
shall pay all damages, costs, and expenses incurred by Franchisor as a result of any such default, including, but not 
limited to, reasonable aƩorneys’ and accounƟng fees. This provision shall apply regardless of whether or not 
Franchisor exercises its right to terminate this Agreement or iniƟate legal proceedings against Franchisee. 
 
F. No Waiver 
 
The descripƟon of any default in any noƟce served upon Franchisee shall in no way preclude Franchisor from 
specifying addiƟonal or supplemental defaults in any acƟon, arbitraƟon, hearing, or suit relaƟng to this Agreement 
or its terminaƟon. 
 
G. Enforcement 
 
Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that Franchisor’s decision to enforce or not to enforce compliance with its 
rules and regulaƟons by other franchisees shall not affect Franchisor’s right to enforce such rules and regulaƟons 
against Franchisee, even under similar circumstances. 
 
H. TerminaƟon by Franchisee 
 
Franchisee may terminate this Agreement if Franchisor materially breaches a provision of this Agreement and fails 
to cure such a default within 30 calendar days of wriƩen noƟce from Franchisee. 
 
XVIII OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION 
 
Upon the expiraƟon or terminaƟon of this Agreement, all rights granted under this Agreement to Franchisee shall 
terminate immediately. The provisions of this secƟon of the Agreement are intended to, among other things, 
permit Franchisor, if Franchisor so chooses, to take over and conƟnue to operate the Franchised Business under 
its ownership immediately and without any interrupƟon. Franchisee, therefore, agrees to all of the following: 
 

1.  Franchisee must immediately cease operaƟng the Franchised Business. This means that aŌer 
terminaƟon, Franchisee must not, directly or indirectly: (a) use any of the Marks (including staƟonery, 
adverƟsing, signage, etc.); (b) represent itself to the public as a present or former franchisee of Franchisor; 
or (c) in any other way affiliate itself with the System or the Marks. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees 
that the foregoing provision is self-execuƟng and does not require Franchisee to execute or deliver any 
further document or instrument to effect or evidence Franchisor’s exclusive right in and to the System or 
the Marks. 
 
2.  Franchisee must immediately and permanently cease to use, by adverƟsing or in any manner 
whatsoever, any equipment, materials, confidenƟal methods, procedures, or techniques associated with 
the System. 
 
3.  If Franchisee conƟnues to operate, or subsequently begins to operate, any other business, Franchisee 
may not, in connecƟon with such business or its promoƟon, use any reproducƟon or colorable imitaƟon 
of the Marks or System, or imitate any methods of operaƟon, undertake any other conduct that is likely to 
cause confusion, mistake, or decepƟon, or that is likely to dilute Franchisor’s rights in and to the System 
of the Marks. Moreover, Franchisee must not use any designaƟon of origin, descripƟon, or representaƟon 
that falsely suggests or represents an associaƟon or connecƟon with Franchisor. Any such acƟon 
undertaken by Franchisee shall be considered unfair compeƟƟon within the meaning of the law.  
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4.  Within seven calendar days of terminaƟon or expiraƟon of this Agreement, Franchisee shall return all 
copies of the ConfidenƟal InformaƟon (e.g., the OperaƟng Manual), as well as all Computer Systems, 
adverƟsing materials, or trade secrets related in any way to the Franchised Business. Franchisee 
acknowledges that all such materials belong solely to Franchisor, and thus Franchisee shall not retain any 
copies of the foregoing materials.  
 
5.  Franchisee shall, at Franchisor’s opƟon, assign to Franchisor (or Franchisor’s designee) all of 
Franchisee’s rights, Ɵtle, and interest in and to the following: (i) telephone numbers associated with the 
Franchised Business; (ii) web sites, web pages, lisƟngs, banners, URLs, adverƟsements, or any other 
services and links related to the Franchised Business; and/or (iii) Social Media used in markeƟng the 
Franchised Business. 
 
6.  Franchisee shall, at Franchisor’s opƟon (to be exercised within 30 calendar days aŌer 
terminaƟon/expiraƟon), sell to Franchisor any or all of the furnishings, equipment, signs, truck and/or 
trailer, fixtures, supplies, or inventory of Franchisee related to the operaƟon of the Franchised Business. 
The price for the foregoing items shall be limited to each item’s depreciated book value. 
 
7.  Within 15 calendar days of terminaƟon/expiraƟon, Franchisee shall take such acƟon as may be 
necessary to cancel any ficƟƟous names or equivalent registraƟons that contain the Marks or were 
associated with the Franchised Business. During that same Ɵme period, Franchisee shall also provide 
Franchisor with wriƩen documentaƟon saƟsfactory to Franchisor of Franchisee’s compliance with this 
obligaƟon. 
 
8.  Franchisee shall pay all sums due and owing to Franchisor, including without limitaƟon, any unpaid 
Royalty Fees. 
 
9.  Following the expiraƟon or terminaƟon of this Agreement, Franchisee shall conƟnue to maintain 
professional liability or errors and omissions insurance and general liability insurance for the maximum 
applicable statute of limitaƟons for any potenƟal Claim in the jurisdicƟon in which the Franchised Business 
is located. 
 
10.  Franchisee irrevocably appoints Franchisor as the true and lawful aƩorney-in-fact and agent for 
Franchisee to carry out Franchisee’s obligaƟons under this secƟon. Franchisee agrees to promptly execute, 
acknowledge, and deliver to Franchisor any and all such documents as may be required to carry out 
Franchisee’s obligaƟons under this Agreement, including this provision.  
 

The provisions of this sub-secƟon shall survive the expiraƟon, terminaƟon, or cancellaƟon of this Agreement. 
 
XIX INDEPENDENT COVENANTS OF FRANCHISEE 
 
A. Management of Franchise 
 
Franchisee covenants that during the Term of this Agreement, except as otherwise approved in wriƟng by 
Franchisor, the Franchised Business shall at all Ɵmes be under the direct supervision of Franchisee or the 
Designated Manager, who shall devote his or her full Ɵme, energy, and best efforts to the day-to-day management 
and operaƟon of the Franchised Business. 
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B. Non-CompeƟƟon and Non-CircumvenƟon During the Term 
 
Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee will receive valuable specialized training and ConfidenƟal InformaƟon 
from Franchisor regarding the System, including without limitaƟon, informaƟon and training relaƟng to the: (i) 
design, development, and operaƟon of the Franchised Business; (ii) promoƟon and markeƟng of the System. 
Franchisee further acknowledges that Franchisor would be unable to protect the ConfidenƟal InformaƟon and 
other trade secrets against unauthorized use or disclosure, and would therefore be unable to encourage a free 
exchange of ideas and informaƟon among the franchisees within the System, if franchisees were permiƩed to hold 
interests in any compeƟƟve business, or otherwise circumvent the efforts of Franchisor or other franchisees.  
 
Franchisee therefore covenants and agrees that unless otherwise approved in wriƟng by Franchisor, during the 
Term of this Agreement:  
 

1.  Franchisee shall not, directly or indirectly, divert any business or customer of the Franchised Business 
or of any other of Franchisor’s franchisees, to any compeƟtor, nor do or perform, directly or indirectly, any 
other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Marks and the System. 
 
2.  Franchisee shall not compete directly or indirectly—either as an employee, owner, manager, 
shareholder, member, or partner, or through any of the same—with Franchisor or any of Franchisor’s other 
franchisees within the Territory or the territories of other exisƟng franchisees, in any business that 
primarily offers/sells coffee, espresso drinks, smoothies, sodas, teas, shaved ice, other beverages, baked 
goods, and desserts, or any other products or services that are offered in the Franchised Business. 

 
C. Non-CompeƟƟon and Non-CircumvenƟon Following ExpiraƟon/TerminaƟon 
 
In making the same acknowledgements as were set forth in the prior sub-secƟon, Franchisee further covenants 
and agrees that unless otherwise approved in wriƟng by Franchisor, upon the transfer, expiraƟon, or terminaƟon 
of this Agreement, and for a period of two years aŌer such transfer, expiraƟon, or terminaƟon: 
 

1.  Franchisee shall not, directly or indirectly, divert any business or customer of the Franchised Business 
or of any other of Franchisor’s franchisees, to any compeƟtor, nor do or perform, directly or indirectly, any 
other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Marks and the System. 
 
2.  Franchisee shall not compete directly or indirectly—either as an employee, owner, manager, 
shareholder, member, or partner, or through any of the same—within 25 air miles of Franchisor or any of 
Franchisor’s other franchisees, in any business that primarily offers/sells coffee, espresso drinks, 
smoothies, sodas, teas, shaved ice, other beverages, baked goods, and desserts, or any other products or 
services that are offered in the Franchised Business.  
 
3.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the non-compeƟƟon acƟviƟes prohibited in this sub-secƟon, 
including the length of the term and the extent of the geographic restricƟons, are necessary, fair, and 
reasonable to protect Franchisor’s legiƟmate business interests, and do not therefore consƟtute 
overreaching, duress, or coercion on Franchisor’s part. Franchisee further acknowledges and agrees that 
Franchisee’s full, uninhibited, and faithful observance of each of the covenants contained in this 
Agreement, including the non-compete provisions will not cause any undue hardship, financial or 
otherwise. Likewise, Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that enforcement by Franchisor of these 
covenants will not impair Franchisee’s ability to obtain employment commensurate with Franchisee’s 
abiliƟes and on terms fully acceptable to Franchisee, or otherwise to obtain income required for 
Franchisee’s support (or the support of the individual members, shareholders, and partners of Franchisee, 
if applicable). Franchisee’s special knowledge of the Franchised Business is such as would cause Franchisor 
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and its other franchisees serious injury and loss if it (or anyone acquiring such knowledge through 
Franchisee) were to use such knowledge to the benefit of a compeƟtor or were to directly compete with 
Franchisor or any of its franchisees. 
 

The ParƟes intend that the covenants contained in this parƟcular sub-secƟon be treated as a series of separate 
covenants, one for the geographic limitaƟon generally, and one for each month of the two years idenƟfied as the 
non-compeƟƟon period. 
 
If, therefore, in any judicial proceeding, a court refuses to enforce all of the separate covenants set forth in this 
secƟon, then such unenforceable covenants shall be deemed eliminated from the provisions of this Agreement for 
the purpose of such proceeding to the extent necessary to permit the remaining separate covenants to be 
enforced. Likewise, if in any judicial proceeding, a court shall refuse to enforce any one or more of such separate 
covenants because the total Ɵme or mileage idenƟfied above is deemed to be excessive or unreasonable, then it 
is the intent of the ParƟes that such covenants—which would otherwise be unenforceable as a result of the court’s 
ruling as to the unreasonableness of the period of Ɵme or mileage—be enforced for such lesser period of Ɵme or 
mileage as the court deems reasonable. 
 
The provisions of this sub-secƟon shall survive the expiraƟon, terminaƟon, or cancellaƟon of this Agreement. 
 
D. Exclusion for Publicly Traded Company 
 
This sub-secƟon shall not apply to Franchisee’s ownership of less than 5% of the outstanding equity securiƟes of 
any corporaƟon that is registered under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Act of 1934. 
 
E. ReducƟon of Covenants by Franchisor 
 
Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor shall have the right, in its sole discreƟon, to reduce the scope of any 
covenant set forth in this Agreement without Franchisee’s consent. Such reducƟon shall be effecƟve immediately 
upon receipt by Franchisee of wriƩen noƟce from Franchisor, and Franchisee agrees that it shall comply from that 
Ɵme forward with any covenant so modified. 
 
F. Claims Against Franchisor No Defense 
 
Franchisee expressly agrees that the existence of any claims or offsets that it may have against Franchisor, whether 
or not arising from this Agreement, shall not consƟtute a defense to the enforcement by Franchisor of any of the 
provisions or covenants contained in this Agreement. 
 
G. InjuncƟve Relief 
 
Franchisee acknowledges that its violaƟon of the terms of this secƟon would result in irreparable injury to 
Franchisor for which no adequate remedy at law may be available. Consequently, Franchisee agrees that Franchisor 
shall be enƟtled to injuncƟve relief without the necessity of posƟng a bond, and that Franchisee shall reimburse 
Franchisor all of its aƩorneys’ fees and costs incurred in seeking and enforcing the injuncƟve relief. 
 
H. ExecuƟon of Covenants by Key Personnel 
 
Upon Franchisor’s wriƩen request, Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with executed RestricƟve Covenant 
Agreements (see Exhibit D), containing covenants similar in substance to those set forth in this sub-secƟon 
(including covenants applicable upon the terminaƟon of a person’s relaƟonship with Franchisee), from each 
manager, officer, director, and owner of Franchisee.  
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With respect to each person who becomes associated with Franchisee in one of the capaciƟes enumerated above 
subsequent to the execuƟon of this Agreement, Franchisee shall, on its own accord, obtain signed Restricted 
Covenant Agreements from each such person and promptly provide Franchisor with executed copies.  
 
In no event shall any person enumerated above be granted access to any ConfidenƟal InformaƟon or trade secrets 
related to the System or the Franchised Business prior to his or her execuƟon of such a covenant.  
 
All covenants required by this sub-secƟon shall be in a form saƟsfactory to Franchisor, including, without limitaƟon, 
the specific idenƟficaƟon of Franchisor as a third-party beneficiary of such covenants with the independent right 
to enforce them. Franchisee’s failure to obtain and deliver to Franchisor executed covenants required by this sub-
secƟon shall consƟtute a material breach of this Agreement. 
 
I. True Copies of Copies 
 
Franchisee represents and warrants that copies of all documents it must furnish to Franchisor in connecƟon with 
obtaining the Franchise, and as may be required in the future, have been and will be true and complete copies of 
such documents (including all amendments or modificaƟons) and contain no misleading or incorrect statements 
or material omissions. 
 
XX WARRANTIES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
Franchisee acknowledges that except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement and the franchise 
disclosure document provided by Franchisor to Franchisee, Franchisor makes no representaƟons, warranƟes, or 
guarantees upon which Franchisee may rely. Nor does Franchisor assume any liability or obligaƟon to Franchisee 
by providing any waiver, approval, consent, or suggesƟon to Franchisee in connecƟon with this Agreement or the 
Franchised Business. 
 
In entering into this Agreement, Franchisee explicitly acknowledges all of the following: 
 

1.  FRANCHISEE’S SUCCESS IN OWNING AND OPERATING THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS IS SPECULATIVE AND 
WILL DEPEND ON MANY FACTORS, INCLUDING PRIMARILY, FRANCHISEE’S INDEPENDENT BUSINESS 
ABILITY. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, NO REPRESENTATIONS OR PROMISES, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, HAVE BEEN MADE BY FRANCHISOR OR ANY EMPLOYEE, ATTORNEY, OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF FRANCHISOR, TO INDUCE FRANCHISEE TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT. NO 
EMPLOYEE, OFFICER, DIRECTOR, ATTORNEY, OR REPRESENTATIVE IS AUTHORIZED TO DO OTHERWISE. 
FRANCHISEE FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT FRANCHISOR HAS MADE NO 
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, GUARANTEES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OUTSIDE OF THE FRANCHISE 
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, CONCERNING WHETHER OR NOT FRANCHISEE WILL EARN PROFIT OR DERIVE 
ANY INCOME FROM THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS. NOR DID FRANCHISOR REPRESENT, WARRANT, OR 
GUARANTY THAT IT WOULD REPURCHASE ANY PRODUCTS, EQUIPMENT, OR SUPPLIES IF FRANCHISEE WAS 
UNSATISFIED WITH THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS. 
 
2.  FRANCHISOR MAKES NO WARRANTY AS TO FRANCHISEE’S ABILITY TO OPERATE THE FRANCHISED 
BUSINESS IN THE JURISDICTION IN WHICH THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS IS TO BE OPERATED. FRANCHISEE 
ITSELF MUST SEEK OR OBTAIN ADVICE OF COUNSEL SPECIFICALLY WITH RESPECT TO THIS ISSUE AND WITH 
RESPECT TO EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT. IF LEGISLATION OR A REGULATION IS ENACTED OR 
PROMULGATED BY ANY GOVERNMENTAL BODY THAT PREVENTS FRANCHISEE FROM OPERATING THE 
FRANCHISED BUSINESS, FRANCHISOR SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY OF FRANCHISEE’S DAMAGES, NOR 
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SHALL FRANCHISOR BE REQUIRED TO INDEMNIFY FRANCHISEE IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER, OR TO 
RETURN ANY MONEY RECEIVED FROM FRANCHISEE. 
 
3.  FRANCHISEE HAS READ THIS AGREEMENT, THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, AND ALL OTHER 
RELATED AGREEMENTS AND DOCUMENTS, AND UNDERSTANDS AND ACCEPTS THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, 
AND COVENANTS CONTAINED IN EACH OF THEM. FRANCHISEE FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT SUCH 
TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND COVENANTS ARE REASONABLY NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN THE SYSTEM’S HIGH 
STANDARDS OF QUALITY AND SERVICE, AND THUS PROTECT AND PRESERVE THE GOODWILL ASSOCIATED 
WITH THE MARKS. FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT FRANCHISEE UNDERSTANDS THE PROVISIONS OF 
THIS AGREEMENT, THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, AND ALL OTHER RELATED AGREEMENTS AND 
DOCUMENTS. 
 
4.  FRANCHISEE HAS CONDUCTED AN INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION OF THE BUSINESS CONTEMPLATED 
BY THIS AGREEMENT. FRANCHISEE RECOGNIZES THAT THE NATURE OF THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS MAY 
EVOLVE AND CHANGE OVER TIME, THAT AN INVESTMENT IN THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS INVOLVES 
BUSINESS RISKS, AND THAT THE SUCCESS OF THE VENTURE DEPENDS PRIMARILY UPON FRANCHISEE’S 
INDIVIDUAL AND INDEPENDENT BUSINESS ABILITY AND EFFORTS. FRANCHISEE HAS CONSULTED WITH 
PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS OF FRANCHISEE’S CHOOSING WHEN DEEMED NECESSARY TO DO SO, 
INCLUDING LEGAL COUNSEL, REGARDING ALL ASPECTS OF THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS CONTEMPLATED 
BY THIS AGREEMENT, ALL RELATED AGREEMENTS, AND THE BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS CREATED BY 
BECOMING A FRANCHISEE IN THE SYSTEM. FOLLOWING SUCH CONSULTATIONS, OR IN THE ABSENCE OF 
SUCH CONSULTATIONS, FRANCHISEE HAS INDEPENDENTLY CONCLUDED, THAT IT IS FINANCIALLY 
PREPARED TO ASSUME THE RISKS THAT MAY BE INVOLVED IN SUCH A BUSINESS VENTURE. 
 
5.  FRANCHISEE IS AWARE OF THE FACT THAT SOME PRESENT OR FUTURE FRANCHISEES MAY OPERATE 
UNDER DIFFERENT FORMS OF AGREEMENTS, AND CONSEQUENTLY, THAT FRANCHISOR’S OBLIGATIONS 
AND RIGHTS WITH RESPECT TO ITS VARIOUS FRANCHISEES MAY DIFFER MATERIALLY. 
 
6.  NO REPRESENTATIONS HAVE BEEN MADE OR AUTHORIZED BY FRANCHISOR, OR BY ITS OFFICERS, 
DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, EMPLOYEES, PERSONNEL, ATTORNEYS, AGENTS, OR OTHER 
REPRESENTATIVES, THAT ARE CONTRARY TO THE STATEMENTS MADE IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE 
DOCUMENT (OF WHICH THIS FRANCHISEE AGREEMENT IS A PART), AND FRANCHISEE HAS NOT RELIED 
UPON ANY OTHER SUCH REPRESENTATIONS. 
 
7.  IN ALL OF THEIR DEALINGS WITH FRANCHISEE, FRANCHISOR’S OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, 
EMPLOYEES, PERSONNEL, AGENTS, AND REPRESENTATIVES, SUCH INDIVIDUALS ACTED ONLY IN A 
REPRESENTATIVE CAPACITY, NOT IN AN INDIVIDUAL CAPACITY, AND THIS AGREEMENT, AND ALL BUSINESS 
DEALINGS BETWEEN FRANCHISEE AND SUCH INDIVIDUALS AS A RESULT OF THIS AGREEMENT, ARE SOLELY 
BETWEEN FRANCHISEE AND FRANCHISOR. 
 
8.  IN EACH CASE IN WHICH FRANCHISOR MAY EXERCISE ANY OPTION OR OTHER RIGHT UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT, FRANCHISOR MAY DO SO IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION, WITHOUT LIABILITY OR OTHER 
OBLIGATION. SO AS TO PRESERVE THE FLEXIBILITY TO DEAL WITH PRACTICAL SITUATIONS, FRANCHISOR 
MAY, IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION, ELECT NOT TO ENFORCE (OR TO ENFORCE SELECTIVELY) ANY PROVISION OF 
THIS AGREEMENT, OR ANY OTHER AGREEMENT, ANY POLICY OR OTHERWISE, WHETHER WITH RESPECT 
TO FRANCHISEE OR ANY OTHER FRANCHISEE OF THE SYSTEM. LIKEWISE, FRANCHISOR MAY APPLY 
DIFFERENT POLICIES TO ANY FRANCHISEE, ALL WITHOUT LIABILITY OR OTHER OBLIGATION, AND ANY 
SUCH ACTS OR OMISSIONS WILL NOT LIMIT OR OTHERWISE AFFECT FRANCHISOR’S RIGHTS, WHETHER TO 
STRICTLY ENFORCE THIS AGREEMENT OR OTHERWISE. 
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XXI INJUNCTIVE RELIEF / LIMITATION ON DAMAGES 
 
A. InjuncƟve Relief 
 
The Franchised Business is intended to be one of a large number of businesses idenƟfied by the Marks. 
Consequently, Franchisee’s failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement is likely to cause irreparable damage 
to Franchisor and the System, and damages at law would, therefore, likely be an inadequate remedy. Accordingly, 
in the event of a breach or threatened breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement by Franchisee, Franchisor 
may seek an injuncƟon restraining such breach or a decree of specific performance (together with recovery of 
reasonable aƩorneys’ fees and costs incurred in obtaining such equitable relief) without having to demonstrate or 
prove actual damages, and without the need to post a bond.  
 
If a court of competent jurisdicƟon nevertheless requires a bond, a bond in the sum of $1,000.00 shall be deemed 
to be sufficient. The foregoing equitable remedies are in addiƟon to all other rights or remedies to which Franchisor 
may otherwise be enƟtled because of any breach of this Agreement by Franchisee. Notwithstanding anything in 
this Agreement to the contrary, Franchisor may seek equitable and injuncƟve relief in any jurisdicƟon that has 
jurisdicƟon over Franchisee despite the fact that venue under this Agreement shall be solely the County of San 
Diego, State of California. 
 
B. LimitaƟon on Damages 
 
THE PARTIES EACH WAIVE, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, ANY RIGHT OR CLAIM FOR ANY PUNITIVE 
OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER AND AGREE THAT IF THERE IS A DISPUTE WITH THE OTHER, EACH 
WILL BE LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF ACTUAL DAMAGES SUSTAINED.  
 
FRANCHISEE WAIVES AND DISCLAIMS ANY RIGHT TO CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES IN ANY ACTION OR CLAIM 
AGAINST FRANCHISOR CONCERNING THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY RELATED AGREEMENT.  
 
 
XXII INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
Franchisee is, and shall always remain, an independent contractor within the meaning of federal and state law. 
Franchisee, therefore, acknowledges and agrees to all of the following: 
 

1.  Except for the aƩorney-in-fact provisions described above, this Agreement does not create a fiduciary 
or trust relaƟonship between the ParƟes, nor is any provision contained in this Agreement intended to 
render either Party as an agent, legal representaƟve, subsidiary, joint venturer, partner, employee, affiliate, 
or servant of the other Party. 
 
2.  Franchisee shall not make any contract, agreement, warranty, or representaƟon on Franchisor’s behalf. 
Franchisee shall not incur any debt or other obligaƟon in Franchisor’s name. All agreements between 
Franchisee and any third party must be made in Franchisee’s formal legal name only. Franchisee must take 
such affirmaƟve acƟon as Franchisor requests to disclose to the public that Franchisee is an independent 
contractor. Such acƟons shall include placing and maintaining a sign in a conspicuous place on any vehicle 
used in the operaƟon of the Franchised Business, as well as a noƟce on all staƟonery, business cards, sales 
literature, contracts, and similar documents that states that the Franchised Business is independently 
owned and operated by Franchisee. 
 
3.  Franchisee will indemnify and hold Franchisor and its owners, agents, aƩorneys, and managers 
harmless from any Claims (including reasonable aƩorney’s fees and costs, even if incident to appellate, 
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post-judgment, or bankruptcy proceedings), to which Franchisor (or its owners, etc.) becomes subject 
arising from or relaƟng to the operaƟon of the Franchised Business. Such indemnity shall apply regardless 
of who brings such Claims (e.g., Franchisee’s employees, customers, or other third parƟes). This indemnity 
provision shall conƟnue in full force and effect in perpetuity regardless of whether or not this Agreement 
has expired or been terminated. 

 
XXIII MISCELLANEOUS 
 
A. Liability of Individuals and/or MulƟple Franchisees 
 
If Franchisee consists of more than one individual, all such persons shall be jointly and severally liable for 
Franchisee’s liabiliƟes and obligaƟons under this Agreement.  
 
If Franchisee is an enƟty, each owner, member, shareholder, managing member, and/or partner of a Franchisee 
(collecƟvely or individually referred to as “Owner”) shall be required to execute this Agreement. All Owners shall 
jointly and severally guarantee Franchisee’s performance under this Agreement and shall bind themselves to the 
terms of this Agreement. If one or more individuals execuƟng this Agreement on behalf of Franchisee fails to obtain 
and deliver the signatures of all of Franchisee’s Owners, nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to release 
those non-signing Owners from liability under this provision.  
 
This provision shall not apply to Owners of a publicly held corporaƟon or non-managing members of a limited 
liability company. If any Owner of Franchisee (direct or indirect) is itself an enƟty, all such owners, shareholders, 
members, managing members, or partners of such enƟty shall also sign this Agreement or another agreement 
acceptable to Franchisor that provides that such individual(s) jointly and severally guarantee Franchisee's 
obligaƟons under this Agreement. 
 
B. Waiver 
 
No breach of any provisions in this Agreement can be waived unless done so in wriƟng and signed by the ParƟes. 
Waiver of any one provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other provision, nor shall 
a waiver of a specific provision on any parƟcular occasion be deemed a permanent waiver of that provision. 
 
C. Severability 
 
Unless otherwise specified above, if all or part of any provision in this Agreement becomes or is declared by a 
court/arbitrator of competent jurisdicƟon to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, this Agreement shall conƟnue in 
full force and effect without such language. However, if the absence of such language materially alters the rights, 
limitaƟons, and/or obligaƟons of the ParƟes, the above-referenced court/arbitrator shall determine the rights, 
limitaƟons, and/or obligaƟons of the ParƟes according to the intent of this Agreement when taken as a whole. 
 
D. EnƟre Agreement 
 
This Agreement, which includes all of its exhibits by this reference, consƟtutes the enƟre agreement between the 
ParƟes and supersedes all previous agreements concerning the subject maƩer of this Agreement, either wriƩen 
or oral, between them except those disclosures included in Franchisor’s franchise disclosure document. Except as 
may be explicitly set forth elsewhere in this Agreement, any modificaƟons to this Agreement will be effecƟve only 
if in wriƟng and executed by authorized representaƟves of the ParƟes.  
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E. Governing Law 
 
This Agreement and all related Agreements take effect upon their acceptance and execuƟon by Franchisor in the 
State of California and any maƩer whatsoever which arises out of or is connected any way with the Agreement or 
the franchise shall be governed by and interpreted and construed under the laws of California, which laws shall 
prevail in the event of any conflict of law; provided, however, that if any provision of this Agreement would not be 
enforceable under the laws of California, then such provisions shall be interpreted and construed under the laws 
of the state where the Franchised Business is located. 
 
Except to the extent governed by the Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. 1051 et seq.) relaƟng to the Marks, this Agreement 
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state in which the Franchised Business is 
located.  
 
F. JurisdicƟon and Venue 
 
Except to the extent governed by the Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. 1051 et seq.) relaƟng to the Marks, and unless 
prohibited by any applicable law, Franchisee agrees that subject to Franchisor’s sole and absolute elecƟon, all suits, 
acƟons, or other proceedings with respect to, arising out of, or in connecƟon with this Agreement, shall be heard 
and determined in a court located in San Diego, California. Franchisee therefore consents and agrees that the 
courts located in the State of California, County of San Diego, shall have personal jurisdicƟon over Franchisee in all 
lawsuits relaƟng to or arising out of this Agreement.  
 
If Franchisee is located outside of the State of California, Franchisee agrees that Franchisee may be served with 
process via cerƟfied mail, and Franchisee waives any defense it may have of insufficiency of service of process 
relaƟng to such service. This method of service shall not be the exclusive method of service available in such 
lawsuits and shall be available in addiƟon to any other method of service allowed by law. 
 
G. Headings 
 
The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and do not define or limit the scope of 
any provision. Consequently, the headings shall not be considered when interpreƟng this Agreement. 
 
H. NoƟces 
 
Except as may otherwise be explicitly required above, all noƟces required under this Agreement shall be in wriƟng 
and shall be delivered to the addresses set forth below (or any subsequent address provided in wriƟng by a Party) 
via: (i) cerƟfied mail, return receipt requested; (ii) personal delivery if accompanied by proof of delivery; or (iii) a 
naƟonally recognized delivery service (e.g., Federal Express, United Parcel Service, etc.) requiring proof of delivery. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the ParƟes subsequently agree in wriƟng, whether via electronic mail, or in one 
of the three methods referenced above, to permit noƟces to be delivered via electronic mail, then all subsequent 
noƟces may be delivered in that manner.  
 

To Franchisor:  
 
c/o The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC  
757 N. Twin Oaks Valley Rd., Suite 2 
San Marcos, CA 92069 
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To Franchisee: 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
I. Compliance with Local Law 
 
If any applicable and binding law or rule of any jurisdicƟon requires a greater prior noƟce of the terminaƟon of, or 
refusal to renew, this Agreement, than is required above, the prior noƟce or other acƟon required by such law or 
rule shall be subsƟtuted for those presently contained in this Agreement. Likewise, if any applicable and binding 
law of the state in which the Franchised Business is located places limitaƟons on the character, duraƟon, or 
geographic scope of the non-compeƟƟon covenant contained in this Agreement, the ParƟes agree that the scope, 
duraƟon, or area of the non-compeƟƟon covenant contained in this Agreement shall be replaced with a term or 
provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes closest to expressing the intenƟon of the invalid or 
unenforceable term or provision. Any modificaƟons to this Agreement required because of this provision shall be 
effecƟve only in such jurisdicƟons where such modificaƟons are required and this Agreement shall be enforced as 
originally made and entered into in all other jurisdicƟons. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisor reserves the 
right to challenge the applicability of any such law or rule. 
 
J. AƩorneys’ Fees and Costs 
 
In any legal acƟon to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be enƟtled 
to its aƩorneys’ fees and costs. 
 
K. No Third-Party Beneficiaries 
 
Except as may be explicitly stated elsewhere in this Agreement, nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall 
be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or enƟty other than the ParƟes to this Agreement. 
 
L. InterpretaƟon 
 
Each of the ParƟes has been, or has had the opportunity to have been, represented by their own independent 
counsel throughout the negoƟaƟons, as well as at the execuƟon of this Agreement, and all the other documents 
executed incidental to this Agreement. None of the ParƟes, therefore, may claim or assert that any provision of 
this Agreement or any of the other documents should be construed against the draŌer. 
 
M. Waiver of Jury 
 
The ParƟes each waive any trial by jury in any acƟon, whether at law or in equity, arising out of or related to the 
enforcement or interpretaƟon of this Agreement. 
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N. Counterparts 
 
This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, any of which may be signed and transmiƩed electronically, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall, when taken together, consƟtute a single document. 
 
The ParƟes have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, by their duly authorized 
agents, as of the date first wriƩen above. 
 

FRANCHISOR: THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE 
GROUP, LLC  FRANCHISEE: 

   
Signature:__________________________________  Signature:___________________________________ 
   
Name:   Name:  
   
Title:   Title:  
   
Date:   Date:  
 
   
INDIVIDUAL FRANCHISEE:  INDIVIDUAL FRANCHISEE: 

   
     
Signature  Signature 
   
     
Print Name  Print Name 
   
Date:   Date:  



 

EXHIBIT 1 
TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

IDENTIFICATION OF FRANCHISEE 
 
 

 
INDIVIDUAL FRANCHISEE 

 
Name:___________________________________________________      Date of Birth:_____________________ 
 
Home Address (P.O. Box not acceptable):__________________________________________________________ 
 
City:__________________________________________  State:_________________ Zip:_________ 
 
Home Telephone:_________________________________ SSN:__________________ 
 

 
 
 

 
NON-INDIVIDUAL FRANCHISEE 

 
Check One:      CorporaƟon         Limited Liability Company       Partnership 

 
Name:____________________________________________________       EIN:________________________ 
 
Address:__________________________________________________ 
 
City:__________________________________________        State:_________________        Zip:_________ 
 
Telephone:_____________________________________       State of OrganizaƟon:_____________________        
 
Statutory/Registered Agent:_________________________________________________ 
 
Address of Agent:___________________________________________ 
 
City:__________________________________________        State:_________________        Zip:_________ 
 
Officers— 
 

President:_______________________________       Vice President:__________________________ 
 
Treasurer:_______________________________       Secretary:______________________________ 

 
Shareholders/Members/Partners 
 
Name:________________________________________________       Percentage of Ownership:______________ 
 
Home Address (P.O. Box not acceptable):__________________________________________________________ 
 
City:__________________________________________  State:_________________ Zip:_________ 
 
Home Telephone:_________________________________ SSN:__________________ 



 
 

 

 
Name:________________________________________________       Percentage of Ownership:______________ 
 
Home Address (P.O. Box not acceptable):__________________________________________________________ 
 
City:__________________________________________  State:_________________ Zip:_________ 
 
Home Telephone:_________________________________ SSN:__________________ 
 

 

 
Name:________________________________________________       Percentage of Ownership:______________ 
 
Home Address (P.O. Box not acceptable):__________________________________________________________ 
 
City:__________________________________________  State:_________________ Zip:_________ 
 
Home Telephone:_________________________________ SSN:__________________ 
 

 

 
Name:________________________________________________       Percentage of Ownership:______________ 
 
Home Address (P.O. Box not acceptable):__________________________________________________________ 
 
City:__________________________________________  State:_________________ Zip:_________ 
 
Home Telephone:_________________________________ SSN:__________________ 
 

 

 
The Franchisee, or if Franchisee is not an individual, each of the Franchisee’s owners, cerƟfy that the foregoing 
informaƟon is accurate and complete to the best of their knowledge and agree to noƟfy Franchisor promptly of 
any change in any such informaƟon during the Term of the Franchise Agreement to which this Exhibit 1 is 
aƩached. 
 

Signature___________________________________ 
 
 
Print Name__________________________________ 

Signature___________________________________ 
 
 
Print Name__________________________________ 

 
 

Signature___________________________________ 
 
 
Print Name__________________________________ 

Signature___________________________________ 
 
 
Print Name__________________________________ 

 
  



 
 

EXHIBIT 2 
TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

SITE AND TERRITORY 
 
 

 
1.  The address and/or descripƟon of the Site (e.g., year, make, model, etc.) for the Franchised Business shall be: 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

2.  The Territory referenced in the Franchise Agreement shall consist of the following geographical area in the 
State of _________________: 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

FRANCHISOR: THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE 
GROUP, LLC 

 FRANCHISEE: 

   
Signature:_______________________________________  Signature:__________________________________ 
   
Name:   Name:  
   
Title:   Title:  
   
Date:   Date:  
 
   
INDIVIDUAL FRANCHISEE:  INDIVIDUAL FRANCHISEE: 

   
   
     
Signature  Signature 
   
     
Print Name  Print Name 
   
Date:   Date:  

 
  



 
 

EXHIBIT 3 
TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
AUTHORIZATION FOR ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF FUNDS 

 
 

 
The depositor idenƟfied below (the “Depositor”) authorizes The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC (“Payee”) to 
iniƟate debit entries and/or credit correcƟon entries to the Depositor’s checking account designated below and 
authorizes the financial insƟtuƟon designated below (the “Bank”) to debit such account as instructed by Payee. 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Name of Financial InsƟtuƟon      Branch 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Address of Financial InsƟtuƟon   City   State   Zip Code 
 
______________________________________  _________________________________ 
Account Number     Bank Transit/RouƟng Number 
 
This authority will remain in effect unƟl the Bank receives a wriƩen cancellaƟon noƟficaƟon from Depositor in 
such Ɵme as to afford the Bank a reasonable opportunity to act on it. Depositor may stop payment of any entry by 
noƟfying the Bank at least three business days before the entry is charged to Depositor’s account. Depositor may 
have the amount of any erroneous entry immediately credited to Depositor’s account by noƟfying the Bank within 
15 calendar days aŌer the Bank issues Depositor’s account statement containing the erroneous entry, or 45 
calendar days aŌer posƟng, whichever occurs first. These rights are in addiƟon to any rights Depositor may have 
under federal and state banking or consumer protecƟon laws. 
 
Name of Depositor:__________________________________________ 
 
Signature:________________________________________________ 
 
By:_________________________________________  Date:_______________________________ 
 
Title:_______________________________________ 



 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT B  
TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

 
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 
 
 

  



 
 

 
Area Development Agreement 

 
 

between 
 
 

THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
(“Franchisor”) 

 
 

and 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
(“Developer”) 

 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Territory Name / LocaƟon 

 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
Dated 
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THE RUSH COFFEE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
This Area Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on the dates set forth on the 
coversheet on the prior page by and between The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC, a California limited liability 
company (“Franchisor” or “The Rush Coffee”) and ___________________________________ (“Developer”). 
Franchisor and Developer may be collecƟvely referred to in this Agreement as the “ParƟes,” or individually as a 
“Party.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Franchisor has dedicated Ɵme, skill, effort, and money to create and develop a system for the 
establishment and operaƟon of a disƟncƟve type of vehicle-based business that offers premiere coffee, 
espresso drinks, specialty smoothies, Italian sodas, teas, shaved ice, other beverages, baked goods, and 
desserts (the “System”) 
 

B. Franchisor idenƟfies the System by means of certain trade names, service marks, trademarks, logos, 
emblems and indicia of origin, including but not limited to, the mark “THE RUSH COFFEE,” and such other 
trade names, service marks, and trademarks as are now designated or may later be designated or 
subsƟtuted by Franchisor, for use in connecƟon with the System (the “Mark(s)”). 
 

C. Franchisor has licensed individuals and enƟƟes to operate vehicle-based mobile coffee businesses uƟlizing 
the System and idenƟfied by the Marks (each, a “Franchised Business”). 
 

D. Franchisor and Developer desire to enter into this Agreement under which Developer shall obtain the 
exclusive right to establish and operate a specified number of Franchised Businesses within a specified 
geographical area upon the terms and condiƟons contained in Franchisor’s then-current standard 
franchise agreement (each, a “Franchise Agreement”). 
 

E. Franchisor and Developer have already entered into an iniƟal Franchise Agreement (the “IniƟal Franchise 
Agreement”) dated the same date as this Agreement. 

 
In acknowledging the truth of the foregoing, and in consideraƟon of the mutual covenants set forth below, the 
ParƟes agree as follows: 
 
I GRANT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AND DEVELOPMENT AREA 
 
Subject to the terms and condiƟons of this Agreement, Franchisor grants the right to Developer, and Developer 
undertakes the obligaƟon to establish and operate in the area designated in Exhibit 1 of this Agreement (the 
“Development Area”), the number of Franchised Businesses specified in the development schedule on Exhibit 2 
(the “Development Schedule”). This Agreement does not grant Developer any right to use the Marks or System, 
as those rights may only be granted in a Franchise Agreement. 
 
II DEVELOPMENT FEE 
 
The total amount of the Development Fee is listed in Exhibit 2 (the “Development Fee”). The Development Fee 
will be applied toward the iniƟal franchise fee due for each Franchised Business developed hereunder, upon the 
execuƟon of the Franchise Agreement. Developer will pay the balance of the iniƟal franchise fee as so sƟpulated 
and due under the then current Franchise Agreement for each Franchised Business at the Ɵme the Franchise 
Agreement for each Franchised Business is executed. The Development Fee is non-refundable. 
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III DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE 
 
Developer must enter into Franchise Agreements and open and operate Franchised Businesses in accordance with 
the deadlines set forth in the Development Schedule. By each fee deadline specified in the Development Schedule, 
Developer must have delivered to Franchisor an iniƟal franchise fee and a signed copy of Franchisor’s then-current 
standard form of Franchise Agreement for the number of The Rush Coffee Franchised Businesses specified on the 
Development Schedule. By each “Opening Deadline” specified in the Development Schedule, Developer must have 
the specified number of Franchised Businesses open and operaƟng. Developer must select vehicles for the 
Franchised Businesses that have been approved by Franchisor under an applicable Franchise Agreement.  
 
IV DEVELOPMENT AREA 
 
A. Exclusivity 
 
While this Agreement is in effect, provided that Developer opens and operates a Franchised Businesses in 
accordance with the Development Schedule, and the minimum number of Franchised Businesses that Developer 
has open and is operaƟng in the Development Area at any given Ɵme is not less than the minimum required under 
the Development Schedule, Franchisor shall not establish or license another to establish a business with the same 
Model Concept (and that term was defined in the Franchise Agreement) as the Franchised Businesses within the 
Development Area. 
 
This limitaƟon shall have no effect on Franchisor’s establishing or licensing a different concept (whether using the 
System and/or Marks or not) in the Development Area. Such different concepts might include, without limitaƟon, 
storefront, co-branded, pop-up, virtual, or mobile outlets that are different than Developer’s Model Concept under 
Marks and the System within the Development Area. 
 
B. No Other RestricƟons 
 
Developer acknowledges that, except to the extent expressly provided in this Agreement, Franchisor retains all 
rights and discreƟon with respect to the Marks and System, including the right to: 
 

1.  Establish, and license others to establish, Franchised Businesses at any locaƟon outside of the 
Development Area. 
 
2.  Establish, and license others to establish, businesses [other than a CompeƟƟve Business (as defined 
below)] under other systems using other proprietary marks at such locaƟons, including within the 
Development Area, and on such terms and condiƟons as Franchisor deems appropriate. 
 
3.  Purchase or otherwise acquire the assets or controlling ownership of, and subsequently conƟnue to 
own and operate, one or more businesses idenƟcal or similar to Franchised Businesses that does not use 
the Marks, some or all of which may be located anywhere, including within the Development Area. 
 
4.  AdverƟse, promote, market, or sell goods or services using the Marks over the internet or any other 
electronic network. 
 
5.  Own, acquire, establish and operate, and license others to establish and operate businesses like the 
Franchised Business or substanƟally similar to the Franchised Business, whether under the Marks or other 
proprietary marks in any temporary or permanent venue where there is a capƟve audience and where the 
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primary purpose is other than patronizing a The Rush Coffee business (“Special Venue”)—e.g., malls, 
entertainment, and sports centers, military bases, transportaƟon faciliƟes, supermarkets, service staƟons, 
and carnivals within or outside of the Development Area. 
 
6.  Contract with a customer whose offices, stores, plants, buildings, or other physical faciliƟes is not 
confined to the territory of a single The Rush Coffee territory or the trading area of a single franchisee of 
The Rush Coffee or a Franchisor-owned business (“Special Accounts”). If Franchisor establishes a contract 
for faciliƟes of a Special Account located in the Development Area, Franchisor shall offer Franchisee the 
first opƟon of providing the Franchised Business’s services to the Special Account at those faciliƟes in the 
Development Area at the prices and subject to the contract requirements negoƟated by Franchisor with 
the Special Account. 
 
7.  Engage in any acƟviƟes not expressly forbidden by this Agreement. 

 
V COMPETITIVE BUSINESS 
 
For purposes of this Agreement, “CompeƟƟve Business” means any business that directly or indirectly operates, 
manages, offers, sells, or provides (or grants franchises or licenses to others to do so): (i) coffee, espresso drinks, 
smoothies, sodas, teas, and other beverages; (ii) shaved ice; (iii) baked goods and desserts; or (iv) products similar 
to those customarily offered by a Franchised Business, or in which trade secrets or other ConfidenƟal InformaƟon 
could be used to the disadvantage of Franchisor or its other franchisees. 
 
VI TERM 
 
This Agreement expires at midnight on the last Opening Deadline date listed on the Development Schedule unless 
this Agreement is terminated sooner as provided in this Agreement. 
 
VII TERMINATION 
 
A. Events of Default 
 
Any one or more of the following consƟtutes an “Event of Default” under this Agreement: 
 

1.  Developer fails to pay any iniƟal franchise fee or execute any Franchise Agreement by any fee deadline 
specified in the Development Schedule. 
 
2.  Developer fails to have opened and maintained in conƟnuous operaƟon the minimum number of 
Franchised Businesses specified in the Development Schedule by any Opening Deadline specified in the 
Development Schedule. In no event, however, shall a failure to open and/or operate a Franchised Business 
in accordance with the Development Schedule itself consƟtute cause for Franchisor to terminate any 
previously executed Franchise Agreement. 
 
3.  A default occurs under any Franchise Agreement, resulƟng in the terminaƟon of such Franchise 
Agreement. 
 
4.  Developer breaches or otherwise fails to comply fully with any other provision contained in this 
Agreement or any other agreement with the Franchisor. 
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B. Remedies 
 
If any Event of Default occurs, Franchisor may immediately terminate this Agreement, and the ParƟes’ remedies 
shall be limited to the following: 
 

1.  Upon terminaƟon following a failure to open and/or operate a Franchised Business in accordance with 
the Development Schedule, Franchisor’s sole remedies under this Agreement will be retenƟon of the 
Development Fee and terminaƟon of this Agreement.  
 
2.  Upon terminaƟon of this Agreement for any other Event of Default, Franchisor shall be enƟtled to retain 
the Development Fee, and Developer will not be relieved of any of its obligaƟons, debts, or liabiliƟes under 
this Agreement, including without limitaƟon any debts, obligaƟons, or liabiliƟes which have accrued prior 
to such terminaƟon. The right of terminaƟon granted by this Agreement is in addiƟon to, and not in lieu 
of, any other rights and remedies available to Franchisor at law, in equity, or otherwise, including without 
limitaƟon the right to injuncƟve relief. 

 
VIII ASSIGNMENT 
 
A. By Franchisor 
 
This Agreement is fully assignable by Franchisor and will inure to the benefit of any assignee or another legal 
successor to Franchisor’s interest. 
 
B. By Developer 
 
With respect to the transfer by Developer of the Franchised Business, Developer, and/or any individuals who own 
or control the Franchised Business, agree as follows: [As used in this provision of the Agreement, the un-capitalized 
term “transfer” shall mean and refer to a direct or indirect sale, assignment, conveyance, transfer, pledge, 
mortgage, or encumbrance of all or a substanƟal porƟon of the assets of the Franchised Business, Developer, or of 
any enƟty that owns an interest in the Franchised Business or Developer.] 
 

1.  Developer acknowledges and agrees that the rights and duƟes set forth in this Agreement are personal 
to Developer. Franchisor has granted the Franchised Business to Developer in reliance upon Developer’s 
business skills, financial capacity, reputaƟon, apƟtude, and/or personal character. Accordingly, Developer 
and its owners may not directly or indirectly transfer, sell, assign, convey, pledge, encumber, mortgage, or 
otherwise dispose of—voluntarily, involuntarily, or by operaƟon of law—any direct or indirect interest in 
this Agreement or the Franchised Business without Franchisor’s prior wriƩen consent. Franchisor shall 
not, however, unreasonably withhold its consent to a transfer of any interest in Developer provided that 
Developer (and any other involved individuals or enƟƟes) strictly comply with the condiƟons set forth in 
this provision of the Agreement. 
 
2.  Any purported or aƩempted transfer by Franchisee, by operaƟon of law or otherwise, in violaƟon of 
this Agreement shall be null and void. Such a transfer shall also consƟtute a material breach of this 
Agreement, for which Franchisor may elect to terminate without any opportunity to cure. Notwithstanding 
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, no transfer may be made to any person or enƟty who directly 
or indirectly engages in a business that is compeƟƟve with, or is substanƟally similar to, the business 
conducted by the Franchised Business, or who directly or indirectly owns an interest in any such compeƟng 
business. 
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3.  Developer has saƟsfied all of its obligaƟons, monetary or otherwise, to Franchisor and any third parƟes. 
 
4.  Developer executes a general release, in a form saƟsfactory to Franchisor, of any and all claims against 
Franchisor and its officers, directors, shareholders, aƩorneys, and employees, in their corporate and 
individual capaciƟes, including, without limitaƟon, claims arising under federal, state, and local laws, rules, 
and ordinances. 
 
5.  The transferee shall demonstrate to Franchisor’s saƟsfacƟon that it: (a) meets Franchisor’s educaƟonal, 
managerial, and business standards; (b) possesses a good moral character, business reputaƟon, and credit 
raƟng; (c) has the apƟtude and ability to conduct the Franchised Business; and (d) has adequate financial 
resources to operate the Franchised Business. 
 
6.  The transferor’s right to receive compensaƟon under any agreement for the purchase of any interest in 
Developer or in the Franchised Business shall be subordinated and secondary to Franchisor’s rights to 
receive any outstanding monetary obligaƟons or other outstanding obligaƟons due from the transferor or 
Developer under this Agreement, whether arising before or aŌer the transfer. 
 
7.  Either Developer or the transferee shall pay Franchisor a transfer fee of $4,000, plus Franchisor’s 
aƩorneys’ fees and costs incurred in reviewing and approving the terms and condiƟons of the transfer. 
 
8.  If a transfer occurs in violaƟon of the requirements set forth above, and notwithstanding the fact that 
such a violaƟon should have precluded the compleƟon of the transfer under the express terms of this 
Agreement, the failure of any individual shareholder, member, partner or owner of a transferee to obtain 
the above-referenced signatures from the transferee’s other shareholders, members, partners or owners 
shall result in the personal liability of the Developer, as well as the individual who executed the assignment 
on behalf of the transferee. 
 
9.  Developer shall remain liable for all of its obligaƟons under this Agreement prior to the effecƟve date 
of the transfer, and Developer therefore agrees to execute and/or obtain any documents which Franchisor 
may require to ensure compliance with the requirements set forth in this secƟon. 
 
10.  Franchisor’s consent to a proposed transfer shall not consƟtute an opinion by Franchisor concerning 
the appropriateness or fairness of the terms of the transfer, or the likelihood of the transferee’s (or 
Developer’s) future success. 
 
11.  Developer releases and indemnifies Franchisor from any claims or liabiliƟes stemming from a denial 
by Franchisor of a proposed transfer, including without limitaƟon, if the denial resulted from a failure by 
Developer or the transferee to abide by all of the requirements set forth in this secƟon. 
 
12.  Franchisor’s consent to a transfer does not consƟtute a waiver by Franchisor of any claims it may have 
against Developer for any breach of this Agreement, either before or aŌer the consent was given. 
 
13.  Subject to the limitaƟons set forth below, all transfers are subject to Franchisor’s right of first refusal. 
 

C. Franchisor’s Right of First Refusal 
 
Subject to the limitaƟons set forth elsewhere in this sub-secƟon, the ParƟes agree that Franchisor shall at all Ɵmes 
have a right of first refusal on any bona fide offer by a prospecƟve purchaser (i.e., prospecƟve transferee) to 
purchase an interest in this Agreement under the following condiƟons: 
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1.  Upon receipt of a bona fide offer by the prospecƟve purchaser/transferee, Developer shall prepare the 
details of the offer in wriƟng and provide them to Franchisor. The wriƩen noƟficaƟon to Franchisor must 
contain idenƟcal terms as the offer presented by the prospecƟve purchaser/transferee, as well as the 
prospecƟve purchaser’s/transferee’s name, address, telephone number, and other perƟnent contact 
informaƟon.  
 
2.  Upon receipt of Developer’s wriƩen noƟficaƟon, Franchisor shall have 30 business days to consider and 
accept the offer by sending wriƩen noƟficaƟon to Developer of Franchisor’s intent to exercise its right of 
first refusal by meeƟng the terms of the prospecƟve purchaser’s/transferee’s offer. If Franchisor does not 
send Franchisor’s acceptance within the requisite 30 business day period, then subject to the other 
transfer requirements set forth above, Developer may conclude the sale/transfer to the prospecƟve 
purchaser/transferee.  
 
3.  If Franchisor exercises its right of first refusal, the closing shall occur within 90 calendar days of 
Franchisor’s acceptance. If Franchisor chooses not to exercise its right of first refusal, then Developer must 
conclude the sale within 90 calendar days of Franchisor’s rejecƟon, or within 90 calendar days of the 
expiraƟon of Franchisor’s 30-day noƟce rights, whichever occurs first. 

 
As long as all the applicable requirements contained in this Agreement and in the Franchise Agreement are 
followed, the right of first refusal set forth above does not apply to assignments, transfers, or sales of Developer’s 
interest in this Agreement or any equity interest in Developer, made to Developer, or if Developer is an EnƟty, to 
any of its Owners’ spouses or children.  
 
IX DEVELOPER’S COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE OR CIRCUMVENT 
 
A. During the Term of the Development Agreement 
 
Developer acknowledges that Developer will receive valuable specialized training and ConfidenƟal InformaƟon 
from Franchisor regarding the System, including without limitaƟon, informaƟon and training relaƟng to the: (i) 
design, development, and operaƟon of the Franchised Business; (ii) promoƟon and markeƟng of the System. 
Developer further acknowledges that Franchisor would be unable to protect the ConfidenƟal InformaƟon (as that 
term has been defined in the Franchise Agreement) and other trade secrets against unauthorized use or disclosure, 
and would therefore be unable to encourage a free exchange of ideas and informaƟon among the franchisees 
within the System, if Developer was permiƩed to hold interests in any compeƟƟve business, or otherwise 
circumvent the efforts of Franchisor or other developers/franchisees. 
 
Developer therefore covenants and agrees that unless otherwise approved in wriƟng by Franchisor, during the 
term of this Agreement: 
 

1.  Developer shall not, directly or indirectly, divert any business or customer of the Franchised Business 
or of any other of Franchisor’s franchisees or developers, to any compeƟtor, nor do or perform, directly or 
indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Marks and the System. 
 
2.   Developer shall not compete directly or indirectly—either as an employee, owner, manager, 
shareholder, member, or partner, or through any of the same—with Franchisor or any of Franchisor’s other 
franchisees or developers within the Development Area or similar areas applicable to other developers, in 
any business that primarily offers/sells coffee, espresso drinks, smoothies, sodas, teas, shaved ice, other 
beverages, baked goods, and desserts, or any other products or services that are offered in the Franchised 
Business. 
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B. AŌer TerminaƟon of the Franchise Agreement 
 
In making the same acknowledgements as were set forth in the prior sub-secƟon, Developer further covenants 
and agrees that unless otherwise approved in wriƟng by Franchisor, upon the transfer, expiraƟon, or terminaƟon 
of this Agreement, and for a period of two years aŌer such transfer, expiraƟon, or terminaƟon: 
 

1.  Developer shall not compete directly or indirectly—either as an employee, owner, manager, 
shareholder, member, or partner, or through any of the same—within 25 air miles of Franchisor or any of 
Franchisor’s other franchisees, in any business that primarily offers/sells coffee, espresso drinks, 
smoothies, sodas, teas, shaved ice, other beverages, baked goods, and desserts, or any other products or 
services that are offered in the Franchised Business. 
 
2.  Developer acknowledges and agrees that the non-compeƟƟon acƟviƟes prohibited in this sub-secƟon, 
including the length of the term and the extent of the geographic restricƟons, are necessary, fair, and 
reasonable to protect Franchisor’s legiƟmate business interests, and do not therefore consƟtute 
overreaching, duress, or coercion on Franchisor’s part. Developer further acknowledges and agrees that 
Developer’s full, uninhibited, and faithful observance of each of the covenants contained in this 
Agreement, including the non-compete provisions, will not cause any undue hardship, financial or 
otherwise. Likewise, Developer acknowledges and agrees that enforcement by Franchisor of these 
covenants will not impair Developer’s ability to obtain employment commensurate with Developer’s 
abiliƟes and on terms fully acceptable to Developer, or otherwise to obtain income required for 
Developer’s support (or the support of the individual members, shareholders, and partners of Developer, 
if applicable). Developer’s special knowledge of the Franchised Business is such as would cause Franchisor 
and its other franchisees serious injury and loss if it (or anyone acquiring such knowledge through 
Developer) were to use such knowledge to the benefit of a compeƟtor or were to directly compete with 
Franchisor or any of its franchisees. 
 

The ParƟes intend that the covenants contained in this parƟcular sub-secƟon be treated as a series of separate 
covenants, one for the geographic limitaƟon generally, and one for each month of the two years idenƟfied as the 
non-compeƟƟon period. 
 
If, therefore, in any judicial proceeding, a court refuses to enforce all of the separate covenants set forth in this 
secƟon, then such unenforceable covenants shall be deemed eliminated from the provisions of this Agreement for 
the purpose of such proceeding to the extent necessary to permit the remaining separate covenants to be 
enforced. Likewise, if in any judicial proceeding, a court shall refuse to enforce any one or more of such separate 
covenants because the total Ɵme or mileage idenƟfied above is deemed to be excessive or unreasonable, then it 
is the intent of the ParƟes that such covenants—which would otherwise be unenforceable as a result of the court’s 
ruling as to the unreasonableness of the period of Ɵme or mileage—be enforced for such lesser period of Ɵme or 
mileage as the court deems reasonable. 
 
The provisions of this sub-secƟon shall survive the expiraƟon, terminaƟon, or cancellaƟon of this Agreement. 
 
C. Exclusion for Publicly Traded Company 
 
This sub-secƟon shall not apply to Developer’s ownership of less than 5% of the outstanding equity securiƟes of 
any corporaƟon that is registered under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Act of 1934. 
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D. InjuncƟve Relief 
 
Developer acknowledges that its violaƟon of the terms of this secƟon would result in irreparable injury to 
Franchisor for which no adequate remedy at law may be available. Consequently, Developer agrees that Franchisor 
shall be enƟtled to injuncƟve relief without the necessity of posƟng a bond, and that Developer shall reimburse 
Franchisor all of its aƩorneys’ fees and costs incurred in seeking and enforcing the injuncƟve relief. 
 
E. ExecuƟon of Covenants by Key Personnel 
 
Upon Franchisor’s wriƩen request, Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with executed RestricƟve Covenant 
Agreements (see Exhibit D), containing covenants similar in substance to those set forth in this sub-secƟon 
(including covenants applicable upon the terminaƟon of a person’s relaƟonship with Franchisee), from each 
manager, officer, director, and owner of Franchisee.  
 
With respect to each person who becomes associated with Franchisee in one of the capaciƟes enumerated above 
subsequent to the execuƟon of this Agreement, Franchisee shall, on its own accord, obtain signed Restricted 
Covenant Agreements from each such person and promptly provide Franchisor with executed copies.  
 
In no event shall any person enumerated above be granted access to any ConfidenƟal InformaƟon or trade secrets 
related to the System or the Franchised Business prior to his or her execuƟon of such a covenant.  
 
All covenants required by this sub-secƟon shall be in a form saƟsfactory to Franchisor, including, without limitaƟon, 
the specific idenƟficaƟon of Franchisor as a third-party beneficiary of such covenants with the independent right 
to enforce them. Franchisee’s failure to obtain and deliver to Franchisor executed covenants required by this sub-
secƟon shall consƟtute a material breach of this Agreement. 
 
X ENFORCEMENT 
 
A. InjuncƟve Relief 
 
Each Franchised Business is intended to be one of a large number of businesses idenƟfied by the Marks. 
Consequently, Developer’s failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement is likely to cause irreparable damage 
to Franchisor and the System, and damages at law would, therefore, likely be an inadequate remedy. Accordingly, 
in the event of a breach or threatened breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement by Developer, Franchisor 
may seek an injuncƟon restraining such breach or a decree of specific performance (together with recovery of 
reasonable aƩorneys’ fees and costs incurred in obtaining such equitable relief) without having to demonstrate or 
prove actual damages, and without the need to post a bond.  
 
If a court of competent jurisdicƟon nevertheless requires a bond, a bond in the sum of $1,000.00 shall be deemed 
to be sufficient. The foregoing equitable remedies are in addiƟon to all other rights or remedies to which Franchisor 
may otherwise be enƟtled because of any breach of this Agreement by Developer. Notwithstanding anything in 
this Agreement to the contrary, Franchisor may seek equitable and injuncƟve relief in any jurisdicƟon that has 
jurisdicƟon over Franchisee despite the fact that venue under this Agreement shall be solely the County of San 
Diego, State of California. 
 
B. LimitaƟon on Damages 
 
THE PARTIES EACH WAIVE, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, ANY RIGHT OR CLAIM FOR ANY PUNITIVE 
OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER AND AGREE THAT IF THERE IS A DISPUTE WITH THE OTHER, EACH 
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WILL BE LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF ACTUAL DAMAGES SUSTAINED.  
 
DEVELOPER WAIVES AND DISCLAIMS ANY RIGHT TO CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES IN ANY ACTION OR CLAIM 
AGAINST FRANCHISOR CONCERNING THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY RELATED AGREEMENT. 
 
XI MISCELLANEOUS 
 
A. Independent Contractor and IndemnificaƟon 
 
Developer is, and shall always remain, an independent contractor within the meaning of federal and state law. 
Developer, therefore, acknowledges and agrees to all of the following: 
 

1.  Except for the aƩorney-in-fact provisions described above, this Agreement does not create a fiduciary 
or trust relaƟonship between the ParƟes, nor is any provision contained in this Agreement intended to 
render either Party as an agent, legal representaƟve, subsidiary, joint venturer, partner, employee, affiliate, 
or servant of the other Party. 
 
2.  Developer shall not make any contract, agreement, warranty, or representaƟon on Franchisor’s behalf. 
Developer shall not incur any debt or other obligaƟon in Franchisor’s name. All agreements between 
Developer and any third party must be made in Developer’s formal legal name only. Developer must take 
such affirmaƟve acƟon as Franchisor requests to disclose to the public that Developer is an independent 
contractor. Such acƟons shall include placing and maintaining a sign in a conspicuous place on any vehicle 
used in the operaƟon of the Franchised Business, as well as a noƟce on all staƟonery, business cards, sales 
literature, contracts, and similar documents that states that the Franchised Business is independently 
owned and operated by Developer. 
 
3.  Developer will indemnify and hold Franchisor and its owners, agents, aƩorneys, and managers harmless 
from any demands, acƟons, administraƟve/regulatory complaints, judgments, damages, liabiliƟes, losses, 
costs, and expenses (including reasonable aƩorney’s fees and costs, even if incident to appellate, post-
judgment, or bankruptcy proceedings) to which Franchisor (or Franchisor’s owners, employees, aƩorneys, 
representaƟves, successors, and assigns) becomes subject or incurs arising from or relaƟng to claims 
brought in connecƟon with the operaƟon of the Franchised Business, or by the Franchised Business’s 
employees, customers, or any other third parƟes, and relaƟng in any manner to Franchisee’s ownership 
or operaƟon of the Franchised Business (collecƟvely, the “Claims”). Such indemnity shall apply regardless 
of who brings such Claims. This indemnity provision shall conƟnue in full force and effect in perpetuity 
regardless of whether or not this Agreement has expired or been terminated. 

 
B. EnƟre Agreement 
 
This Agreement, which includes all of its exhibits by this reference, consƟtutes the enƟre agreement between the 
ParƟes and supersedes all previous agreements concerning the subject maƩer of this Agreement, either wriƩen 
or oral, between them except those disclosures included in Franchisor’s franchise disclosure document. Except as 
may be explicitly set forth elsewhere in this Agreement, any modificaƟons to this Agreement will be effecƟve only 
if in wriƟng and executed by authorized representaƟves of the ParƟes. 
 
C. Severability 
 
Unless otherwise specified above, if all or part of any provision in this Agreement becomes or is declared by a 
court/arbitrator of competent jurisdicƟon to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, this Agreement shall conƟnue in 
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full force and effect without such language. However, if the absence of such language materially alters the rights, 
limitaƟons, and/or obligaƟons of the ParƟes, the above-referenced court/arbitrator shall determine the rights, 
limitaƟons, and/or obligaƟons of the ParƟes according to the intent of this Agreement when taken as a whole. 
 
D. Governing Law 
 
This Agreement and all related Agreements take effect upon their acceptance and execuƟon by Franchisor in the 
State of California and any maƩer whatsoever which arises out of or is connected any way with the Agreement or 
the franchise shall be governed by and interpreted and construed under the laws of California, which laws shall 
prevail in the event of any conflict of law; provided, however, that if any provision of this Agreement would not be 
enforceable under the laws of California, then such provisions shall be interpreted and construed under the laws 
of the state where the Franchised Business is located. 
 
E. JurisdicƟon and Venue 
 
Except to the extent governed by the Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. 1051 et seq.) relaƟng to the Marks, and unless 
prohibited by any applicable law, Franchisee agrees that subject to Franchisor’s sole and absolute elecƟon, all suits, 
acƟons, or other proceedings with respect to, arising out of, or in connecƟon with this Agreement, shall be heard 
and determined in a court located in San Diego, California. Franchisee therefore consents and agrees that the 
courts located in the State of California, County of San Diego, shall have personal jurisdicƟon over Franchisee in all 
lawsuits relaƟng to or arising out of this Agreement.  
 
If Franchisee is located outside of the State of California, Franchisee agrees that Franchisee may be served with 
process via cerƟfied mail, and Franchisee waives any defense it may have of insufficiency of service of process 
relaƟng to such service. This method of service shall not be the exclusive method of service available in such 
lawsuits and shall be available in addiƟon to any other method of service allowed by law. 
 
F. Headings 
 
The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and do not define or limit the scope of 
any provision. Consequently, the headings shall not be considered when interpreƟng this Agreement . 
 
G. NoƟces 
 
Except as may otherwise be explicitly required above, all noƟces required under this Agreement shall be in wriƟng 
and shall be delivered to the addresses set forth below (or any subsequent address provided in wriƟng by a Party) 
via: (i) cerƟfied mail, return receipt requested; (ii) personal delivery if accompanied by proof of delivery; or (iii) a 
naƟonally recognized delivery service (e.g., Federal Express, United Parcel Service, etc.) requiring proof of delivery. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the ParƟes subsequently agree in wriƟng, whether via electronic mail, or in one 
of the three methods referenced above, to permit noƟces to be delivered via electronic mail, then all subsequent 
noƟces may be delivered in that manner.  
 

To Franchisor:  
 
c/o The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC  
757 N. Twin Oaks Valley Rd., Suite 2 
San Marcos, CA 92069 
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To Franchisee: 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
H. Compliance with Local Law 
 
If any applicable and binding law or rule of any jurisdicƟon requires a greater prior noƟce of the terminaƟon of, or 
refusal to renew, this Agreement, than is required above, the prior noƟce or other acƟon required by such law or 
rule shall be subsƟtuted for those presently contained in this Agreement. Likewise, if any applicable and binding 
law of the state in which the Franchised Business is located places limitaƟons on the character, duraƟon, or 
geographic scope of the non-compeƟƟon covenant contained in this Agreement, the ParƟes agree that the scope, 
duraƟon, or area of the non-compeƟƟon covenant contained in this Agreement shall be replaced with a term or 
provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes closest to expressing the intenƟon of the invalid or 
unenforceable term or provision. Any modificaƟons to this Agreement required because of this provision shall be 
effecƟve only in such jurisdicƟons where such modificaƟons are required and this Agreement shall be enforced as 
originally made and entered into in all other jurisdicƟons. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisor reserves the 
right to challenge the applicability of any such law or rule. 
 
I. InterpretaƟon 
 
Each of the ParƟes has been, or has had the opportunity to have been, represented by their own independent 
counsel throughout the negoƟaƟons, as well as at the execuƟon of this Agreement, and all the other documents 
executed incidental to this Agreement. None of the ParƟes, therefore, may claim or assert that any provision of 
this Agreement or any of the other documents should be construed against the draŌer. 
 
J. No Third-Party Beneficiaries 
 
Except as may be explicitly stated elsewhere in this Agreement, nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall 
be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or enƟty other than the ParƟes to this Agreement. 
 
K. Counterparts 
 
This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, any of which may be signed and transmiƩed electronically, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall, when taken together, consƟtute a single document. 
 
The ParƟes have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized 
agents, as of the date first wriƩen above. 
 
L. Waiver of Jury 
 
The ParƟes each waive any trial by jury in any acƟon, whether at law or in equity, arising out of or related to the 
enforcement or interpretaƟon of this Agreement. 
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The ParƟes have executed this Agreement as of the dates set forth below. 
 

FRANCHISOR:   
THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC 
 

 BUSINESS ORGANIZATION DEVELOPER: 
 

   
By:   By:  
   
Title:   Title:  
   
Date:   Date:  
   
Signature   Signature  
   
Print Name   Print Name  
   
Date:   Date:  



 

EXHIBIT 1 
TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

DEVELOPMENT AREA 
 
 

 
1.  The Development Area is as follows: 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
[aƩach map if necessary] 

 
 

 
Franchisor 
 
Signature___________________________________ 
 
 
Print Name__________________________________ 

Franchisee 
 
Signature___________________________________ 
 
 
Print Name__________________________________ 
 
 
Signature___________________________________ 
 
 
Print Name__________________________________ 
 
 
Signature___________________________________ 
 
 
Print Name__________________________________ 
 
 
Signature___________________________________ 
 
 
Print Name__________________________________ 



 

EXHIBIT 2 
TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE 
 
 

 
Development Fee (SecƟon II).  Developer agrees to pay Franchisor a Development Fee in the amount of 
$_________, which amount is equal to $22,000 for the first Franchised Business and $17,000 for each addiƟonal 
Franchised Business to be developed under the terms of the Area Development Agreement.  The Development 
Fee is payable 1/2 upon signing the Area Developer Agreement and 1/2 upon signing the first Franchise 
Agreement. 
 
Development Schedule (SecƟon III). Developer agrees to establish and operate a total of _____ The Rush Coffee 
Franchised Businesses in accordance with the Ɵmetable set forth below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ownership of Developer. If the Developer is an EnƟty, the following persons consƟtute all of the owners holding 
a legal and/or beneficial interest in the Developer: 
 
Name          Percentage Ownership 
 
_____________________________________     ____________% 
 
 
_____________________________________     ____________% 
 
 
_____________________________________     ____________% 
 
 
_____________________________________     ____________% 
 
 
_____________________________________     ____________% 
 

The Cumulative Minimum 
Number of The Rush Coffee 

Franchised Businesses required in 
Compliance by Each Opening 

Deadline 

Deadline from the 
Effective Date 

  

  

  

  

  



 

FRANCHISOR: THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE 
GROUP, LLC 

 FRANCHISEE: 

   
Signature:_________________________________________  Signature:__________________________________________ 
   
Name:   Name:  
   
Title:   Title:  
   
Date:   Date:  
 
 
   
INDIVIDUAL FRANCHISEE:  INDIVIDUAL FRANCHISEE: 

   
     
Signature  Signature 
   
     
Print Name  Print Name 
   
Date:   Date:  



  

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT C  
TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

 
PERSONAL GUARANTY 
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PERSONAL GUARANTY 
 
As an inducement for The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC (“Franchisor”) to enter into a The Rush Coffee 
franchise agreement and any powers of aƩorney and other instruments dated concurrently with this one 
(collecƟvely, the “Franchise Documents”) between Franchisor and the business enƟty idenƟfied below 
(“Franchisee”), the individual(s) who sign this document (the “Guarantor(s)”) jointly and severally personally 
guarantee: (i) the Ɵmely payment to Franchisor of all Royalty Fees, late fees, interest charges, and all other fees 
and charges provided for under the Franchise Documents; and (ii) the Ɵmely performance of all of the provisions 
of the Franchise Documents for and during the relevant term (including all renewals, if any).  
 
Guarantors further agree to be individually bound by all of Franchisee’s covenants, obligaƟons, and 
commitments contained in each of the Franchise Documents to the same extent as if each of the Guarantors had 
individually executed such documents as the Franchisee. 
 
Guarantors understand and agree that any modificaƟon or waiver of the Franchise Documents by Franchisor, or 
the giving by Franchisor of any extension of Ɵme for the performance of any of the Franchisee’s obligaƟons 
under any of the Franchise Documents, shall not release Guarantors from liability or terminate, modify, or 
diminish the validity of this Guaranty. At all Ɵmes, therefore, Guarantor(s) shall have the same liability, or lack of 
liability, as does the Franchisee.  
 
Guarantor(s) also waive: (i) any right to receive noƟce of any modificaƟon, waiver, extension, or forbearance 
under the terms of any of the Franchise Documents; (ii) any right to receive noƟce of any default on the 
Franchisee’s part; and (iii) exhausƟng of recourse against any Franchisee.  
 
Guarantor(s) consent to any assignment/transfer of the Franchise Documents by Franchisee, without a right to 
receive noƟce of such assignments/transfers. 
 
Guarantors agree to pay all costs, including reasonable aƩorneys’ fees, incurred by Franchisor to collect or 
otherwise enforce the terms of the Franchised Documents, including this Guaranty.  
 
This Guaranty has been delivered to Guarantor in the state where the Franchised Business is located and shall be 
construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of that state. JurisdicƟon in any acƟon to enforce this 
Guaranty shall be in the state where the Franchised Business is located, with venue located in the nearest 
courthouse to the Franchised Business. Guarantor(s) consent to the exercise of personal jurisdicƟon by any such 
court and waive any defense of lack of personal jurisdicƟon or improper venue. 
 

GUARANTOR 
 
________________________________ 
Printed Name, an individual 

GUARANTOR 
 
________________________________ 
Printed Name, an individual 
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FRANCHISEE 
 
Signature________________________________ 
 
Name:__________________________________ 
 
Title:___________________________________ 
 
Date:___________________________ 

 

 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT D   
 

TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 

RESTRICTIVE COVENANT AGREEMENT 
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RESTRICTIVE COVENANT AGREEMENT 
 
This RestricƟve Covenant Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on the dates set forth below by and 
between _________________________________ (“Franchisee”) and ___________________________, an 
individual residing in the State of __________________ (“Covenantor”). Franchisee and Covenantor may be 
collecƟvely referred to in this Agreement as the “ParƟes,” or individually as a “Party.” 
 
RECITALS 
 

A. On ______________________, Franchisee entered into a Franchise Agreement with The Rush Coffee 
Franchise Group LLC (“Franchisor”) granƟng Franchisee a franchise to operate a franchised business under 
Franchisor’s system and proprietary marks (the “Franchised Business”).  
 

B. Covenantor is the owner (or spouse of the owner) of the Franchisee. 
 

C. Franchisor has dedicated Ɵme, skill, effort, and money to create and develop a system for the 
establishment and operaƟon of a disƟncƟve type of vehicle-based business that offers premiere coffee, 
espresso drinks, specialty smoothies, Italian sodas, teas, shaved ice, other beverages, baked goods, and 
desserts, and which includes, without limitaƟon, unique sales and markeƟng methods, pricing techniques, 
promoƟonal materials, new product development, financial informaƟon, and procedures for the efficient 
operaƟon of the Franchised Business (the “System”).  
 

D. Franchisor idenƟfies the System by means of certain trade names, service marks, trademarks, logos, 
emblems and indicia of origin, including but not limited to, the mark “THE RUSH COFFEE,” and such other 
trade names, service marks, and trademarks as are now designated or may later be designated or 
subsƟtuted by Franchisor, for use in connecƟon with the System (the “Mark(s)”).  
 

E. Covenantor acknowledges that the System represents Franchisor’s below-defined ConfidenƟal 
InformaƟon and consists of various trade secrets, all of which Covenantor will have broad access to. 
 

F. As a condiƟon precedent to granƟng the Franchised Business to Franchisee, all shareholders, officers, 
partners, managing members, and members of Franchisee must execute the covenants contained in this 
Agreement. 

 
Based on the foregoing, and as a material inducement for granƟng Franchisee a license to operate the Franchised 
Business, Covenantor agrees and covenants to Franchisee as follows: 
 

1.  ConfidenƟality. Covenantor acknowledges the proprietary and confidenƟal nature of Franchisor’s 
OperaƟng Manual, which Franchisee has received on loan from Franchisor, as well as the importance of 
keeping all of the following ConfidenƟal InformaƟon strictly confidenƟal: (a) unique sales and markeƟng 
methods; (b) pricing techniques; (c) promoƟonal materials; (d) informaƟon relaƟng to new product 
development; (e) financial informaƟon; (f) customer lists; (g) procedures for the efficient operaƟon of the 
Franchised Business; and (h) a variety of other methods, procedures, processes, techniques, informaƟon, 
knowledge, and know-how concerning the System (the ConfidenƟal InformaƟon also consƟtutes 
Franchisor’s “Trade Secrets,” which Franchisor has worked hard to keep protected from compeƟtors). 
Covenantor shall use such Trade Secrets solely for Franchisee’s benefit, and shall never communicate, 
divulge, or use any Trade Secrets to or for the benefit of any other person, enƟty, or organizaƟon. 
 
2.  Proprietary Marks. Covenantor acknowledges Franchisor’s right, Ɵtle, and interest in and to the Marks, 
and thus agrees that any use of the Marks outside the scope of the Franchise Agreement without 
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Franchisor’s prior wriƩen consent would consƟtute an infringement of Franchisor’s exclusive ownership 
rights in and control over the Marks. Covenantor, therefore, expressly covenants that he or she shall not, 
directly or indirectly, commit an act of infringement or contest the validity or ownership of the Marks. 
Covenantor further acknowledges that his or her violaƟon of any of the covenants contained in this 
Agreement relaƟng to the System or the Marks would result in irreparable injury to Franchisor and/or 
Franchisee for which no adequate remedy at law may be available, and accordingly consents to the 
issuance of, and agrees to pay all court costs and reasonable aƩorneys’ fees incurred, by Franchisor or 
Franchisee in obtaining an injuncƟon enjoining any conduct by Covenantor prohibited by the terms of this 
Agreement. This remedy shall be in addiƟon to any and all other remedies that may be available to 
Franchisor or Franchisee. 
 
3.  Non-CompeƟƟon. Covenantor covenants and agrees that unless otherwise approved in wriƟng by 
Franchisor, during the term of the Franchise Agreement, upon the transfer, expiraƟon, or terminaƟon of 
the Franchise Agreement, and for a period of two years aŌer such transfer, expiraƟon, or terminaƟon, 
Covenantor shall not compete directly or indirectly—either as an employee, owner, manager, shareholder, 
member, or partner, or through any of the same—within 25 air miles of Franchisor or any of Franchisor’s 
other franchisees, in any business that primarily offers/sells coffee, espresso drinks, smoothies, sodas, 
teas, shaved ice, other beverages, baked goods, and desserts, or any other products or services that are 
offered in the Franchised Business. Covenantor further acknowledges and agrees to the following: 
 

3.1.  Covenantor acknowledges and agrees that the non-compeƟƟon acƟviƟes prohibited in this 
sub-secƟon, including the length of the term and the extent of the geographic restricƟons, are 
necessary, fair, and reasonable to protect Franchisor’s legiƟmate business interests, and do not 
therefore consƟtute overreaching, duress, or coercion on Franchisor’s part. Covenantor further 
acknowledges and agrees that Covenantor’s full, uninhibited, and faithful observance of each of 
the covenants contained in this Agreement, including the non-compete provisions will not cause 
any undue hardship, financial or otherwise. Likewise, Covenantor acknowledges and agrees that 
enforcement by Franchisor of these covenants will not impair Covenantor’s ability to obtain 
employment commensurate with Covenantor’s abiliƟes and on terms fully acceptable to 
Covenantor, or otherwise to obtain income required for Covenantor’s support (or the support of 
the individual members, shareholders, and partners of Covenantor, if applicable). Covenantor’s 
special knowledge of the Franchised Business is such as would cause Franchisor and its other 
franchisees serious injury and loss if it (or anyone acquiring such knowledge through Covenantor) 
were to use such knowledge to the benefit of a compeƟtor or were to directly compete with 
Franchisor or any of its franchisees. 
 
3.2.  The ParƟes intend that the covenants contained in this parƟcular sub-secƟon be treated as a 
series of separate covenants, one for the geographic limitaƟon generally, and one for each month 
of the two years idenƟfied as the non-compeƟƟon period. If, therefore, in any judicial proceeding, 
a court refuses to enforce all of the separate covenants set forth in this secƟon, then such 
unenforceable covenants shall be deemed eliminated from the provisions of this Agreement for 
the purpose of such proceeding to the extent necessary to permit the remaining separate 
covenants to be enforced. Likewise, if in any judicial proceeding, a court shall refuse to enforce 
any one or more of such separate covenants because the total Ɵme or mileage idenƟfied above is 
deemed to be excessive or unreasonable, then it is the intent of the ParƟes that such covenants—
which would otherwise be unenforceable as a result of the court’s ruling as to the 
unreasonableness of the period of Ɵme or mileage—be enforced for such lesser period of Ɵme or 
mileage as the court deems reasonable. 
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3.3.  The provisions of this sub-secƟon shall not apply to the beneficial ownership by Covenantor 
of less than 5% of the outstanding equity securiƟes of any corporaƟon whose securiƟes are 
registered under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Act of 1934. 
 
3.4.  The provisions of this sub-secƟon shall survive the expiraƟon, terminaƟon, or cancellaƟon of 
this Agreement. 

 
4.  Non-SolicitaƟon. Covenantor covenants and agrees that unless otherwise approved in wriƟng by 
Franchisor, during the term of the Franchise Agreement, upon the transfer, expiraƟon, or terminaƟon of 
the Franchise Agreement, and for a period of two years aŌer such transfer, expiraƟon, or terminaƟon, 
Covenantor shall not directly or indirectly—either as an employee, owner, manager, shareholder, member, 
or partner, or through any of the same— divert any business or customer of the Franchised Business or of 
any other of Franchisor’s franchisees, to any compeƟtor, nor do or perform any other act injurious or 
prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Marks and the System.  
 
5.  Severability. The ParƟes agree that each of the covenants contained in this Agreement shall be 
construed as independent of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement. If all or any porƟon of a 
covenant contained in this Agreement is held unreasonable or unenforceable by a court or agency having 
valid jurisdicƟon, Covenantor expressly agrees to be bound by any lesser covenants subsumed within the 
terms of such covenant that imposes the maximum duty permiƩed by law, as if the resulƟng covenants 
were separately stated in and made a part of this Agreement. 
 
6.  Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the ParƟes and their respecƟve 
legal representaƟves, successors, and assigns. 
 
7.  ConstrucƟon. The ParƟes agree that this Agreement shall be deemed to have been entered into in and 
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of where the Franchised 
Business is located. 
 
8.  JurisdicƟon. Except to the extent governed by the Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. 1051 et seq.) relaƟng to the 
Marks, and unless otherwise prohibited by any applicable law, Covenantor agrees that all suits, acƟons, or 
other proceedings with respect to, arising out of, or in connecƟon with this Agreement, shall be heard and 
determined in a court located in San Diego, California. Covenantor therefore consents and agrees that the 
courts located in the State of California, County of San Diego, shall have personal jurisdicƟon over 
Covenantor in all lawsuits relaƟng to or arising out of this Agreement. If Covenantor is located outside of 
the State of California, Covenantor agrees that Covenantor may be served with process via cerƟfied mail, 
and Covenantor waives any defense it may have of insufficiency of service of process relaƟng to such 
service. This method of service shall not be the exclusive method of service available in such lawsuits and 
shall be available in addiƟon to any other method of service allowed by law. 
 
9.  AƩorneys’ Fees. In any legal acƟon to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the 
prevailing Party shall be enƟtled to its aƩorneys’ fees and costs. 
 
10.  Franchisor Third-Party Beneficiary. Covenantor and Franchisee acknowledge and intend that the 
covenants contained in this Agreement shall directly benefit Franchisor and its affiliates, who shall be 
third-party beneficiaries, and independently enƟtled to enforce the provisions of this Agreement. 
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The ParƟes, independently or through their authorized representaƟves, have executed this Agreement as of the 
dates set forth below. 
 
Date__________________________ 
 
FRANCHISEE 
 
 
Signature________________________________ 
 
Name___________________________________ 
 
Title____________________________________ 

Date__________________________ 
 
COVENANTOR 
 
 
Signature_________________________________ 
 
Name____________________________________ 

 



 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT E 
 

 TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 

POWER OF ATTORNEY TO ASSIGN TELEPHONE NUMBER 
 
  
 

 



 

POWER OF ATTORNEY TO ASSIGN TELEPHONE NUMBER 
 
The franchisee who signs below (“Assignor”) irrevocably appoints the franchisor, The Rush Coffee Franchise Group 
LLC (“Assignee”), as its lawful aƩorney-in-fact and agent to act for and in the name of Assignor for the purpose of 
execuƟng, acknowledging, cerƟfying, delivering, accepƟng, recording, and filing all such agreements, cerƟficates, 
instruments, and documents that Assignee believes are necessary to effectuate a transfer to Assignee of all of 
Assignor’s rights, Ɵtle, and interest in and to any and all telephone numbers of Assignor’s related The Rush Coffee 
franchised business(es). This irrevocable Power of AƩorney grants Assignee the unfeƩered right to do all things 
that Assignor is permiƩed to do with respect to the phone numbers associated in any way with The Rush Coffee 
franchised business(es).  
 
While this Power of AƩorney is in effect, and regardless of whether Assignor has designated any other person to 
act as its aƩorney-in-fact and agent, no person, firm, or corporaƟon dealing with Assignee will be required to 
ascertain the authority of Assignee, nor to see to the performance of the agency, nor be responsible in any way 
for the proper applicaƟon of funds or property paid or delivered to Assignee. Any person, firm, or corporaƟon 
dealing with Assignee shall be fully protected in acƟng and relying on a cerƟficate of Assignee that this Power of 
AƩorney on the date of such cerƟficate has not been revoked and is in full force and effect, and Assignor will not 
take any acƟon against any person, firm, or corporaƟon acƟng in reliance on such a cerƟficate or a copy of this 
Power of AƩorney. Any instrument or document executed on behalf of Assignor by Assignee will be deemed to 
include such a cerƟficate on the part of Assignee, whether or not expressed. This paragraph will survive any 
terminaƟon of this Power of AƩorney. 
 
This power of AƩorney will self-terminate two years following the expiraƟon or terminaƟon of the Franchise 
Agreement between the Assignee and Assignor. Such terminaƟon, however, will not affect the validity of any act 
or deed that the Assignee may have affected prior to the date of terminaƟon. 
 
This document is to be construed and interpreted as an irrevocable Power of AƩorney coupled with an interest. It 
is executed and delivered in the state where the franchised business is located, and the laws of the state of where 
the franchised business is located and will govern all quesƟons as to the validity of this Power of AƩorney and the 
construcƟon of its provisions. 
 
ASSIGNOR (Franchisee) 
 
__________________________________________ 
Name of Franchisee 
 
Signature:__________________________________ 
 
Name:_____________________________________ 
 
Title:______________________________________ 

STATE OF ___________, COUNTY OF ___________, 
Ss. 
 
Acknowledged and subscribed before me, a Notary 
Public in and for said County and State, this ______ 
day of ______________. 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
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TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 

LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND  
AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 

 
 



 

LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 
 

CALIFORNIA 
Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation 
2101 Arena Boulevard 
Sacramento, CA  95834 
Tel: (415) 972-8559 
Fax: (415) 972-8590 
Toll Free: (866) 275-2677 
Website: https://dfpi.ca.gov 
Email: Ask.DFPI@dfpi.ca.gov 
 
CONNECTICUT 
Department of Banking 
Securities and Business Investments Division 
260 Constitution Plaza 
Hartford, Connecticut 06103-1800 
Tel: (860) 240-8230 
 
FLORIDA 
Tom Kenny, Regulatory Consultant 
Department of Agriculture & Consumer Services 
Division of Consumer Services 
P.O. Box 6700 
Tallahassee, Florida 32314 
Tel: (850) 488-2221 
Fax: (850) 410-3804 
 
HAWAII 
(for service of process) 
Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii 
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs 
Business Registration Division 
Securities Compliance Branch 
335 Merchant Street, Room 203 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
 
(state agency) 
Department of Commerce &  
Consumer Affairs 
King Kalakaua Building 
335 Merchant Street, Rm 203 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
Tel: (808)586-2722 
Fax: (808) 587-7559  
 
 

ILLINOIS 
Franchise Bureau 
Illinois Attorney General 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, Illinois 62706 
(217) 782-4465 
 
INDIANA 
(for service of process) 
Indiana Secretary of State 
201 State House 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 
 
(state agency) 
Securities Commissioner 
Indiana Secretary of State 
Securities Division, Franchise Section 
302 West Washington Street,  
Room E-111 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 
Tel: (317) 232-6681 
 
IOWA 
Dennis Britson 
Director of Regulated Industries Unit 
Iowa Securities Bureau 
340 Maple 
Des Moines, Iowa  50319-0066 
Tel: (515) 281-4441 
Fax: (515) 281-3059 
email: iowasec@iid.state.ia.us 
 
MARYLAND 
(for service of process) 
Maryland Securities Commissioner 
Division of Securities 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020 
 
(state agency) 
Office of the Attorney General 
Division of Securities 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020 
Tel: (410) 576-6360 



 

 
MICHIGAN 
(for service of process) 
Michigan Department of Consumer and Industry Services 
Bureau of Commercial Services 
Corporations Division 
PO Box 30054 
Lansing, Michigan 48909 
Tel: (517) 241-6470 
 
MICHIGAN  
(state agency) 
Department of the Attorney General 
Consumer Protection Division 
Antitrust and Franchise Section 
670 Law Building 
Lansing, MI 48913 
Tel: (517) 373-7117 
 
MINNESOTA 
Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce 
Department of Commerce 
85 7th Place East, Suite 280 
St. Paul, MN 55101-2198 
Tel: (651) 539-1600 
 
NEBRASKA 
Gene Schenkelberg, Securities Analyst 
Department of Banking & Finance 
1200 N. Street, Suite 311 
P.O. Box 95006 
Lincoln, Nebraska 68509 
Tel: (402) 417-3445 
 
NEW YORK 
(Agent for Service of Process) 
Secretary of State 
99 Washington Avenue 
Albany, NY 12231  
 
(Administrator) 
NYS Department of Law 
Investor Protection Bureau 
28 Liberty St., 21St Floor 
New York, NY 10005 
Tel: (212) 416-8222 
 
 
 
 

 
NORTH DAKOTA 
(for service of process) 
North Dakota Securities Commissioner 
North Dakota Securities Department 
600 East Boulevard, 5th Floor 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510 
 
(state agency) 
North Dakota Securities Department 
600 East Boulevard, 5th Floor 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510 
Tel: (701) 328-2910 
 
OREGON 
Director, Department of Consumer & 
Business Services 
Division of Finance & Corporate Securities 
Labor and Industries Building 
Salem, Oregon 97310 
Tel: (503) 378-4140 
Fax: (503) 947-7862 
Email: dcbs.dfcsmail@state.or.us 
 
RHODE ISLAND 
Director 
Securities Division 
Department of Business Regulation, 
Building 69, First Floor 
John O. Pastore Center 
1511 Pontiac Avenue, 
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920 
Tel: (401) 462 9582 
 
SOUTH DAKOTA 
Director, Department of Labor and 
Regulation 
Division of Insurance 
Securities Regulation 
124 South Euclid, Suite 104 
Pierre, South Dakota 57501 
Tel: (605) 773-3563 
 
(continued on next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

TEXAS 
Statutory Document Section  
Secretary of State 
1719 Brazos 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Attn: Dorothy Wilson 
Tel: (512) 475-1769 
 
UTAH 
Director, Division of Consumer Protection 
Utah Dept. of Commerce 
160 East Three Hundred South 
SM Box 146704 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-6704 
Tel: (801) 530-6601 
Fax: (801) 530-6001 
 
VIRGINIA 
(for service of process) 
Clerk of the State Corporation Commission 
1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
 
(state agency) 
Director 
State Corporation Commission 
Division of Securities and Retail Franchising 
1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
Tel: (804) 371-9051 
 
WASHINGTON 
(for service of process) 
Administrator 
Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 
150 Israel Road SW 
Tumwater, Washington 98501 
 
(state agency) 
Administrator 
Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 
P.O. Box 41200 
Olympia, Washington 98504-1200 
Tel: (360) 902-8760 
Fax: (360) 902-0524 

WISCONSIN 
Commissioner of Securities 
Department of Financial Institutions 
P.O. Box 1768 
Madison, Wisconsin 53701-1768 
Tel: (608) 266-2801 



 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT G 
TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

  
LIST OF FRANCHISEES AND THEIR OUTLETS 

 
 

 



 

LIST OF FRANCHISEES AND THEIR OUTLETS AT OUR FISCAL YEAR END (DECEMBER 31, 2023) 
 

FRANCHISEE CONTACT STREET ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP PHONE 

Buckets of Water, LLC Cheryl Northup 23581 Wickham Lane Murrieta CA 92562 (619) 990-7527 

CK Myers Enterprises, LLC Chari Myers 27717 Heritage Lane Valley Center CA 92082 (760) 348-8989 

The Food Dood George Hadden 259 Zuma Drive Liberty Hill TX 78642 (760) 208-3734 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT H 
TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT  

 
LIST OF FRANCHISEES THAT LEFT THE SYSTEM 



 

LIST OF FRANCHISEES WHO CEASED TO DO BUSINESS UNDER THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 
We had no franchisees who had an outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or 
involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise agreement during our fiscal year ended December 31, 
2023. 
 
If you buy the franchise offered in this Disclosure Document, your contact informaƟon may be disclosed to other 
buyers when you leave the franchise system. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 

To the Members 
The Rush Coffee Franchise Group, LLC 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Rush Coffee Franchise Group, LLC, 
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of 
income and members’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of The Rush Coffee Franchise Group, LLC as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the 
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of The 
Rush Coffee Franchise Group, LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about The Rush Coffee Franchise Group, 
LLC’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements 
are available to be issued. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of The Rush Coffee Franchise Group, LLC’s internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about The Rush Coffee Franchise Group, LLC’s ability to continue as 
a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
 
 
 
February 28, 2024 
Las Vegas, NV 
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2023 2022

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash 50,561$           20,317$           
Accounts receivable 2,195               1,515               

Total current assets 52,756             21,832             

Property and Equipment, net 14,849             19,164             

Total Assets 67,605$           40,996$           

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accrued expenses 10,000$           -$                 
Deferred franchise fees, current 8,153               4,000               

Total current liabilities 18,153             4,000               

Long-Term Liabilities:
Deferred franchise fees, net of current 20,459             12,000             

Total Liabilities 38,612             16,000             

Members' Equity 28,993             24,996             

Total Liabilities and Members' Equity 67,605$           40,996$           
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC 
STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY 
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2023 2022

Revenue 45,715$            23,146$            

Cost of Revenue 12,314              8,016                

Gross Profit 33,401              15,130              

Operating Expenses:
Advertising 1,050                4,370                
Depreciation 4,315                2,412                
Office expense and other 960                   131                   
Professioanl fees 11,791              6,077                
Taxes and licenses 1,288                800                   

Total operating expenses 19,404              13,790              

Net Income 13,997              1,340                

Members' Equity, Beginning of Period 24,996              23,706              

Member distributions (10,000)            (50)                   

Members' Equity, End of Period 28,993$            24,996$            
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
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2023 2022
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net income 13,997$              1,340$                

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 4,315                  2,412                  
Changes in:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (680)                    165                     
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 10,000                -                      
Increase (decrease) in deferred franchise fees 12,612                16,000                

Net cash provided by operating activities 40,244                19,917                

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment -                      (21,576)               

Net cash used in investing activities -                      (21,576)               

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Member distributions (10,000)               (50)                      

Net cash used in financing activities (10,000)               (50)                      

Net Change in Cash 30,244                (1,709)                 

Cash, Beginning of Period 20,317                22,026                

Cash, End of Period 50,561$              20,317$              
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
This summary of significant accounting policies of The Rush Coffee Franchise Group, LLC (the 
“Company”) is presented to assist in understanding the Company’s financial statements. The financial 
statements and notes are representations of the Company’s management, which is responsible for the 
integrity and objectivity of the financial statements. These accounting policies conform to accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have been consistently applied in the 
preparation of the financial statements. 
 
Nature of the Business 
 
The Company was organized on June 11, 2021 under the laws of the state of California. The Company’s 
franchises offer premiere coffee, espresso drinks, specialty smoothies, italian sodas, teas, and assorted 
pastries baked fresh daily from local bakeries. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, which recognizes income when 
earned and expenses when incurred. 
 
Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments available for current use with original maturity of 
three months or less to be cash equivalents.  
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
The Company’s receivables are primarily generated from ongoing business relationships with franchisees 
as a result of franchise agreements. 
 
Accounts receivable is stated at the amount the Company expects to collect from outstanding balances. 
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a 
valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts.  Balances still 
outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to 
the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.   
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Accounts Receivable (Continued) 
 
As of December 31, accounts receivable consisted of the following balances: 
 

2023 2022

Accounts receivable 2,195$            1,515$            

Allowance for doubtful accounts -                  -                  

2,195$            1,515$            
 

 
Revenue Recognition 
 
The Company executes franchise agreements for each franchise which set out the terms of the agreement 
with the franchisee.  Franchise agreements typically require the franchisee to pay an initial, non-
refundable fee and continuing fees based upon a percentage of sales or a percentage fee for each single 
unit franchise awarded.  Subject to the Company’s approval and payment of a renewal fee, a franchisee 
may generally renew the franchise agreement upon its expiration. 
 
The Company has determined that the services provided in exchange for initial franchise fees are highly 
interrelated with the franchise right and are not individually distinct from the ongoing services the 
Company provides to its franchisees. As a result, initial franchise fees are recognized as revenue over the 
term of each respective franchise agreement. Revenues for these initial franchise fees are recognized on 
the straight-line basis, which is consistent with the franchisee’s right to use and benefit from intellectual 
property. 
 
The Company’s contract liabilities are comprised of unamortized initial franchise fees. As of December 
31, deferred franchise fees consisted of the following: 
 

2023 2022

Deferred franchise fees 28,612$          16,000$          

Less: current maturities (8,153)             (4,000)             

20,459$          12,000$          
 

 
As of December 31, the Company expects to recognize contract liabilities as revenue over the remaining 
term of the associated franchise agreements as follows: 
 

2024 8,153$        
2025 8,153          
2026 8,153          
2027 4,153          

28,612$      
 

 
Continuing fees are recognized monthly, as they are earned. 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP, LLC 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 

8 

 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Advertising 
 
Advertising costs are expensed when incurred or the first time such advertisement appears.  For the years 
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, total advertising costs were $1,050 and $4,370, respectively.  
 
Income Taxes 
 
As a limited liability company, the Company’s taxable income or loss is allocated to the members.  
Therefore, no provision or liability for federal or state income taxes has been included in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
 
No provision or liability for materially uncertain tax positions was deemed necessary by management. 
Therefore, no provision or liability for uncertain tax positions has been included in these financial 
statements. 
 
As of December 31, 2023, the tax years subject to potential examination by taxing authorities begin with 
the year ended December 31, 2021. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 
As of December 31, property and equipment consisted of the following: 
 

2023 2022
Equipment 11,576$               11,576$               
Vehicles 10,000                 10,000                 

21,576                 21,576                 
Less: accumulated depreciation (6,727)                  (2,412)                  

14,849$               19,164$               
 

 
Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 was $4,315 and $2,412, 
respectively. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – REVENUE RECOGNITION 
 
As of December 31, the timing and recognition of revenue was as follows: 
 

2023 2022

Services transferred at a point in time 37,562$             19,146$             
Services transferred over time 8,153                 4,000                 

45,715$             23,146$             
 

 
Various economic factors such as supply and demand, laws and policies and labor affect revenues and 
cash flows. The Company’s revenue is derived from sources within the United States. 
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NOTE 4 – MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through February 28, 2024, the date on which the financial 
statements were available to be issued. No other events were identified that required adjustment or 
disclosure in the financial statements. 
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CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT: 
 
1.  The registraƟon of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial ProtecƟon and InnovaƟon 
does not consƟtute approval, recommendaƟon, or endorsement by the commissioner. 
 
2.  The following language is added to the end of Item 5 of the Disclosure Document: 
 

“IniƟal Fees Impounded.  We shall deposit 100% of the iniƟal fees paid by you to us into an escrow account 
managed by the Allison-McCluskey Escrow Company, a depositary authorized by the Commissioner of the 
Department of Financial ProtecƟon and InnovaƟon. This impounding of all iniƟal fees paid by you to us shall 
comply with the terms of an Escrow Agreement to be signed by you and us and shall remain with the depositary 
unƟl we have performed all of our pre-opening obligaƟons owed to you, you are open for business, and the 
Department of Financial ProtecƟon and InnovaƟon has authorized the release of the impounded funds.”  

 
3.  The California Franchise Investment Law requires a copy of all proposed agreements relaƟng to the sale of the 
franchise to be delivered together with the franchise disclosure document 14 days prior to execuƟon of the 
agreement. 
 
4.  The highest interest rate allowed by law in California is 10% annually. 
 
5.  Neither the franchisor, nor any person or franchise broker in idenƟfied in Item 2 of the UFOC, is subject to any 
currently effecƟve order of any naƟonal securiƟes associaƟon or naƟonal securiƟes exchange, as defined in the 
SecuriƟes Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such persons from membership 
in such associaƟon or exchange. 
 
6.  California Business and Professions Code secƟon 20000 through 20043 provides rights to the franchisee 
concerning terminaƟon, transfer, or nonrenewal of a franchise. If the Franchise Agreement and Area Development 
Agreement contain a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control. 
 
7.  The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement provide for terminaƟon upon bankruptcy. This 
provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law. (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et seq.). 
 
8.  The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement contain a covenant not to compete, which extends 
beyond the terminaƟon of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law. 
 
9.  To the extent that the Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement contain a liquidated damages 
clause, California Civil Code secƟon 1671 prohibits enforcement of certain liquidated damages clauses. 
 
10.  ProspecƟve franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the applicability of 
California and federal laws (such as Bus. and Prof. Code, § 20040.5, Code of Civ. Proc., § 1281, and the Federal 
ArbitraƟon Act) to any provisions of a Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement that seek to restrict 
venue to a forum outside the State of California. 
 
11.  The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement require the applicaƟon of the laws of where the 
Franchised Business is located. This provision may not be enforceable under California law. 
 
12.  California CorporaƟons Code secƟon 31125 requires us to give you a disclosure document in a form containing 
the informaƟon that the commissioner may, by rule or order, require before a solicitaƟon of a proposed material 
modificaƟon of an exisƟng franchise. 
 



 

13.  You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your franchise. California CorporaƟons Code secƟon 
31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California CorporaƟons Code §§31000 
through 31516). Business and Professions Code secƟon 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise 
RelaƟons Act. (Business and Professions Code §§ 20000 through 20043). 
 
14.  The financial performance representaƟons does (do) not reflect the costs of sales, operaƟng expenses, or 
other costs or expenses that must be deducted from the Gross Revenue or gross sales figures to obtain your net 
income or profit. You should conduct an independent invesƟgaƟon of the costs and expenses you will incur in 
operaƟng your Franchised Business. Franchisees or former franchisees listed in the offering circular may be one 
source of this informaƟon. 
 
15.  Our website (www.therushcoffee.com) has not been reviewed or approved by the California Department of 
Financial ProtecƟon and InnovaƟon. Any complaints concerning the contents of the website may be directed to 
the California Department of Financial ProtecƟon and InnovaƟon at www.dfpi.ca.gov. 
 
16.  Each owner of the franchise is required to execute a personal guaranty. If you are married, you and your spouse 
will be individually liable for your financial obligaƟons under the Franchise Agreement. This guaranty will place you 
and your spouse’s marital and personal assets at risk, including, perhaps, your home, if your franchise fails. Doing 
so could also jeopardize the marital assets of non-owner spouses domiciled in community property states, such as 
California.  
 
17.  California CorporaƟons Code secƟon 31512.1 renders certain Franchise Agreement provisions void as being 
contrary to public policy. Specifically, that secƟon states that: 
 

Any provision of a franchise agreement, franchise disclosure document, acknowledgment, quesƟonnaire, 
or other wriƟng, including any exhibit thereto, disclaiming or denying any of the following shall be deemed 
contrary to public policy and shall be void and unenforceable: 
 
(a) RepresentaƟons made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents to a prospecƟve franchisee. 
 
(b) Reliance by a franchisee on any representaƟons made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents. 
 
(c) Reliance by a franchisee on the franchise disclosure document, including any exhibit thereto. 
 
(d) ViolaƟons of any provision of this division. 

 
18.  You will not receive an exclusive territory.  You may face compeƟƟon from other franchisees, from outlets that 
we own, or from other channels of distribuƟon or compeƟƟve brands that we control. 
  



 

CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT: 
 
The Franchise Agreement is specifically amended as follows: 
 
The following language is added at the end of SecƟon III A., IniƟal Franchise Fee: 
 

“IniƟal Fees Impounded.  Franchisor shall deposit 100% of the iniƟal fees paid by Franchisee to Franchisor into 
an escrow account managed by the Allison-McCluskey Escrow Company, a depositary authorized by the 
Commissioner of the Department of Financial ProtecƟon and InnovaƟon. This impounding of all iniƟal fees paid 
by Franchisee to Franchisor shall comply with the terms of an Escrow Agreement to be signed by Franchisee 
and Franchisor and shall remain with the depositary unƟl (i) Franchisor has performed all of its pre-opening 
obligaƟons owed to Franchisee, (ii) Franchisee is open for business, and (iii) the Department of Financial 
ProtecƟon and InnovaƟon has authorized the release of the impounded funds.”  

 
The ParƟes are signing this addendum concurrently with the Franchise Agreement to which it is aƩached. 
 
FRANCHISOR: 
THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

 
 
 
  



 

HAWAII ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT: 
 
The Franchise Agreement to which this addendum is aƩached is amended as follows to comply with the Hawaii 
Franchise Investment Law: 
 

1.  In recogniƟon of the requirements of the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law, Hawaii Revised Statutes, 
Title 26, Chapter 482E et seq., the Franchise Agreement is amended as follows: 
 

(a) The Hawaii Franchise Investment Law provides rights to you concerning non-renewal, 
terminaƟon, and transfer of the Franchise Agreement. If the Franchise Agreement contains a 
provision that is inconsistent with the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law, the Hawaii Franchise 
Investment Law will control. 
 
(b) A general release required as a condiƟon of the renewal, assignment, or transfer of the 
Franchise Agreement or the franchise shall not apply to any claim or liability arising under the 
Hawaii Franchise Investment Law. 

 
2.  Each provision of this addendum is effecƟve only to the extent that the jurisdicƟonal requirements of 
the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law are met independently of this addendum. To the extent, this 
addendum is inconsistent with any term or condiƟon of the Franchise Agreement or its exhibits or 
aƩachments, the terms of this addendum shall control. Franchisor and Franchisee hereby raƟfy and affirm 
the Franchise Agreement in all other respects. 
 

The ParƟes are signing this addendum concurrently with the Franchise Agreement to which it is aƩached. 
 

FRANCHISOR: 
THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

 
  



 

ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 
The following addiƟonal disclosures are required by the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, as amended, and 
the Illinois Disclosure Rules and RegulaƟons: 
 

1.  815 ILCS 705/41 provides that any condiƟon, sƟpulaƟon, or provision in the Franchise Agreement that 
requires you to waive any of your rights under, or the Franchisor's obligaƟon to comply with any provision 
of, the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, as amended, the Illinois Disclosure Rules and RegulaƟons, 
or any other law of Illinois, is void. 
 
2.  Non-renewal of your franchise must comply with 815 ILCS 705/20. TerminaƟon of your franchise must 
comply with 815 ILCS 705/19. 
 
3.  Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that requires the applicaƟon of the laws of another state is 
void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act. 
 
4.  Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that designates jurisdicƟon or venue in a forum outside the 
State of Illinois is void with respect to any cause of acƟon which is otherwise enforceable in Illinois. 
 
5.  The venue provisions found in secƟon XXIII(F) of the Franchise Agreement and XI(E) of the Area 
Development Agreement are modified in part to state that: 
 

“. . . Franchisee agrees that all suits, acƟons, or other proceedings with respect to, arising out of, 
or in connecƟon with this Agreement, shall be heard and determined in a court located in San 
Diego, California, or if the Franchised Business is located in the State of Illinois, then it may be 
heard and determined there as well.” 

 
6.  To the extent that any part of this addendum is inconsistent with any terms or condiƟons of the 
franchise disclosure document, the Franchise Agreement, or any of their exhibits or aƩachments, the 
provisions of this addendum control. 

 
  



 

ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND OTHER AGREEMENTS 
 
The Franchise Agreement to which this addendum is aƩached is amended to the extent necessary to abide by the 
following, all of which are required under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, as amended, and the Illinois 
Disclosure Rules and RegulaƟons: 
 

1.  Franchisee’s rights upon TerminaƟon and Non-Renewal are set forth in secƟons 19 and 20 of the Illinois 
Franchise Disclosure Act. 
 
2.  A general release required as a condiƟon of renewal, assignment, or transfer does not apply to any 
claim or liability arising under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act. 
 
3.  Any provision in the Franchise Agreement or this addendum that requires the applicaƟon of the laws 
of another state or designates jurisdicƟon or venue in a forum outside the State of Illinois is void with 
respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act. 
 
4.  Illinois law governs the Franchise Agreement. 
 
5.  Under SecƟon 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condiƟon, sƟpulaƟon, or provision 
purporƟng to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois Franchise 
Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void. 

 
The ParƟes are signing this addendum concurrently with the Franchise Agreement to which it is aƩached. 
 

FRANCHISOR: 
THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

  



 

INDIANA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 
The following addiƟonal disclosures are required by the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law and the Indiana 
DecepƟve Franchise PracƟces Law: 
 

1.  THE STATE OF INDIANA HAS STATUTES THAT MAY SUPERSEDE THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT IN YOUR 
RELATIONSHIP WITH THE FRANCHISOR, INCLUDING THE AREAS OF TERMINATION AND RENEWAL OF YOUR 
FRANCHISE [INDIANA CODE §§ 23-2-2.5-1 THROUGH 23-2-2.5-50]. THIS STATE ALSO HAS COURT 
DECISIONS THAT MAY SUPERSEDE THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT IN YOUR RELATIONSHIP WITH THE 
FRANCHISOR, INCLUDING THE AREAS OF TERMINATION AND RENEWAL OF YOUR FRANCHISE. THE STATE 
OF INDIANA HAS A STATUTE THAT RESTRICTS OR PROHIBITS THE IMPOSITION OF LIQUIDATED DAMAGE 
PROVISIONS [INDIANA CODE §23-2-2.7(10)]. A PROVISION IN THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT THAT 
TERMINATES THE FRANCHISE UPON THE BANKRUPTCY OF THE FRANCHISEE MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE 
UNDER FEDERAL BANKRUPTCY LAW [11 U.S.C. SECTION 101 ET SEQ.]. 
 
2.  A general release required as a condiƟon of renewal, assignment, or transfer shall not apply to any 
claim or liability arising under the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law and the Indiana DecepƟve Franchise 
PracƟces Law. 
 
3.  The Franchise Agreement does not expressly give you the right to terminate the Franchised Business if 
Franchisor commits a substanƟal breach, but Indiana law may give you that right. 
 
4.  Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that requires the applicaƟon of the laws of another state or 
designates jurisdicƟon or venue in a forum outside the State of Indiana is void with respect to a claim 
otherwise enforceable under the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law or the Indiana DecepƟve Franchise 
PracƟces Law. 
 
5.  In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law and the Indiana 
DecepƟve Franchise PracƟces Law will prevail. 
 
6.  To the extent that this addendum is inconsistent with any terms or condiƟons of the franchise offering 
circular, the Franchise Agreement, or any of their exhibits or aƩachments, the terms of this addendum 
shall control. 

  



 

INDIANA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 
The Franchise Agreement to which this addendum is aƩached is amended as necessary to comply with the 
following requirements of the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law and the Indiana DecepƟve Franchise PracƟces Law. 
 

1.  A general release required as a condiƟon of renewal, assignment, or transfer shall not apply to any 
claim or liability arising under the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law and the Indiana DecepƟve Franchise 
PracƟces Law. 
 
2.  Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that requires the applicaƟon of the laws of another state or 
designates jurisdicƟon or venue in a forum outside the State of Indiana is void with respect to a claim 
otherwise enforceable under the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law or the Indiana DecepƟve Franchise 
PracƟces Law. 
 
3.  In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law and the Indiana 
DecepƟve Franchise PracƟces Law shall prevail. 
 
4.  Each provision of this addendum is effecƟve only to the extent that the jurisdicƟonal requirements of 
the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law and the Indiana DecepƟve Franchise PracƟces Law are met 
independently of this addendum. To the extent that this addendum is inconsistent with any term or 
condiƟon of the Franchise Agreement or its exhibits or aƩachments, the terms of this addendum shal 
control. Franchisor and Franchisee otherwise raƟfy and affirm the Franchise Agreement in all other 
respects. 

 
The ParƟes are signing this addendum concurrently with the Franchise Agreement to which it is aƩached. 
 

FRANCHISOR: 
THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

 
  



 

MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 
The following addiƟonal disclosures are required by the Maryland Franchise RegistraƟon and Disclosure Law: 
 

ITEM 17 
 
1.  The general release required as a condiƟon of renewal, assignment, or transfer does not apply to any 
claims that arise under the Maryland Franchise RegistraƟon and Disclosure Law. 
 
2.  The Franchise Agreement provision that provides for terminaƟon upon Franchisee’s bankruptcy may 
not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. SecƟon 101 et seq.). 
 
3.  Franchisee may sue Franchisor in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise RegistraƟon 
and Disclosure Law. 
 
4.  If the Franchise Agreement contains a binding arbitraƟon provision, it may not be enforceable. A 
Maryland franchise regulaƟon states that it is an unfair or decepƟve pracƟce to require a franchisee to 
waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland. In light of the Federal ArbitraƟon Act, there is some dispute as 
to whether such a requirement is legally enforceable. 
 
5.  Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise RegistraƟon and Disclosure Law must be brought 
within three years aŌer the grant of the franchise. 

  



 

MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement to which this addendum is aƩached are amended as 
follows to comply with the Maryland Franchise RegistraƟon and Disclosure Law: 
 

1.  A general release required as a condiƟon of renewal, sale, assignment, or transfer shall not apply to any 
liability under the Maryland Franchise RegistraƟon and Disclosure Law. 
 
2. A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise 
RegistraƟon and Disclosure Law. 
 
3.  If the Franchise Agreement contains a binding arbitraƟon provision, it may not be enforceable. A 
Maryland franchise regulaƟon states that it is an unfair or decepƟve pracƟce to require a franchisee to 
waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland. In light of the Federal ArbitraƟon Act, there is some dispute as 
to whether such a requirement is legally enforceable. 
 
4.  Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise RegistraƟon and Disclosure Law must be brought 
within three years aŌer the grant of the franchise. 
 
5.  All representaƟons requiring prospecƟve franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel, or waiver of 
liability are not intended to, nor shall they act as a, release, estoppel, or waiver of any liability incurred 
under the Maryland Franchise RegistraƟon and Disclosure Law. 
 
6.  Each provision of this addendum is effecƟve only to the extent that the jurisdicƟonal requirements of 
the Maryland Franchise RegistraƟon and Disclosure Law are met independently of this addendum. To the 
extent that this addendum is inconsistent with any term or condiƟon of the Franchise Agreement or its 
exhibits or aƩachments, the terms of this addendum shall control. Franchisor and Franchisee raƟfy and 
affirm the Franchise Agreement in all other respects. 

 
The ParƟes are signing this addendum concurrently with the Franchise Agreement to which it is aƩached. 
 

FRANCHISOR: 
THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

 
  



 

FOR RESIDENTS OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 
THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE SOMETIMES INCLUDED IN 
FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE 
PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU. 
 

1.  A prohibiƟon on your right to join an associaƟon of franchisees. 
 
2.  A requirement that you assent to a release, assignment, novaƟon, waiver, or estoppel which deprives 
you of rights and protecƟons provided under Michigan’s franchise laws. This shall not preclude a franchise, 
aŌer entering into a franchise agreement, from seƩling any and all claims. 
 
3.  A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiraƟon of its term except 
for a good cause. Good cause shall include your failure: (a) to comply with any lawful provision of the 
Franchise Agreement; and (b) cure such failure aŌer being given wriƩen noƟce and a reasonable 
opportunity to do so (which in no event need be more than 30 days). 
 
4.  A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensaƟng the 
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the Ɵme of expiraƟon of the 
franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have 
no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably 
required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensaƟon. This subsecƟon applies 
only if: (a) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years; and (b) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise 
or other agreement from conƟnuing to conduct substanƟally the same business under another trademark, 
service mark, trade name, logotype, adverƟsing, or another commercial symbol in the same area 
subsequent to the expiraƟon of the franchise or the franchise does not receive at least six months advance 
noƟce of franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise. 
 
5.  A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to 
other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This secƟon does not require a 
renewal provision. 
 
6.  A provision requiring that arbitraƟon or liƟgaƟon be conducted outside this state. This shall not 
preclude a franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the Ɵme of arbitraƟon, to conduct an arbitraƟon 
at a locaƟon outside this state. 
 
7.  A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except 
for a good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to 
purchase the franchise. In such cases, good cause shall include without limitaƟon: 
 

(a) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then-current reasonable 
qualificaƟons or standards. 
 
(b) The fact that the proposed transferee is a compeƟtor of the franchisor or sub-franchisor. 
 
(c) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in wriƟng to comply with all lawful 
obligaƟons. 
 
(d) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor, 
or to cure any default in the franchise agreement exisƟng at the Ɵme of the proposed transfer. 



 

 
8.  A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely idenƟfied 
with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first 
refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and condiƟons as a bona fide third party 
willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the 
franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if 
the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the 
breach in the manner provided in paragraph three above. 
 
9.  A provision that permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer its 
obligaƟons to fulfill contractual obligaƟons to the franchisee unless provision has been made for providing 
the required contractual services. 
 
10. If the Franchisor's most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than 
$100,000, the Franchisee may request the Franchisor to arrange for the escrow of iniƟal investment and 
other funds paid by the Franchisee unƟl the obligaƟons, if any, of the Franchisor to provide real estate, 
improvements, equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are 
fulfilled. At the opƟon of the Franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow. 

 
THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT 
CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL. 
 
Any quesƟons regarding the noƟce of this offering on file with the aƩorney general should be directed to the 
Department of AƩorney General, Consumer ProtecƟon Division, 670 Law Building, 525 West OƩawa Street, 
Lansing, Michigan 48913 (517) 373-7117. 
 
To the extent that this addendum is inconsistent with any terms or condiƟons of the franchise disclosure 
document, the Franchise Agreement, or any of their exhibits or aƩachments, the terms of this addendum shall 
control. 
  



 

MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 
The following addiƟonal disclosures are required by the Minnesota Franchise Law: 
 

1.  The Minnesota Department of Commerce requires that franchisors indemnify Minnesota franchisees 
against liability to third parƟes resulƟng from claims by third parƟes that the franchisee's use of the 
franchisor's trademark infringes trademark rights of the third party. The franchisor is not, however, 
obligated to indemnify a franchisee against the consequences of the franchisee's use of the franchisor's 
trademark except in accordance with the requirements of the franchise. 
 
2.  Minnesota Rules, 1989, Department of Commerce, Chapter 2860, SecƟon 4400D prohibits a franchisor 
from requiring a franchisee to assent to a release, assignment, novaƟon, or waiver that would relieve any 
person from liability imposed by Minnesota Statutes 1973 Supplement, SecƟon 80C.01 to 80C.22. That 
provision, however, does not bar the voluntary seƩlement of disputes. 
 
3.  Minn. Rule 2860.4400J states that it is unfair and inequitable for a franchisor to require a franchisee to 
waive his or her rights to a jury trial or to waive rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for 
by the laws of Minnesota, or to consent to liquidated damages, terminaƟon penalƟes, or judgment notes. 
Any language found in the disclosure document or Franchise Agreement contrary to this rule is amended 
so that it does not apply to Minnesota franchisees. 
 
4.  THE STATE OF MINNESOTA HAS STATUTES THAT MAY SUPERSEDE THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT IN YOUR 
RELATIONSHIP WITH THE FRANCHISOR, INCLUDING THE AREAS OF TERMINATION AND RENEWAL OF YOUR 
FRANCHISE. THE STATE OF MINNESOTA ALSO HAS COURT DECISIONS THAT MAY SUPERSEDE THE 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT IN YOUR RELATIONSHIP WITH THE FRANCHISOR, INCLUDING THE AREAS OF 
TERMINATION AND RENEWAL OF YOUR FRANCHISE. WITH RESPECT TO FRANCHISES GOVERNED BY 
MINNESOTA LAW, THE FRANCHISOR MUST COMPLY WITH MINNESOTA STATUTE 80C.14, SUBDIVISIONS 3, 
4, AND 5, WHICH REQUIRE, EXCEPT IN CERTAIN SPECIFIC CASES, THAT A FRANCHISEE BE GIVEN 90 DAYS 
NOTICE OF TERMINATION (WITH 60 DAYS TO CURE) AND 180 DAYS NOTICE FOR NONRENEWAL OF THE 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. A PROVISION IN THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT THAT TERMINATES THE 
FRANCHISE UPON THE BANKRUPTCY OF THE FRANCHISEE MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE UNDER FEDERAL 
BANKRUPTCY LAW (11 U.S.C. SECTION 101 ET SEQ.). THE STATE OF MINNESOTA HAS COURT DECISIONS 
LIMITING THE FRANCHISOR'S ABILITY TO RESTRICT YOUR ACTIVITY AFTER THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
HAS ENDED. LIQUIDATED DAMAGE PROVISIONS ARE VOID UNDER MINNESOTA LAW. 
 
5.  Under Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule Part 2860.4400J, the requirement that all liƟgaƟon must 
take place in California shall not in any way abrogate or reduce any rights of the franchise as provided for 
in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C. 
 
6.  With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, and as stated in item four above, the franchisor 
will comply with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4, and 5, which require, except in certain specified 
cases, that a franchisee is given 90 days’ noƟce of terminaƟon (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ noƟce 
of non-renewal of the franchise agreement. 
 
7.  To the extent, this addendum is inconsistent with any terms or condiƟons of the franchise disclosure 
document, the Franchise Agreement, or any of their exhibits or aƩachments, the terms of this addendum 
shall control. 

  



 

MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 
The Franchise Agreement to which this addendum is aƩached is amended as follows to comply with the Minnesota 
Franchise Law: 
 

1.  A general release required as a condiƟon of renewal, assignment, or transfer does not apply to any 
claim or liability arising under the Minnesota Franchise Law. 
 
2.  Franchisor shall protect the right of Franchisee to use the Marks in accordance with the requirements 
of the Franchise Agreement. 

 
3.  SecƟon XXIII(F) shall not prevent Franchisee from filing suit against Franchisor in the State of Minnesota 
if Franchisor is liable for any wrongdoing under Minnesota Franchise Law.  
 
4.  Any reference contained in the Franchisee Agreement with a Franchisee who open the Franchised 
Business in Minnesota to the effect that Franchisor “is enƟtled to” or “may obtain” injuncƟve relief, or any 
imputaƟon that Franchisee waives any rights under any Minn. law related to injuncƟve relief, shall be 
deleted and replaced with the words “may seek.” 
 
5.  In compliance with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule Part 2860.4400J, Franchisor is prohibited 
from requiring liƟgaƟon to be conducted outside of Minnesota. In addiƟon, nothing in the franchise 
disclosure document can abrogate or reduce Franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, 
Chapter 80C, or Franchisee's rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of 
Minnesota. 
 
6.  With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, Franchisor shall comply with Minn. Stat. Sec. 
80C.14, Subds. 3, 4, and 5, which require, except in certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 
days’ noƟce of terminaƟon (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ noƟce of non-renewal of the Franchise 
Agreement. 
 
7.  Each provision of this addendum is effecƟve only to the extent that the jurisdicƟonal requirements of 
the Minnesota Franchise Law are met independently of this addendum. To the extent that this addendum 
is inconsistent with any term or condiƟon of the Franchise Agreement or its exhibits or aƩachments, the 
terms of this addendum shall control. Franchisor and Franchisee raƟfy and affirm the Franchise Agreement 
in all other respects. 

 
The ParƟes are signing this addendum concurrently with the Franchise Agreement to which it is aƩached. 
 

FRANCHISOR: 
THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

 
  



 

NEW YORK ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 
In recogniƟon of the requirements of the New York General Business Law, ArƟcle 33, and of the Codes, Rules, and 
RegulaƟons of the State of New York, Title 13, Chapter VII, SecƟon 200.2, with respect to any Franchised Business 
located in the State of New York, the franchise disclosure document shall be amended as follows: 
 

1.  The following informaƟon is added to the cover page of the franchise disclosure document: 
 

THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE 
NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS 
WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE 
DOCUMENT. 

 
2.  Item 3 shall be supplemented by the following : 
 

Neither Franchisor, its predecessor, a person idenƟfied in Item 2, nor an affiliate offering franchises 
under Franchisor’s principal trademark(s): 
 
A. Has an administraƟve, criminal, or civil acƟon pending against that person alleging: (i) a felony; 
(ii) a violaƟon of a franchise, anƟtrust, or securiƟes law; (iii) fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent 
conversion, or misappropriaƟon of property; (iv) unfair or decepƟve pracƟces, or comparable civil 
or misdemeanor allegaƟons; or (v) pending acƟons, other than rouƟne liƟgaƟon incidental to the 
business, which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature, or 
financial condiƟon of the franchise system or its business operaƟons. 
 
B. Has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge, or within the  10-
year period immediately preceding the applicaƟon for registraƟon, has been convicted of a or 
pleaded nolo contendere to, a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a civil acƟon 
alleging: (i) violaƟon of any franchise law, anƟfraud, or securiƟes law; (ii) fraud, embezzlement, 
fraudulent conversion, misappropriaƟon of property, or unfair or decepƟve pracƟces (or 
comparable allegaƟons). 
 
C. Is: (i) subject to a currently effecƟve injuncƟve or restricƟve order or decree relaƟng to the 
franchise; (ii) under a federal, state, or Canadian franchise, securiƟes, anƟtrust, trade regulaƟon 
or trade pracƟce law resulƟng from a concluded or pending acƟon or proceeding brought by a 
public agency; (iii) is subject to any currently effecƟve order of any naƟonal securiƟes associaƟon 
or naƟonal securiƟes exchange, as defined in the SecuriƟes and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending 
or expelling such person from membership in such associaƟon or exchange; or (iv)  subject to a 
currently effecƟve injuncƟve or restricƟve order relaƟng to any other business acƟvity as a result 
of an acƟon brought by a public agency or department, including, without limitaƟon, acƟons 
affecƟng a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.  

 
3.  The following is added to the end of the “Summary” secƟons of Item 17(c), Ɵtled “Requirements for 
you to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), enƟtled “CondiƟons for The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC 
approval of transfer”: 

 
To the extent required by applicable law, however, all rights you enjoy, and any causes of acƟon 
arising in your favor, from the provisions of ArƟcle 33 of the General Business Law of the State of 
New York and the regulaƟons issued under that law, shall remain in force, it being the intent of 



 

this proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law SecƟons 687.4 and 687.5 be 
saƟsfied. 

 
4.  The following language replaces the “Summary” secƟon of Item 17(d), Ɵtled Item 2, “TerminaƟon by 
you”: 
 

You may terminate the Franchise Agreement on any grounds available by law. 
 

5.  The following is added to the end of the “Summary” secƟons of Item 17(v), Ɵtled “Choice of forum,” 
and Item 17(w), Ɵtled “Choice of law”: 

 
The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the 
Franchisor or upon the Franchisee by ArƟcle 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New 
York. 

  



 

NORTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 
For franchises and franchisees subject to the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, the following informaƟon 
supersedes or supplements, as the case maybe, the corresponding disclosures in the main body of the text of the 
franchise disclosure document: 
 

1.  Covenants restricƟng or prohibiƟng Franchisee’s right to compete aŌer the terminaƟon or expiraƟon 
of the Franchise Agreement are generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota. 
 
2.  Any provision requiring Franchisee to sign a general release upon renewal of the Franchise Agreement 
has been determined to be unfair, unjust, and inequitable within the meaning of SecƟon 51-19-09 of the 
North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. 
 
3.  Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that designates jurisdicƟon or venue, or requires Franchisee 
to agree to jurisdicƟon or venue in a forum outside of North Dakota, is void with respect to any cause of 
acƟon which is otherwise enforceable in North Dakota. 
 
4.  The site of any required arbitraƟon or mediaƟon must be agreeable to all parƟes and may not be remote 
from the locaƟon of the Franchised Business. 
 
5.  Any provision of the Franchise Agreement requiring Franchisee to waive the right to a trial by jury is 
void. 
 
6.  Any provision of the Franchise Agreement requiring Franchisee to waive exemplary or puniƟve damages 
is void. 
 
7.  Any provision of the Franchise Agreement requiring Franchisee to consent to a statute of limitaƟons 
that is shorter than the applicable North Dakota statute of limitaƟons is void.  



 

NORTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 
The Franchise Agreement to which this addendum is aƩached is amended as follows to comply with the North 
Dakota Franchise Investment Law: 

 
1.  A general release required as a condiƟon of renewal, assignment, or transfer shall not apply to any 
claim or liability arising under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. 
 
2.  Any provision of this franchise disclosure document restricƟng jurisdicƟon or venue to a forum outside 
the State of North Dakota or requiring the applicaƟon of the laws of a state other than North Dakota is 
void. 
 
3.  SecƟon XIX(C) is amended by the addiƟon of the following sentence: 

 
“Covenants not to compete such as the one described above are generally considered 
unenforceable in the State of North Dakota.” 
 

4.  Any requirement compelling Franchisee to waive its right to a jury (i.e., secƟon XXIII(M)) is deleted. 
 
5.  Any requirement compelling Franchisee to waive its right to puniƟve or exemplary damages (i.e., 
secƟon XXI(B)) is deleted. 
 
6.  The ParƟes are signing this addendum simultaneously with the Franchise Agreement to which it is 
aƩached. 

 
FRANCHISOR: 
THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

 
 
  



 

RHODE ISLAND ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 
For franchises and Franchisees subject to the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, the following informaƟon 
supersedes or supplements, as the case may be, any contrary disclosures in the main body of the text of the 
franchise disclosure document: 
 

1.  A condiƟon, sƟpulaƟon, or provision requiring a franchise to waive compliance with, or relieving a 
person of a duty or liability imposed by or a right provided by, this act or a rule or order under this act, is 
void. 
 
2.  A provision in the Franchise Agreement restricƟng jurisdicƟon or venue to a forum outside this state, 
or requiring the applicaƟon of the laws of another state, is void with respect to a claim otherwise 
enforceable under Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act . 

 
  



 

RHODE ISLAND ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 
This addendum shall pertain to franchises sold in the State of Rhode Island and shall be for the purpose of 
complying with Rhode Island statutes and regulaƟons. Notwithstanding anything which may be contained in the 
body of the Franchise Agreement to the contrary, the Franchise Agreement shall be amended as follows: 
 

1.  A general release required as a condiƟon of renewal, assignment, or transfer shall not apply to any 
claim or liability arising under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act. 
 
2.  Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that requires the applicaƟon of the laws of another state, or 
designates jurisdicƟon or venue in a forum outside the State of Rhode Island, is void with respect to a 
claim otherwise enforceable under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act. 

 
FRANCHISOR: 
THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

 
  



 

VIRGINIA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 
The following statements are added to Item 17.h. 
 
Under SecƟon 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to cancel a franchise 
without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or terminaƟon stated in the development agreement do not 
consƟtute "reasonable cause," as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of 
Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable. 
  



 

WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 
To the extent that the Washington Franchise Investment ProtecƟon Act applies, the terms of this addendum shall 
also apply: 
 

1.  The State of Washington has a statute, R.C.W. 19.100.180, which may supersede the Franchise 
Agreement in your relaƟonship with the Franchisor, including the areas of terminaƟon and renewal of your 
franchise. There may also be court decisions that may supersede the franchise agreement in your 
relaƟonship with the Franchisor, including the areas of terminaƟon and renewal of your franchise. 
 
2.  In any arbitraƟon involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitraƟon site shall be either in 
the State of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the Ɵme of the arbitraƟon, or as 
determined by the arbitrator. 
 
3.  In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment ProtecƟon Act, 
Chapter 19.100 R.C.W., shall prevail. 
 
4.  A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee shall not include rights under the Washington 
Franchise Investment ProtecƟon Act except when executed pursuant to a negoƟated seƩlement aŌer the 
Franchise Agreement is in effect and where the parƟes are represented by independent counsel. 
Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitaƟons period for claims 
under the Act, rights, or remedies under the Act, such as a right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable. 
 
5.  Transfer fees are collecƟble to the extent that they reflect the Franchisor's reasonably esƟmated or 
actual costs in effecƟng a transfer. 
 
6.  Under RCW 49.62.020, a non-compeƟƟon covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee, 
including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking 
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for 
inflaƟon). In addiƟon, a non-compeƟƟon covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent 
contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the 
party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted 
annually for inflaƟon). As a result, any provisions contained in the Franchise Agreement, or elsewhere, 
that conflict with these limitaƟons are void and unenforceable in Washington. 
 
7.  RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricƟng, restraining, or prohibiƟng a franchisee from: (a) 
soliciƟng or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor; or (b) soliciƟng or hiring any 
employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the Franchise Agreement, or 
elsewhere, are void and unenforceable in Washington. 
 
8.  To the extent that this addendum is inconsistent with any terms or condiƟons of the franchise disclosure 
document, the Franchise Agreement, or any of their exhibits or aƩachments, the terms of this addendum 
shall control. 

  



 

WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 
In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment ProtecƟon Act, Chapter 
19.100 RCW will prevail. 
 
RCW 19.100.180 and certain court decisions may supersede porƟons of the Franchise Agreement and Area 
Development Agreement, including those areas dealing with terminaƟon and renewal of those agreements.  
 
In any arbitraƟon involving a Franchised Business operaƟng in Washington, the arbitraƟon site shall be either in 
the State of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the Ɵme of the arbitraƟon, or as determined by 
the arbitrator. 
 
A release or waiver of rights executed by Franchisee may not include rights under the Washington Franchise 
Investment ProtecƟon Act except when executed following a negoƟated seƩlement aŌer the Franchise Agreement 
is in effect and where the ParƟes are represented by independent counsel. Provisions that unreasonably restrict 
or limit the statute of limitaƟons period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act, such as a 
right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable. 
 
Transfer fees are collecƟble to the extent that they reflect Franchisor’s reasonable esƟmated or actual costs in 
effecƟng a transfer. 
 
Under RCW 49.62.020, a non-compeƟƟon covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee, including an 
employee of Franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, 
exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflaƟon). In addiƟon, a non-compeƟƟon 
covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of Franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless 
the independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, 
exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflaƟon). As a result, any provisions 
contained in the Franchise Agreement, Area Development Agreement, or elsewhere that conflict with these  
imitaƟons are void and unenforceable in Washington. 
 
RCW 49.62.060 prohibits Franchisor from restricƟng, restraining, or prohibiƟng Franchisee from: (i) soliciƟng or 
hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor; or (ii) soliciƟng or hiring any Franchisor’s employees. 
As a result, any such provisions contained in the Franchise Agreement, Area Development Agreement, or 
elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington. 
 
The ParƟes to the Franchise Agreement acknowledge receipt of this addendum. 
 

FRANCHISOR: 
THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

 
  



 

WISCONSIN ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 
The following addiƟonal disclosures are required by the Wisconsin Franchise Investment Law and the Wisconsin 
Fair Dealership Law: 
 

1.  THE WISCONSIN FAIR DEALERSHIP LAW SUPERSEDES ANY PROVISION OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH THAT LAW. 
 
2.  To the extent that this addendum is inconsistent with any terms or condiƟons of the franchise disclosure 
document, the Franchise Agreement, or any of their exhibits or aƩachments, the terms of this addendum 
shall control. 

  



 

WISCONSIN ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 
The Franchise Agreement to which this addendum is aƩached is amended as follows to comply with the Wisconsin 
Fair Dealership Law: 
 

1. The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Chapter 135, Stats., supersedes any inconsistent provisions of the 
Franchise Agreement. 
 

The ParƟes are signing this addendum concurrently with the Franchise Agreement to which it is aƩached. 
 

FRANCHISOR: 
THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE GROUP LLC 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________________ 
 
Its:_________________________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________ 

 
  



 

 
EXHIBIT L  

TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT  
 

STATE EFFECTIVE DATES 



 

State EffecƟve Dates 
 
 The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure 
Documents be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registraƟon: California, 
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, 
South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin. 
 

This document is effecƟve and may be used in the following states, where the document 
is filed, registered or exempt from registraƟon, as of the EffecƟve Date stated below: 
 

State Effective Date 

California   

Hawaii  

Illinois    

Indiana  

Maryland  

Michigan    

Minnesota  

New York  

North Dakota  

Rhode Island  

South Dakota  

Virginia    

Washington    

Wisconsin  
  
 Other states may require registraƟon, filing, or exempƟon of a franchise under other laws, 
such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportuniƟes or seller-assisted 
markeƟng plans. 

  



 

 
EXHIBIT M  

TO THE RUSH COFFEE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT  
 

RECEIPTS 



 

Item 23. RECEIPT 
 
This Disclosure Document summarizes provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other informaƟon in plain 
language.  Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 
 
If The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in 
connecƟon with the proposed franchise sale. 
 
New York and Oklahoma require that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal 
meeƟng or 10 business days before the execuƟon of the franchise agreement, or other agreement, or the payment 
of any consideraƟon that relates to the franchise relaƟonship.   
 
Michigan, Oregon and Wisconsin require that we give you this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days 
before the execuƟon of any binding franchise agreement, or other agreement, or the payment of any 
consideraƟon, whichever comes first. 
 
If The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on Ɵme or if it contains a false 
or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violaƟon of federal and state law may have occurred and should 
be reported to The Federal Trade Commission, Washington D.C. 20580 and the appropriate State Agency idenƟfied 
on Exhibit D. 
 
The franchisor is The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC located at 757 N. Twin Oaks Valley Rd., Suite 2, San Marcos, 
California 92069.  The names, principal business addresses and telephone numbers of each Franchise Seller 
offering the Franchise are: Parsegh Oksayan and Claire Oksayan, both at 757 N. Twin Oaks Valley Rd., Suite 2, San 
Marcos, California 92069/ (760) 402-8225. 
 
Issuance Date: March 12, 2024.  The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC authorizes the agents listed in Exhibit F to 
receive service of process for it. 
 
I have received a Disclosure Document dated March 12, 2024.  This Disclosure Document included the following 
Exhibits: 
 
EXHIBIT A  FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT B AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT C PERSONAL GUARANTY 
EXHIBIT D RESTRICTIVE COVENANT AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT E POWER OF ATTORNEY TO ASSIGN TELEPHONE NUMBER 
EXHIBIT F LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 
EXHIBIT G LIST OF FRANCHISEES AND THEIR OUTLETS  
EXHIBIT H LIST OF FRANCHISEES WHO CEASED TO DO BUSINESS UNDER THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT I FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
EXHIBIT J TABLES OF CONTENTS OF OPERATING MANUAL 
EXHIBIT K STATE-SPECIFIC ADDENDA 
EXHIBIT L STATE EFFECTIVE DATES 
EXHIBIT M RECEIPTS 
 
Print Name:__________________________      Signature: __________________________ 

Date: __________________________ 
 
Keep this copy for your  records. 



 

Item 23. RECEIPT 
 
This Disclosure Document summarizes provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other informaƟon in plain 
language.  Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 
 
If The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in 
connecƟon with the proposed franchise sale. 
 
New York and Oklahoma require that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal 
meeƟng or 10 business days before the execuƟon of the franchise agreement, or other agreement, or the payment 
of any consideraƟon that relates to the franchise relaƟonship.   
 
Michigan, Oregon and Wisconsin require that we give you this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days 
before the execuƟon of any binding franchise agreement, or other agreement, or the payment of any 
consideraƟon, whichever comes first. 
 
If The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on Ɵme or if it contains a false 
or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violaƟon of federal and state law may have occurred and should 
be reported to The Federal Trade Commission, Washington D.C. 20580 and the appropriate State Agency idenƟfied 
on Exhibit D. 
 
The franchisor is The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC located at 757 N. Twin Oaks Valley Rd., Suite 2, San Marcos, 
California 92069.  The names, principal business addresses and telephone numbers of each Franchise Seller 
offering the Franchise are: Parsegh Oksayan and Claire Oksayan, both at 757 N. Twin Oaks Valley Rd., Suite 2, San 
Marcos, California 92069/ (760) 402-8225. 
 
Issuance Date: March 12, 2024.  The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC authorizes the agents listed in Exhibit F to 
receive service of process for it. 
 
I have received a Disclosure Document dated March 12, 2024.  This Disclosure Document included the following 
Exhibits: 
 
EXHIBIT A  FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT B AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT C PERSONAL GUARANTY 
EXHIBIT D RESTRICTIVE COVENANT AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT E POWER OF ATTORNEY TO ASSIGN TELEPHONE NUMBER 
EXHIBIT F LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 
EXHIBIT G LIST OF FRANCHISEES AND THEIR OUTLETS  
EXHIBIT H LIST OF FRANCHISEES WHO CEASED TO DO BUSINESS UNDER THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT I FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
EXHIBIT J TABLES OF CONTENTS OF OPERATING MANUAL 
EXHIBIT K STATE-SPECIFIC ADDENDA 
EXHIBIT L STATE EFFECTIVE DATES 
EXHIBIT M RECEIPTS 
 
Print Name:__________________________      Signature: __________________________ 

Date: __________________________ 

Please sign this copy of the receipt, date your signature, and return it to: The Rush Coffee Franchise Group LLC, at 
757 N. Twin Oaks Valley Rd., Suite 2, San Marcos, California 92069 


